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e Washoe County Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FY21 (2021)

e Documentation of the Galena Creek Schoolhouse, Washoe County’s
Penultimate One-Room School (2009)



WASHOE COUNTY Q

UICKINFO

({Summary data may not be complete representation of property)

2/8/2022

All data on this form is for use by the Washoe County Assessor for assessment purposes only.

Owner Information Building Information XFOB  SUBAREA
APN | 045-472-28 Card 1 of 2 Bld #1 Situs| 16000 CALLAHAN RD Proparty Name
Situs 116000 CALLAHAN RD Bid # 1 Quality | R10 Low Building Type | Single Family
Owner 1| WASHOE COUNTY . Rasiasicy
Mail| ATTN PARKS & UTILITIES 1001 E 9TH ST BLDG A RENG NV Biaries, 1 Story it Oy
Address | 89512 Yenr Built| 1939 way ! 1939
Parcel Information | Bedrooms |1 Squara Feet| 1265
Full Baths |1 Finished Bsmt 0
Keyline Desc FR: SB4 SEC 2 TWP 17 RGE 19
i Half Baths |0 Unfin Bsmt|0
Subdivision | _UNSPECIFIED !
; Fixtures & Basameant Typa
[Section 2. Toumsnip 47 . Range 19 Fireplaces | 0 Gar Conv 5q Feet| 474 GC1
Record of Survey Map : Parcel Map# 0 : Sub Map# Heat Typa| BASEROARD, Total Garage Area |0
| ELECTRIC
Special Property Code 011 i
! 2nd Heat Type Garage Type
District | 4000 Prior APN | 045-270-01
FRE T Serir lissbod i —ri Extarior Walls| STONE ON MASONRY Detached Garage |0
2021 Tax District 4000 | PAT FORMS | Residential High Cap Applied | PRt ST 3
Tax Cap Status | Roof Caver| COMPOSITION Sub Floor| WOOD
PERMITS pkinne  04/22/2010 | SHINGLE
% Complate| 100 Frame | MASGNRY
Obso/Bldg Adj 0 Units/Bldg | 1
Construction Units/Parcel | 2
Madifiar
Sales and Transfer Records RECORDER SEARCH
Grantor Grantee | Doc# | Doc | Doc | poR |Value/Sale| Adjusted | gaye |Units|Price/unit Notes
Type Date Price Sale |
| , Code price | COd®|
| SPANISH SPRINGS INVEST LLC, | WASHOE COUNTY 13447815 |DEED | 10- | 310 00,000 olzgc  Infe HISTORIC
06- BUILDING
2008 PURCHASED BY
WASHOE CO. WILL
| BE CONVERTED TO
| COMMUNITY
CENTER, SELLER
|RE AGENT. LETTER
| | (oMLY,
CAPURRO, MARIELLEN SPANISH SPRINGS INVEST LLC 3343198 |DEED | 01- | 310 550,000 0j20C  |N/A | SWL-VERIFIED,
31- | 3/1/05 PURCHASE
2006 ;mnnn, BUYER
| WAS LESSEE,
BUYER RE AGENT.
| LTR ONLY
CAPURRD, MARIELLEN CAPURRO, MARIELLEN 3343197 |bEED | 01- | 310 ] o/3BCT  |NfA
31- |
|2008
| CAPURRO, WAYNE A | CAPURRO,MARIELLEN 3343196 |DEED | 01- | 310 i} 0/3BGG |N/A
31-
| 2006
| CAPURRC, WAYNE A 2314543 03- 0 o M
5~
1939 |
Land Information LAND DETAILS
%Zﬂnlng infaermation should be verified with the appropriate planning Land 310 DOR 310 Create/Cls | M92 JC Neighborhood
. y M
| agemy Usa Code Code ap
Size 43,691 SgFt | Sewer|Septic Streat | Paved | zun]ng_ lios rermenty 2022 | 1CYY
NBEC | PIK
| | Code
Sire|1.003 Acres | Water|Well | Value Year 2022 | Zoning Maps| Page 045-47 | Book 2021
| | |oas NBC

Valuation Information A

The 2022/2023 values are preli

-

ABATEMENT INFO

minary values and subject to change.




| | Taxable Imps Land Taxable |OBSO| TaxCap Taxable |  Land Imps Total | Exemption
| | Land New New Imps | Value Total | A d A d A d | Value
|2022/2023 NR 1,000 0] o B5466| O 86,466 350 29,913 30,263 30,263
{2022/2023 VN 1,000 a;' o Bs468| O 86,466 150 29,913 30,263 30,263
12022/2023 Q¢ 1,000 o} a B5,466) O BE, 466 50 29,913 30,263 30,263
Exemptions

| Coda | Description MRS Exem ID | Year Granted | Valus
I21 COUNTY 361.060 Counties, Town, Municipal Corp. conservation Dist, Irrigation Drainage, Recismation Dist 0 izﬂzz 30,263

s J OAE-472-28 08/18)2016

This is a true and accurate copy of the records of the Washoe County Assessor's Office as of 02-07-2022



FINAL

Project: Galena Schoolhouse Restoration Phase 1A February 24, 2022
Washoe County CSD. - Cag
HARD COSTS Sub-Total Total
Estimated Construction Costs
Total All Divisions 3 37,500.00
General Condilions- Division 1 0% & 7.500.00
Sub-Total i 5 45,000.00
GC Fee/ Bond/ Insurance - 3.5% 00
- Sub-Total ' § 46,575.00 _ B
market factor adjustment 150% & 57
Sub-Total 5 53,325.00
1 year Escatation 10.00% ; i
Estimated Lump Sum Bid Cost % 57,825.00
Bid Alternates
& =
* S
Sub-Total Construction Cost k1 - 57,825.00
Constueton Cordingarcy :
Contractor Exclusions
Dust Control
SWIP Fees

onsite inspectioniquality control
Infrastructure Hardware (Voice and Data)
Sub-Total Exclusions

Project Fees

NDSLISHPD Parmit
TWWA Water Rights
TMWA Connaction Fea

=
g
|2
E
o
=]
=1
1=
=4
| £
LE‘
[
@l En| | 6| B e
r

“Building Permit Fee
RTC Impact Fee
Sub-Total
Project Fee Contingency 0.0%
Sub-Total
Total Project Fees and Exclusions
Total Hard Costs including Contingency ﬂ

Sub-Total Total

o
(]

niten | an
"

Envirenmental Testing/Inspection
Special Inspaction Consiltant

Pest Inspection ! Abatement | control
Reimbursables

Construction printing

Sub-Total

=— = — Total SoftCosts
TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATED COST (Hard & Soft Costs)
FF & E Package Total
Land Acquisition
[TOTAL WASHOE COUNTY BUDGET

APPROVED BUDGET

ACTUAL BUDGET AMOUNT AVAILABLE $ -
DEVELOPMENT COST BUDGET AvAILABLE COST FFERENCE
OVER BUDGET
BUDGET VARIANCE 5 {115,607.50)

Building Squara Foolage = 525

Galana Schoolhouse - Budget Spreadsheet FINAL Page 1 of 1 Printed: 2r24/2022 4:27 PM



Project: Galena Schoolhouse Restoration Phase 1B

FINAL

February 24, 2022

HARD COSTS Sub-Total Total
Estimated Construction Costs
Total All Divisions I 133,600.00
General Conditions- Division 1 200% 2670000
Sub-Total 5 160,200.00
GC Feel Bond! Insurance 35% 5807000
Sub-Total $ 165,807.00
markel factor adiustment 15.0% [§ E 030.00
Sub-Total & 189,837.00 - )
1 year Escalation 10.00% § [
Estimated Lump Sum Bid Cost E
Bid Alternates
5 =
0 =
Sub-Total Construction Cost § 205,857.00

Construction Contingency 108 g g@ i5.70..

Contractor Exclusions

Dust Control

SWIP Feas

onsite inspection/guality control

Infrastructure Hardware {Voice and Data)
Sub-Total Exclusions

Project Fees

NOSL/SHPO Permit

THIVWA Water Rights

TMWA Connection Fee

Meter Retrofit Confribution

]

Sewer Connection

‘Building Permit Fee

RTC Impaci Fee

el o

~ Sub-Total

Project Fes Condingency 00% _ £

“Sub-Total ] .

Tl:-l;l-ﬂl_FrD]E(!l Fees and Exclusions

Total Hard Costs including Contingency

SOFTCOSTS Sibroa Total
Design Foes
Base AJE design contract 0.0%
Environmental Testing/Inspection 1,5% =
Special Inspection Consultant 2.0%
Pest Inspection / Abatement / control 0.0%
E e [T, e
Construction printing 0.0% .-
swron I
— —
TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATED COST (Hard & Soft Costs) $ 234,442.70
FF & E Package Total
Land Acguisition ] =
[TOTAL WASHOE COUNTY BUDGET S 2saaaqo]
APPROVED BUDGET
ACTUAL BUDGET AMOUNT AVAILABLE 5 -
DEVELOPMENT COST BUDGET AVAILABLE | COST DIFFERENCE
OVER BUDGET
I BUDGET VARIANCE - |5 (234,442.70)

Building Square Footags =

Galena Schoolhouse - Budgel Spreadsheat FINAL Page 1 0f 1

525

Primed: 2/24/2022 4:30 PM



Estimated Construction Budget Worksheet

Project Galena Schoolthouse Restoration Phaze 1A

Estimated Hard Construction Costs

Phase 1a

Phase 1b

Phase 2

Site Construction {with Landscape)

(ieneral Demolition (walls, elec, ete)

5.000.00

Special Demo Costs (abatement req'd )

20,000.00

Stuctural Concrote / Stablization

35,000.00

Structural Foundation Retrofit

15,000.00

Structural Roof Retrofit

30,000.00

Fimsh Carpentry [nferior

Finish Carpentrv Exterior

5.000.00

‘Waterproofing

49 [ 65 | &5 60 | 88 | 69 | 55 &9

5,000.00

Insulahion

Roofing

40.000.00

Sheet Metal and Flashing

3.500.00

Exterior Siding

5.000.00

Extenior Doors

Interior Doors

Windows

Cilass Mirrors

Drywall

Flooring - Wood

Fleoring - Carpet

'Wall Base

Inierior Paint

Exterior Paint

Casewnrk

Plumbing Fixtures

Appliances

Window Coverings

Speciil Construction

[Elevator

[Plambing & Hot Wator

2,500.00

fHeat & Ventilation

|Elecirical and Lighting

A58 [ || en e o ee e e a [aa [ea e [ e | s e | En |

5,000.00

|Cuta Phone/ Tech

[Fire Protection

enlealea

Subtotal Hard Costs

R | &5 6|0 | o5 (&R 155

37,500.00

& [ | ealen | B0 eA L6 |60 | 60 [ ealan | &0 [ e |60 | 69 (6 | 65 | enlen | aa [ &n | &0 |60 e | 60 | 6 | 68 |60 |6 [ en | &R | &6 | &0 1 6A | &0 | &R | & | €A | 65 |3 | &0

133,500.00

£ | |0 [0 | 6060 | 65 |60 |00 [ 60| &0 | & |00 100 |60 160 | 65 | 65 16 |60 |60 ) &0 60 o0 | 69 |60 | 60|69 |9 | 0 | 69| 69 | 63 1 60 165 | 63 65 | 69 |68 | &5 | &R | &5

114,000.00
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WASHOE COUNTY Office of the Compitroller

Accounting / Collections / Purchasing / Risk Management — Cathy Hill, Comptrolfer
1001 E. 3" Strest

Reno, NV 89512

Phone: (775) 328-2552

Fa; (775) 328-6120

wiww washoecounty gov/comptroller

November 24, 2021

To the Honarable Board of County Commissioners and
the Citizens of Washoe County, Nevada:

The annual comprehensive financial report of Washoe County, Nevada (County), for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 is
hereby submitted. Nevada Revised Statules (MRS) 354.624 requires the County to provide an annual audit by independent
certified public accountanis in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States. This repart
represents Washoe County's commitment to sound and effective fiscal management and to responsible financial reporting
based on (GAAP) established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Washoe County Management assumes responsibility for the completenass and reliability of the information contained in this
report, based on a comprehensive framework of internal controls established for this purpose. Because the cost of intemal
control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance that
the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. Management asserts that, to the best of our knowledge, the
information in this report is accurate in all material respects and presents fairly the financial position of the varlous funds and
(discretely presented) component unit of the County, including disclosures necessary to understand the County's activities.

BDO USA, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have audited the County's financial statements far the year ended June 30,
2021 and have issued an unmodified ("clean”) opinion. The Independent Auditor's Report is located on the first page of the
financial section.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the Independent Auditor's Report and provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Washoe County was incorparated in 1861 and is a palitical subdivision of the State of Nevada, The County is governad by
a five-member Board of County Commissioners (BCC) elected by constifuents within their districts for a 4-year term. The
County covers an area of 8,600 square miles in the northwest section of the state. The county seat is the City of Reno, the
fourth largest city in Nevada, Cther communities in the County include Reno, Sparks, Sun Valley, Wadsworth, and Incline
Village.

Washoe County provides an array of mandated services including property appraisal and assessment; tax collection; criminal
prosecution; presides over civil, criminal, domestic and juvenile court cases; death investigations; tempaorary financial
assistance, health care assistance and indigent burials; communicable disease control; and child protection and placement
senvices. Regional services include adult and juvenile detention; parks and libraries; senior services; forensic services; sewer
and flood control; animal services; emergency management; and regional public safety training. Other community services
include patrol and criminal investigation; fire protection; snow removal and sireet repair, business licensing; and land use
planning and permitting. Administrative and internal support services include management, human resources, accounting,
community relations, budget, technology services, internal audit, fleet operations, purchasing, and risk management.

This report includes the financial activities of one discretely presented component unit: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District. This componant unit is a legally separate entity, governad by a Board of Fire Commissioners. The members of the
BCC serve as members of these boards. There is no financial benefit or burden relationship between the County and the
Fire District.

The BCC is required to adopt a final budget annually on or before June 1 for the ensuing fiscal year. The annual budget
serves as the foundation for the County’s financial planning and contral, The legal level of budgetary control is at the function
level for governmental funds and by the sum of operating and non-operating expenses for proprietary funds.




LOCAL ECONOMY AND ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Washoe County continued its response to the COVID-19 pandemic by serving the residents of the County as a regional
response with the Cities of Reno and Sparks by forming a unified incident command structure to respond to the COVID-19
crisis. At the onset of the pandemic the County took actions to protect the health of the community, and County employees,
by maintaining continuity of its critical and essential business functions and avoiding widespread impacts to its workforce
from the COVID-19 outbreak. This unified structure included a cost-sharing agreement for the portion of the emergency
response costs to maximize reimbursements from federal funding sources including the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) and the CARES Act.  On April 30, 2020, the Governor of Nevada introduced the “Nevada United: Roadmap
to Recovery" plan that outlined a phased approach to reopening Mevada business and industry. Cancellations and
postponements of events at major venues within the County occurred and travel through Reno-Tahoe International Airport
declined, however in May 2021, Reno-Tahoe Internalional Airport total passengers increased 557% from the prior year,

As of June 1, 2021, more than 200,000 County residents have been fully vaccinated — 52.49%. As of Seplember 24, 2021,
Washoe County recognized its 800" death caused by COVID-19. The County continues to adhere to State directives, and
to the Center of Disease Control guidelines in reopening of the State of Nevada and its businesses. During the pandemic
closures, the County did not have to reduce its workforce. Personnel necessary to the operation of the County’s facilities
remained on-site with mask requirements, temperature checks and strategies utilized to promote "social distancing”. The
County learned to operate with much of its workforce working remotely and/or hybrid schedules and by limiting non-essential
business travel.

During this past fiscal year, the County was allocated over $20 million in federal CARES Act funding through the State, a
$6.6 million federal Emergency Rental Assistance grant, and has been awarded over $91 million in federal funding under
the America Rescue Plan Act. It is required that the $31 million be fully spent by December 2026. Eligible uses for use of
these funds include, but are not limited to, public heallh/negative economic impact, revenue loss, investment in water, sewer
and broadband, Washoe County will conduct a process to identify the most urgent, wide-ranging, and impactful public health
needs refated to the COVID-12 public health emergency. Guidance states that the use of these funds must be incurred by
December 31, 2024 and expended with all work performed and completed by December 31, 2026.

Washoe County received $20.2 million in fiscal year 2020 for Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES)
and fully spent these funds in July 2021. The funds were spent in the following categories:

®  Public Health Expenses $ 2,423,070
*  Personal Protective Equipment $ 1,395,820
°  COVID-19 Tesling and Contact Tracing § B87,772

?  Payroll Expense for Public Employees
Dedicated to COVID-19 $11,340,671

®  Expenses lo Facilitate Compliance with
COVID-19 Measures $ 3.177,829

®  Economic Support — Small Business
Housing and Food Assistance $ 1,007,260
®  Administration of CARES Funds $ 22308

Housing in the northem Nevada area, during this past fiscal year, had seen an increase in demand with limited inventory.
This demand for housing in Washoe County resulted in median home prices increasing to over $550,000 - an increase of
over 20%. The number of single-family homes sold from the previous year increased by 13.8%.

Washoe County continued to seek advantages of its favorable bond ratings from Standard & Poor's AA+ rating and Moody's
AaZ stable rating and refunded over $11 million in general obligation bonds for a reduced rate of interest.

As Washoe County continues to rebound from the effects of the Coronavirus pandemic, the unemployment rate at the end
of fiscal year 2021, was 4.2% which is slightly lower than that of the national unemployment rate of 4.8%,

Washoe County was involved in litigation with the Incline Village/Crystal Bay taxpayers who had contested their 2003, 2004,
and 2005 on August 4, 2020, the Board of County Commissioners approved a settlement agreement with the taxpayers of
Incline Village/Crystal Bay that would dismiss the case and require payment by the County of an estimated $56 million in
refunds to the taxpayers over a three-year period. Of such amount, the County's proportionate share is $23.8. These funds
have been restricted by the County to refund the taxpayers over this period. The refund period began in July 2021,

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The County’s General Fund unrestricted fund balance increased resulting in an unrestricted fund balance of $122.1 million.
These funds can be used to continue to fund the capital improvement needs of the County as projecls were delayed due to
the COV|D-19 pandemic. Internal service funds continued to see growth to approach sustainable fund balance levels that
were hard hit by the declining revenue that occurred during the Great Recession as well. Restricted fund balance resulted
in a balance of $27.6 million.



The fizcal year 2021 budget was adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on May 19, 2020, estimated financial
impacts based on the most current national, state and local economic trends during an uncertain time as the pandemic was
just beginning to unfold. As Washoe County continues with growth in population the County confinues fo experience
increasing costs to provide services to the communities it serves. Due to the ongeoing pandemic, departments were asked
{o prioritize and reallocate resources from existing fund levels, wherever possible.

Washoe County's general fund financial performance over the five-year period from fiscal years 2017 through 2021 has been
sleady, wilh revenues exceeding expenditures every year, except 2017 when the County experienced two federally declared
disasters resulting from flocding events due to unusually severe winter rainstorms. This strong financial trend continued into
fiscal year 2021 with the onset of the COVID-18 worldwide pandemic, resulting in the shutdown of businesses nationwide
that began in March 2020 with both State and National declared emergencies.

The BCC continues to collaborate with regional partners, citizens, management, County employees and their respective
associations to enable Washoe County to confinue to be one of the most fiscally responsible local governments in the State.
The County adheres, without exception, to the praclice of adopting a final balanced budget. For more than a decade, the
County has not increased the General Fund budget by more than the combined increases in population and the Consumer
Price Index, even during the economic downtum,

MAJOR PROGRANMS / INITIATIVES

The annual budget serves as the financial plan for County operations and is aligned with the County's strategic objectives.
Some of the programs Washoe County initiated and/or completed during the 2021 fiscal year are:

s During the COVID-19 pandemic, Washoe County did not experience any reductions in workforce and no departmental
budget reductions.
In August 2021, Washoe County assumed primary responsibility for northern Nevada homeless services.
Washoe County enlisted the services of the Nevada National Guard and FEMA {o assist with vaccination point of
dispensary and services, contract tracing and guarantine and alternative healthcare facilifies.
Registrar of Volers allowed vote-by-mail for the November 2020 election
Sherifl's Department main lobby and visiting area remodeled with the acceptance of a $1.5 million grant from the U.S.
Department of Justice

s  55.5 million was received for rental assistance for residents of Washoe County

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Washoe County for its annual comprehensive financial report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. This was the 39" consecutive year the County has achieved this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a Cerlificate of Achievement, the County must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
annual financial report, This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable eligibility
reguirements.

We believe that our current annual comprehensive financial report conlinues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the
Comptroller Department's entire staff, More particularly, Robert Andrews and Russell Morgan, CPA, Accounting Managers;
Darlene Delany, CPA, Rebecca Mosher and Asta Dominguez, CPA, Senior Accountants; Joyce Garrett and Michelle Glodt-
Mikoliczyk Accountant |I's, and Edwin Smith, Administrative Assistant |. Thanks also to the cooperation and assistance of all
County deparimenis, and to the staff from BDO USA, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, the County's independent auditors.
Special thanks to the Board of County Commissioners for their leadership and support in the planning and conducting of the
financial operations of the County in a responsible and progressive manner.

Iﬁgespectfully submitted,
\} Gt~ HIFE

Cathy Hill, Comptroller
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WASHOE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Washoe County is home to Lake Tahoe, one of the most beautiful places on earth; to the
majestic Sierra Nevada mountains; to the life-giving Truckee River; to vast open ranges and
blue sky; to pastoral ranches and to friendly, vibrant communities including the cities of Reno
and Sparks,

OUR VISION is that Washoe County will be the social, economic and paolicy leadership
force in Nevada and the western United States

OUR MISSION is working together regionally to provide and sustain a safe, secure and
healthy community.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Fiscal Sustainability

+ Economic Impacts

« Vulnerable Populations

¢ Innovative Services

Values

The purpose of the values stotermnent is to articulate how we behave as staff and community
members.

= Integrity — We are dedicated to uncompromising honesty in our dealings with the public
and each other in conformance with our code of conduct.

» Effective Communication — We believe in simple, accurate, and clear communication. We
encourage the open exchange of ideas and information.

» Quality Public Service —The County exists to serve the public. We put the needs and
expectations of citizens at the center of everything we do and take pride in delivering
services of the highest quality.

Strategic Direction

The purpose of the strategic direction is to establish a concrete picture of the future:
Washoe County will be the social, economic and policy leadership force in Nevada and
the western United States.

We will accomplish this by:

= Support and represent the people we serve.

= Being forward thinking.

= Protect our natural resources.

» Collaborate within and across the County.

= Commit to digital delivery.

* Reduce redundancies and non-value adds.

= Show up as “One County” externally and internally.

Planning Assumptions

This plan assumes the following:

= Effective implementation always occurs in coordination and collaboration with our
regional partners.

= Long-term financial sustainability is a foremost consideration for all new programs,
initiatives and actions.

= Significant additional efforts are being undertaken within departments directly, whereby
it is not possible to reflect them all in this document.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tao the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Washoe County, Nevada

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Washoe County, Nevada (the “County”) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the accompanying financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of
June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (the
“District”), a discretely presented component unit of the County. Those statements were audited
by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for the District, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repart. We are required to be independent
of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical reguirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

BOO USA, LLP, 3 Delzware limited liability partnership, s the U.5. member of BDO Internationat Limited, a UK company limited by guarantes, and
forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BO is the brand name for the BOO netwark and for each of the BDO Member Firms.



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued or available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time,



We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 15 and the postemployment benefits
other than pensions and pension plan information collectively presented on pages 89 through 95,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit for the year ended June 30, 2021 was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, schedule
of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and statistical section for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as
a whole for the year ended June 30, 2021.



The County’s basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 (not presented herein),
were audited by other auditors whose report thereon dated December 29, 2020, expressed
unmaodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information. The report of the other auditors dated December 29, 2020,
stated that the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2020 was subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the fiscal year 2020 basic financial statements and
certain additional auditing procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare those basic financial
statements or the those basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and, in
their opinion, was fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole for the year ended June 30, 2020.

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
EXpress an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 24, 2021, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control aver
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering County's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

ICANVVY

November 24, 2021



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

As management of Washoe County (the County), we offer readers of the County's financial staterents this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2021. We encourage
readers to read this information in conjunction with the transmittal letter, financial statements and notes to gain a
more complete picture of the information presented.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* Ad Valorem taxes increased $14.8 million and Consolidated taxes increased $21.2 million from the
previous year and overall governmental activities revenue increased 379 .4 million from the previous fiscal
year.

# Govemnmental activities expense decreased by $34.3 million compared to prior year as the result of
anticipated decreases in expenses associated with the COVID-19 pandemic that occurred in FY21 offset
by increases in personnel costs throughout the County.

# As aresult of decreased budgeted program activity levels, public safety costs decreased by $13.2 million
and public works of $13.5 million in FY21.

¥  Washoe County's Governmental Activities outstanding debt (including unamortized bond premium) totaled
$121 million. Outstanding debt remained the same as decreases of $20 million due to regularly scheduled
principal payments, discounts, premiums and deferred charges on refunding were offset by a new issug
and refunding in the amount of $20 million. The current debt limitation for the County is $1.9 billion which is
$1.8 billion in excess of the County's outstanding general obligation debt.

# Ending net position in both the Governmental and Business-Type Activities increased $125.9 million
primarily due to the continued strong growth in the economy.

¥ General Fund unassigned fund balance increased to $122.1 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Washoe County's basic financial statements.
The County's financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) the notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains supplementary
information intended to provide additional detail in support of the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide a
broad overview of Washoe County's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the County's assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Increases or decreases in
net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of whether the County's financial position is improving or
detericrating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County's net position changed during the current
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will
not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods, such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
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activities of the County include general government, administration of justice, public works, public safety, health and
sanitation, welfare, culture and recreation, and community support. The business-type activities of the County include
a sewer utility, golf courses, and building permit activities.

The government-wide financial statements also include one legally separate fire protection district for which the
County is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the
financial information for Washoe County itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements section of this report.

Fund financial staternents. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Washoe County, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
Each of the County's funds can be classified as either governmental, proprietary, or fiduciary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information can be useful
for gauging the County's near-term financial requirements.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities. These reconciliations are included with the basic financial statements in this report.

The County maintains twenty-three individual governmental funds. The governmental funds financial statements
provide separate details for the General Fund, Child Protective Services Fund, Other Restricted Fund, which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major funds is provided in the form of combining statements
in the non-major governmental funds section of this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison is
provided for each of the County's governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget. The budgetary
comparison statement for the General Fund, Child Protective Services Fund, and the Other Restricted Fund are
presented with the basic financial statements. The budgetary comparisons for all other governmental funds are
included in the fund financial statements and schedules included as supplementary information.

Proprietary Funds. The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Washoe
County uses enterprise funds to account for a sewer utility, golf courses and building permit activities. Internal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County's various
functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles and for self-insurance activities
including liability insurance, workers® compensation and group health insurance. Because these activities
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they are included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, but in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Utilities Fund and the Building
and Safety Fund, which are considered to be major funds. The remaining funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. All internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the
proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the remaining enterprise and internal service funds is
provided in the form of combining statements in the applicable sections of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the
County. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
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those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found in this report following the basic financial statements.

Other Information. Following the notes in this report, required supplementary information is presented concerning
the County’s progress in funding its obligations to provide retiree health benefits and pensions. Other information,
including combining and individual fund statements and schedules are presented after the basic financial statements,
notes and required supplementary information. In addition, unaudited statistical information is provided on a ten-year
basis, as available, for trend analysis and to provide historical perspective.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The County's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $308.9 million
at June 30, 2021, an increase of 69% from the prior year. This resulted primarily from the increases in the Business-
Type Activities. These factors are discussed in more detail in the notes to the financial statements.

Washoe County’s Net Position
{in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Aszels
Current and other assels 5 453,402 § 303,639 5 165,860 5 150,961 § 619,262 § 454 600
Net capital assets 442 605 459 615 164,324 146,024 606,929 605,639
Total assets 846,007 763,254 330,184 205,085 1,226,191 1,080,239
Deferred outflows of resources 82,001 91,633 1,340 1.502 B3,341 03,135
Liabilities
Current liabilities 78,566 72,947 8,760 6,138 85,326 79,085
Noncurrent liabilitles due within one year 70,6818 44 8905 2011 2676 72627 47 672
Noncurrent labilities due
in more than one year 674,403 T75,486 24 450 15,142 588,853 TH0,628
Total liabilitizs B23,585 893,428 33,221 23,956 856,808 917,385
Deferred inflows of resources 141,254 52,275 2621 730 143,875 53,005
Met position
Met investment in capital assels 341,530 350,022 145,824 138,476 487,354 498 308
Restricted 184,689 130,208 3,021 1515 187,710 131,813
Unrestricted (513,050) (581,037) 146 837 133,810 (266,213) (447 227)
Total nel position i 13,169 § (90817) § 205682 § 273,801 & 308,851 § 182984

The largest portion of the County's net position remains its investment in capital assets (e.q., land, buildings,
equipment and construction in progress), less any outstanding debt used to acquire them. Capital assets are used to
provide services to citizens and therefore are not regarded as being available to fund future spending. Similarly,
though they are reported net of related debt, the capital assets themselves will not be used to liguidate these
obligations.

Restricted net position of $187.7 million is an increase of $55.9 million from the prior year, and represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions (statutes, bond covenants, or granting agencies) on how they may be used.
Additional details concerning these restrictions are provided in the notes to the financial statements.
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Unrestricted net position represents resources that can be used to meet the County's other obligations to citizens
and creditors, though these resources may not be in spendable form. It is not uncommon for governments to report
negative net position, particularly in the governmental activities column. Unrestricted net position deficits commonly
arise because governments have long-term liabilities that they fund on a pay-as-you-go basis, appropriating
resources annually as payments come due rather than accumulating assets in advance. Washoe County's deficit in
unrestricted net position for governmental activities is $513.0 million in the current year as a result of the continuing
impact of GASE 68 and GASB 75.

The unrestricted net position of the County’s business-type activities of $146.8 million may not be used to fund

governmental activities.

Washoe County Changes In Net Position
{in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2021 2020 201 2020 2021 2020
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services 5 111,222 § 101,245 § 24118 5 21,870 § 135,338 5 123.215
Cperaling grants, interest and contributions 113,835 74,700 66 36 114,001 74,736
Capital grants, interest and contributions 12,597 19,286 12,394 9,660 24 951 28845
General revenues:
Ad valorem taxes 234,745 218,924 - - 234,745 215924
Cansolidated taxes 142,376 121,150 - - 142,376 121,150
Other intergovernmental 45402 38412 = - 45,402 38,412
Investment earmings 452 6418 108 5,272 561 11,680
Other 1 38 E - 1 39
Total revenues 660,730 581,274 36,685 36,738 89T 415 618,012
Expenses:
General government 115,871 121,081 - - 115,871 121,091
Judicial 78,233 84177 = z 79,233 84177
Public safety 179,342 192 592 E - 179,342 182,562
Public works 26,617 40,103 = - 26,617 40,103
Health and sanitation 31,154 24 383 = - 31,154 24,383
Welfare 99,080 100,398 - - 99,080 100,398
Culture and recreafion 21,781 24 380 - - 21,781 24,380
Community support il 199 - - 111 188
Interestfscal charges 4,355 4,477 - - 4.355 4.477
Utilities - - 11,776 13,064 11,776 13,064
Golf courses £ = 334 582 334 Ea2
Building permils - ! 2,694 2,941 2,694 2,841
Total Expenses 557 544 591,800 14,804 16,587 572,348 608,387
Change in net position 103,186 (10,528) 21,881 20,151 125,067 9,625
Met postion, July 1, as restated (20,017} (80,201} 273,801 253,850 183,784 173,359
Net postion, June 30 5 13,169 § (30817) § 295682 § 273801 § 308851 § 182984

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the County’s net position at June 30" by $103.2 million.
This increase was largely driven due to the increase in revenues from Ad valorem taxes, Consolidated taxes and
money received from the federal government due to the COVID-18 pandemic response.
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Revenues for ad valorem taxes were $15 million (7%) higher
than FY20. Consolidated sales taxes (received from the State)
increased for the eighth consecutive year, growing by $21
million (18%). Ad valorem taxes and consolidated taxes make
up 57% of revenues from governmental activities.

Operating program revenues increased $39 million (53%) when
compared to the prior year, The Federal govemment, in
response to the pandemic, provided a lot of money for the
COVID-19 pandemic this fiscal year to assist local governments
in responding to the pandemic.

Other general revenues increased $1 million (2%) when
compared to the prior year. Other general revenues include
sales and other taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
unrestricted investment eamings.

Capital program revenues decreased by $7 million or 35%
compared to fiscal year 2020. These revenues are subject to
fluctuation and such variation is not unusual,

Expenses for governmental aclivities decreased by $34
million {6%) compared to the prior year, primarily the result of
decreases in expenses that occurred in FY21 associated with
the COVID-19 pandemic and pension/OPEB costs. Total
expenses for public safety, public works, welfare and
community support and health & sanitation decreased during
the year. Some of these decreases in spending are a
reflection of COVID-18 recovery and were anticipated in the
budget.

General government costs decreased by $5 million (4%)
compared to the prior year because of costs associated with the
COVID-18 pandemic and in the pension/OPEB costs with offset
by increases in personnel costs for cost of living adjustments.

Public safety costs decreased by §13 million (7%) compared to
the prior year, in part due to decreased program activity levels
and costs associated with the COVID-19 pandemic and funded
CARES funds.

Total expenses in public works decreased $13 million {34%) for
this fiscal year because of anticipated budgeted decreased
expenses in the cumrent year associated with the COVID-19
pandemic.

Business-type Activities. Met position for FY21 of $295.7 million for business-type activities is $21.9 million more
than FY20. This increase is due to the net impact of increased revenues and decreased expenses year over year.

Revenue for business-type activities for FY21 was flat when compared to FY20. This was partially due to an increase
in operating revenue for FY21 from increases in new sewer customers and higher sewer rates in the Utility business
and an increase in building permits which was offset by a reduction in the investment earnings.
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Decreases in expenses for business-type activities for FY21 was $1.8 million when compared to FY20. The majority
of this decrease was within the Utility business and within repairs and maintenance, water and sewer, construction
in process write-offs and the capital contra expenses. FY21 repairs and maintenance expense was $0.3 million lower
than FY20 primarily due to manhole rehabs. FY21 investment interest was $0.6 million lower than FY20 due to the
lower earnings. FY21 construction-in-process write-off expense was $0.2 million lower than FY20 due to the write-
off of the Pleasant Valley Interceptor project in FY20. Lastly, the capital contra account had a $0.4 million higher
offset to expenses than FY20 primarily due to the FY21 South Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation facility
expansion project.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, Washoe County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s funding
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance can provide a useful measure of net resources available for
discretionary use since they represent fund balance which has not been limited to use for a particular purpose by
either an external party or the County itself.

At June 30, 2021, Washoe County's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $302.4 million, an
increase of $84.3 million in comparison to the prior year. This increase is primarily due to the increases in the General
Fund, Child Protective Services Fund, Other Restricted Fund and Other Governmental Funds. The increases were
in General Fund of $58.2 million, Child Protective Services Fund of $3.5 million, Other Restricted Fund of $5.8 and
Other Governmental Funds of $16.8 million increase in fund balance. Unassigned General Fund balance of $122.1
million is 40% of the total governmental fund balance. The remainder of fund balance is either nonspendable (not in
spendable form or legally required to be maintained intact); or restricted, committed or assigned for particular
purposes. Fund balances are discussed in greater detail in note 13.

General Fund. The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. Total fund balance increased $58 million
(62%) for the year primarily due to an increase of $36 million (10%) in revenue and a reallocation of funds due to
the COVID-19 pandemic. The revenue increase is attributed to an increase in ad valorem and consolidated taxes
which together consists of 82% of general fund revenue. Ad valorem taxes increased $13 million (V%) over prior
year and consolidated taxes increased $21 million (18%) over prior year.

General Fund - Ending Fund Balance The stabilization portion of fund balance represents funds reserved for
{im Millians) stabilization purposes in the event of a fiscal emergency, as authorized
$175 5 - by Nevada Revised Statutes 354.6115. Stabilization funding levels are
$150 | set by the Board of County Commissioners, and the balance is included
—_— = in restricted fund balance. On April 28, 2015, the Board of County
% rﬂswbﬂmﬂn Commissioners approved a policy change in stabilization funding, from
$100 1 | v mote a percentage of expenditures to a minimum amount of $3 million
§75 fﬁ'fég | committed. The stabilization fund balance was reduced to zero in FY18
sp | §122 DUnassigned due to expenditures for the January, 2017 and February, 2017 flood
568 [ events, The stabilization reserve was replenished back to its minimum
§25 amount of $3 million for FY19 by the BCC on May 21, 2019. For FY20,
$0 4 — the BCC on May 12, 2020 authorized the stabilization funding of 53
Fra1 Fra0 million to be used for the unexpected COVID-19 expenditures. For

5152 5 o4 FY21 the stabilization funding was replenished back to $3 million.

Other fund balances include non-spendable, restricted, committed assigned and unassigned amounts. The total of
these balances increased 59% in the current year, Restricted fund balance of $27.7 million is restricted for debt
service, the Incline Village Property Tax Refund Settlement, and Stabilization reserves. The committed and assigned
fund balance of $2.7 million is for major contracts and purchase orders extending into the following fiscal year.

"
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Child Protective Services Fund. The Child Protective Services Fund, a major fund managed by the Human
Services Agency, accounts for resources specifically appropriated to protect against the neglect, abandonment and
abuse of children in Washoe County. Federal and state grants are the primary funding sources, and together made
up 77% of the revenue for the year. Other revenue and ad valorem taxes are contributing 12% while service fees
are contributing 11%. Expenditures include personnel costs, as well as, expenditures for child protection and
placement, including emergency shelter, professional services, foster care, adoption subsidies, referral services,
and other operating services and supplies.

Ending fund balance of $10.5 million increased $3.5 million {51%) from prior year primarily due an decrease in
expenses for services and supplies. Restricted fund balance consists primarily of donations and private foundation
grants to support related expenditures. The remainder of the fund balance is committed for the support of child
protective programs.

Other Restricted Fund. The Other Restricted Fund, a major fund, accounts for various specific resources restricted
for specified purposes consistent with legal and operating requirements. Resources include; ad valorem tax
apportionments for Cooperative Extension support, car rental fees for the Reno baseball stadium debt, justice court
administrative assessments for court projects, fees and donations for Wilbur D. May Center support and grants and
restricted donations for General Fund departments. Ending fund balance of $24.8 million increased $0.7 million or
3% from the prior year due to increased Federal grant revenue for COVID-19 related expenditures.

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in greater detail and at the individual fund level. They are accounted for using the full accrual
basis of accounting; therefore, no reconciliation is required to the government-wide statements,

Utilities Fund. The Utilities Fund, a major fund, was established to account for County-owned and operated water
and sewer systems in the unincorporated areas of the County. Change in net position of the fund increased $19.9
million. When compared to the prior year's net position, the amount of increase is $3.3 million. An increase of $1.2
from operating activities and the collection of $5.6 million in hookup fees. There was a net decrease in the fair value
of investments of $4.3 million and $.8 million in operating expenses.

Building & Safety Fund. The Building & Safety Fund, a major fund, established to account exclusively for revenues
and expenses relating to the issuance of building permits, as established by NRS 354 59891. Ending net position of
the fund increased $1.5 million primarily due to the strong demand for building permits in the region.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Original budget compared to final budget. On January 12, 2021 with the Board of County Commissioners
approval of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the period ending June 30, 2020 an augmentation to
the General Fund budget of $5.0 million was approved for purchase orders extending into the following fiscal year
for services and supplies and capital outlay.

Final budget compared to actual results. Overall, revenues varied from the budget by 20% for the year due fo
increased consolidated tax revenue and reimbursement from the Federal Emergency Management Agency for
flood events in prior fiscal years. Overall expenditures varied only 4% from the final budget,

There was a 51% favorable variance to final budget in the community support function mainly attributable to lower
than planned spending for services and supplies.

There was an 11% favorable variance to final budget in the Public Works function mainly attributable to lower than
planned spending for capital outlay.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

The County’s investment in capital assets (net of depreciation) for its governmental and business-type activities
totaled $607 million at year end, as summarized below.

Washoe County Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
(in Thousands)

Govarnmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2024 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Land,use rights 5 151,068 § 160,727 § 8,268 % 7943 § 169,336 § 168,670
Plant capacity - - 825 B25 825 825
Construction in progress 16,241 24,707 25,688 7,383 42129 32,090
Land improvements 18.783 21,034 1,068 2,134 20.751 23,168
Buildingimprovements 150,238 157,592 a7,699 38,723 187,838 196,315
Infrastructure 84,008 85,462 88,308 87,906 172 316 172,368
Equipment 20,586 18.215 442 108 21,028 18,321
Software 1,680 1,878 106 125 1,788 2,003
Plant capacity, depreciable - : 820 8789 820 874

Total 5 442,605 § 458,615 § 164,324 § 146,024 § 606,929 3 605,638

Capital assets related to governmental activities decreased $17.0 million in comparison to the prior year, primarily
due to the net effect of current year depreciation of $328.5 million and the CIP assets associated with the "Cur Place”
project which was moved to a long term 25 year lease arrangement.

Capital assets related to business-type activities increased $18.3 million in comparison to the prior year. This is
primarily due to the construction of a new sewer plant being buiit.

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note 6.

OUTSTANDING DEBT

At June 30, 2021, the County's outstanding bonded debt totaled $139 million. Of this amount, $106 million is general
obligation debt backed by the full faith and credit of the County, and $3 million is special assessment debt for which
the County is liable in the event of default by property owners subject to the assessment. The remainder of the
County’s debt consists of revenue bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources.

Washoe County Outstanding Debt
(in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Typa Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
General Obligation Bends ] B7.204 § 84,432 § 18,500 § 7,548 % 105,704 5 91,980
Revenue Bonds 30.621 32,825 - . 30,621 32,825
Special Assessment Bonds 2,959 3,596 - - 2,958 3,506
Total 5 120,784 § 120,853 § 18,500 5 T.548 3 139,284 § 128,401
- == - S =

13
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Qutstanding debt related to governmental activities remained flat when compared to the prior year due to one new
bond issue offset by regularly scheduled principal payments, discounts, premiums and deferred charges on refunding.

Qutstanding debt for business-type activities increased 511 million from prior year due to the issue of new debt for
the cost of building a new sewer plant.

State Statute (NRS 2444 059) limits the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue to 10% of
its total assessed valuation. The current limitation for the County is $1.9 billion, which is $1.8 billion in excess of the
County’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information regarding the County’'s long-term debt can be found in notes 9, 10, and 11 to the financial
statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

Washoe County continued its response to the COVID-19 pandemic by serving the residents of the County as a
regional response with the Cities of Reno and Sparks by forming a unified incident command structure to respond to
the COVID-19 crisis. At the onset of the pandemic the County took actions to protect the health of the community,
and County employees, by maintaining continuity of its critical and essential business functions and avoiding
widespread impacts to its workforce from the COVID-19 outbreak. This unified structure included a cost-sharing
agreement for the portion of the emergency response costs to maximize reimbursements from federal funding
sources including the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the CARES Act.  On April 30, 2020,
the Governor of Nevada introduced the *Nevada United: Roadmap to Recovery” plan that outlined a phased approach
to reopening Nevada business and industry. Cancellations and postponements of events at major venues within the
County occurred and travel through Reno-Tahoe International Airport declined, however in May 2021, Reno-Tahoe
International Airport total passengers increased 557% from the prior year.

As of June 1, 2021, more than 200,000 County residents have been fully vaccinated — 52.49%. As of September 24,
2021, Washoe County recognized its 800" death caused by COVID-19. The County continues to adhere to State
directives, and to the Center of Disease Control guidelines in reopening of the State of Nevada and its businesses.
During the pandemic closures, the County did not have to reduce its workforce. Personnel necessary to the operation
of the County's facilities remained on-site with mask requirements, temperature checks and strategies utilized to
promote “social distancing”. The County learned to operate with much of its workforce working remotely and/or hybrid
schedules and by limiting non-essential business travel.

During this past fiscal year, the County was allocated over $20 million in federal CARES Act funding through the
State, a $6.6 million federal Emergency Rental Assistance grant, and has been awarded over $91 million in federal
funding under the America Rescue Plan Act. It is required that the $91 million be fully spent by December 2026.
Eligible uses for use of these funds include, but are not limited to, public health/negative economic impact, revenue
loss, investment in water, sewer and broadband. Washoe County will conduct a process to identify the most urgent,
wide-ranging, and impactful public health needs related to the COVID-18 public health emergency. Guidance states
that the use of these funds must be incurred by December 31, 2024 and expended with all work performed and
completed by December 31, 2026.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances for all interested parties. Questions
concerning the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Washoe County Comptroller, 1001 E. 9" Street, Room D-200, Reno, NV 89512, This report will also be
available on the County's web site (hitps:/www.washoecounty.govicomptroller/Annual Comprehensive Financial
Reporifindex.php). Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District is included in this report as a discretely presented
component unit. This entity issues its own separately audited financial statements, which is filed at the Washoe
County Clerk’s Office, 1001 E. 9" Street, Room A-150, Reno, Nevada 89512,
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Assets
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments (MNote 4)
Accounts receivable
Consolidated tax receivable
Property taxes recaivable
Other taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Due from other govemments
Internal balances
Inventory
Deposits and other assets
Long-term restricied cash and investments (Mote 4)
Long-term assels (Motes 5)
Capital Assets: (Mote 8)
Mondepreciable

Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding
Defarred outfiows of resources - Pensions (Note 14)
Deferred oulflows of respurces - Other post
employmant benefits (OPERB) (Mote 15)
Total Deferred Outilows of Resources
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salares and benefits
Contracts/retention payable
Interast payable
Due to other governments
Other liabilities (Note 7)
Unearmed revenue (Mote 8)
Noncurment Liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in mora than one year, payable from
restricted assets
Due in mere than one year
Met pension liability (Mote 14)
OFER lability (Mote 15)
Other liabilities
Tofal Liabilities.
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Drefizrred inflows of resources - Pensions (Note 14)
[Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (Nole 15)
Tofal Deferred Inflows of Resources
Met Position
Met investment in capital assels
Restricled for;
General govemment
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health and sanitation
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Debt sanvice
Capital projects
Claims
Unrestricted
Toftal Net Posifion

5

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021

Primary Governmant

Component Unit

Governmental Business-type Truckee Meadows Fire
Activities Activities Total Protection District
377,556,322 § 140124308 § 517,680,630 § 18,807,940
785,060 1,237,778 2022838 906,806
7678544 1,513,677 9192221 433 468
26,464 6BS - 26,454 636 -
1,754,924 - 1,754,924 .
11,026,783 - 11,026,783 117,805
848,981 310,384 1,159,365 44921
21,073,969 2,770,009 23,843 978 5,308,250
(19,697,199) 19 667,199 - -
331,774 . 331,774 -
1,321,232 55,035 1,377 167 144,718
2,274,000 - 2,274 000 -
21,982.786 150,557 22,133,343 -
167,308 430 34 980,850 202,290,280 7,140,013
275.295.616 128,343,080 404 638,706 25.299.479
BOS 006,908 330,183,787 1,226,190,695 58,212,400
342 899 89,174 412,073 -
64,172,784 815,358 65,0858 143 8,678,738
17,485,046 355 601 17,840,647 3,480,645
82,000,729 1,340,134 83,340,863 12,160,383
12,221,260 1,051,146 13,272 406 3160127
8,394,650 127,631 8522281 -
201,333 2,365,184 2,566,517 -
620,653 128 474 750,127 21,984
4 966,285 661,837 5828122 T84 448
4,240 288 383,708 4,632,994 8,084
47,012,243 1,840 BEG 49,753,109 5125
70618471 2.011,327 T2,627,798 3,115,086
2,274,000 - 2,274,000 -
420,005,157 5,631,441 425,636,508 35,281,344
106,811,685 1,766,221 108,577,908 6.411,124
145311433 17,052 462 162,363,915 11,067,161
B23 584 A58 33,221,315 256,805,773 55 854 481
26,054 747 205277 26,350,024 2,125,634
115,109,274 2325472 117,524,746 188,753
141 254 021 2,620,749 143,874,770 2314 287
341,530,086 145,823,872 487,353,938 27,386,298
34 669,605 - 34 B50,805
11,365,489 - 11,365 480 -
26,546 371 1,842 0759 28,385 450 1,782,959
137,406 - 137 406 -
16,014,121 . 16,014,121 :
4,890,336 - 4,580 336 -
3,342,701 . 3,342 701
12,604,567 1,178 865 13,783,432 -
38,650,032 - 38,650,032 -
36,468,049 - 36,468,048 560,165
{513,049,785) 146,837 041 (366,212, 744) {21,525,447)
13,169,158 § 295681 857 § 308,851,015 5 8,204,015

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program Revenues

Indirect Qperating Capital
Expenses Charges for Grants, Interest, Grants, Interest,
Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General government 5 115871372 § (5316912) § 42,503,964 § 28693427 § 14,715
Judicial 79,233,152 - 7,577,362 4,710,063 -
Public safety 179,341,668 652,553 31,283,056 4,520,491 924,534
Public works 26,616,793 430 947 8,161,662 4,726,445 10,558 467
Health and sanitation 31,154,374 1,586,554 8,725,647 22,281,578 400,209
Wellare 88,079,834 2,566,144 11,810,620 47,968 662 28,553
Culture and recreation 21,781,234 T1.714 158,799 1,135,087 669,407
Community support 111,450 - - = =
Interest on long-term debt 4 354,818 - - - =
Total Governmental Activities 557 544,893 - 111,221,310 113,935,763 12,596,885
Business-type Activities:
Utilities 11,775,808 - 19,356,964 60,336 12,393,556
Golf courses 333,800 - 367.551 5,637 -
Building and Safety 2,604,064 - 4,381,725 - -
Total Business-lype Activities 14,803,882 . 24 116,240 65973 12,393,556
Taotal Primary Government § 572348775 8 - § 135337550 § 114,001,736 $ 24,990,441
Component Unit:
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District & 42662073 § - & 1487666 § BEB 825 § 530,890
Debl service 280,777 . - - N
Total Component Units 3 42 952 850 § - % 1487666 S BGE.B25 § 530,950

General Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Unrestricted intergovemmental revenues:
Consolidated taxes
LGTA sales taxes
Infrastructure sales tax
Other taxes and intergovernmental revenues
Ciher miscellaneous
Unrestricted investment eamings
Zain on sales of capital assets

Total General Revenues
Change in Met Position
Net Position (Deficit) , July 1, as restated (note 19)

Met Position, June 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statment,
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Net {(Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Component Unit

Truckee Meadows

Governmental  Business-type Fire Protection
Activitios Activities Total District
§  (39.442354) - & {39,442 354)
(66,045 727) - (66,945 727)
(143,266,340) - (143 266,340)
(3,610,166) - (3,610,166)
(333,284) - (333 294)
(41,837 .143) - (41,837,143)
{19.889,645) - (19,889 645)
{111,450) = {111.450)
(4,354 816) - (4,354,816)
{319,790,935) 7 (31%,790,935)
20,034,547 20,034,947
39.279 38,278
1,697,661 1,697,661
- 21,771,887 21,771,887
{319,790,935) 21,771,887 (298,019,048)
3 (39,774,592)
(290,777)
(40,065,369)
234,744,842 - 234,744,842 21,142,353
142,376,192 - 142.376.192 10,396,577
17,269,476 - 17,269,476 -
13.037 229 - 13.037.229 -
3,041,589 - 3.041 589 1,628,553
12.054,012 - 12,064,012 3,566,281
451,824 108,516 560,340 66,724
1,485 - 1,485 -
422 976,649 108,516 423,085,165 36,800,488
103,185,714 21,880,403 125,086,117 (3,264, 881)
(90,016,556) 273,801,454 183,784,898 11,468,856
3 13,168,158 § 2950681857 § 308,851,015 § 8,204,015

The netes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statment.



Assets

Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments (Mote 4)
Accounts receivable
Consolidated tax receivable
Property taxes recelvable
Other taxes recelvable
Interest recelvable

Due from other funds

Due from other govemments
Deposits and prepaid items

Total Assels

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued salares and benefits
Contracts/retention payable
Due to other funds

Due to other governments
Due to others

Deposits (Note 7)

Other liabilities (Mote T)
Unearned revenue {Note 8)

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources (Note 8)
Unavailable revenue - grants and other

revernue
Unavgilable revenue - property (axes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances (Mote 13)
Monspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

Tolal Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resourcas, and Fund Balances

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2021

General Child Protective Other Restricted
Fund Services Fund Fund
128,809,389 3 B.264.413 § 79,093,754
750,000 - 35,060
1,255,874 36,068 268 365
26,464 656 . .
1,447,333 51,385 12,852
5,293,965 - 458 470
519,854 - 12,653
5,675,184 : -
2,150,031 5.471.618 2,548,301
150,132 - 5474
173,516,458 5 13,823,454 82,732 B3B8
3446143 § 2,313,387 2,376,421
6,267,152 760,745 169,638
- - 40,153
5,645,171 3 :
738,029 7241 1,548,272
168,883 - 40,785
3,663,840 - 26,997
. BOD -
B - 47,812 243
18,830,218 3,091,173 52,112,500
- 236,525 5,793,665
1,196,686 42 506 10,629
1,196,886 279,031 5,804,294
150,132 - 5,474
27,550,000 160,679 24 450 349
444 769 10,282 611 945,300
2,257 4B7 . -
122,086,966 = (5894,088)
162 489,354 10,453,280 24 816,035
173,516,458 & 13,623,494 3 82,732,838

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemenl.
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Other Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

5 103,212.911 § 320,380,477

- 785,060

804,888 2,455,195

. 26,464 686

243,344 1,754,024

5,274,339 11,026,783

108,746 731,153

789 5,675,983

10,474 403 20,942,353

5,791 161,387

k] 120,305,221 § 390,378,011

] 2,961,126 § 11,097,077

1,101,727 §,308.262

161,180 201,333

g62 5,646,133

2,452 756 4,745,208

- 209,668

304,421 3.805,258

17 064 17,864

- 47,912,243

6,999,236 B2 033,136

3,490 854 8,521,044

204 447 1,454 4688

3,685 301 10,975,512

- 155,606

88,532,950 140,702 978

12,600,517 24 283197

BATT 217 10,734,704

- 121,492 878

109,610,684 207,369,362

5 120,305,221 § 380, 378,011

The noles fo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

20



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONMCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 3 207 358 363

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different becausa:

Capital assets used |n governmaental activities are not financial resources and therefors ara
not reported in governmental funds,

Governmental capital asssls 3 1,278,595,3689
Less accumulated depreciation (848, 416,089)
430,179,290
Deferred Outflows of resources are nat available to pay for current parlod exped|iures, and,
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.
Daferred Qutfiows - PERS Pension B4,172,784
Deferred Cutilows - OPEB Pension 17,485,046
Deferred Charge on Refunding 342 859
82,000,729
Other assets uged In governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in govemmental funds
MNotes Receivable 7435514
Prapaid bond Insurance 331,258
Prepaid building lease 13,070,648
20,837 420
Other Babiliies are not due and payable in the current peried and thersefore are not
reported in governmantal funds.
Lease payabla based on the amartization of non level payments (42,483)
Refunds payabile - Incline Villags Proparty Tax Refund Ssiflemant (23,800,000)
Interfund payable (28,850)
Accreted |nterest 112,365,307)
(36,237 B840)
Lang-tarm liabillles, including bonds payable and accrued interest, are net dus and payable
in the current pericd and therefore are not reported in govermnmental funds.
Governmental bonds payable {116,819,575)
Bond premiums, discounts and charge on refundings (3,963,955)
Apcrued interest payable (B20,653)
Polkution remediation obligation {4,770,578)
Net Pensicn Liability (420,005,157)
Nelt OPEB Liablity (108,811,685)
Compensated absencas (33,054,348)
(BEG, 045 961)

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
are applicable to future periods and, tharefore, are not reportad in the governmeantal furds,

Daferrad Inflows - pension (25,054,747)
Daferred Inflows - other postemployment benefits (115,188,274)

(141,254 .021)
Revenues that wers not available to fund current expenditures
and therefare are not reported in governmental funds. 10,875,513

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the casts of cartain
activities to individual funds. Net position of internal service funds k= reported
with govemmental activities.

Total net position of intemal service funds 55,032,873
Internal balances receivable from busmess-type actvities 1,454,057
56,486 910
Governmental funds report allocations of Indirect expenses to enterprise
funds. However, in the Statemant of Activities indirect expensas are eliminaied. {21,142 ,445)
Tatal Met Position of Governmental Activities 3 13,169,158

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues
Taxes:

Ad valorem

Car rental fee

Other laxes

Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenuess
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

Toftal Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health and zanitation
Wellare
Culture and recreation
Community support
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Debt service fees and other fiscal charges
Bond issuance cosls

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Qver (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Usas)
Proceeds from asset disposition
Proceeds from bonds issued

Bond premium

Refunding bonds issued

Refunding payment to escrow agent
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Usas)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, as restated

Fund Balances, June 30

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

General Child Protective Other Restricted
Fund Services Fund Fund

193,173,513 § 6,743,520 1,685,902
- - 1,313,586

623,789 -
10,794 523 20,280 .
170,111,827 43,600,696 20,501,705
23423125 6,162,524 4,244 301
6,754,416 - 2,593,360
2,761,286 101,189 2,192,101
407 542 479 56,628,229 41,530,955
46,173,142 - 25,265,363
72,272,853 6,676,008
150,480,348 - 3,805,770
13,334,503 293,844
1,753,495 61,029,108 73977
16,470,205 - 651,259
107,892 - .

4 043 577 - 1,680,000
303,636,016 61,029,108 39,045 421
104,006,463 (4,400,879) 2,485,534
- - 5412

1,084 865 7,545 658 .
(46,869, 778) - (1,781.840)
(45,784,914} 7.945,658 (1,776,428)
58,221 548 3,544 780 TOO.106
94 267,805 6,908,510 24 106,929
152 460,364 3§ 10,453,280 24 816,035

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral par of this stalement.



Other Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

31723204 § 233,326,139
- 1,313,586

1,447 634 2,071,323
758,360 T58.360
5,398,370 16,213,183
51,122,276 204 336,504
14,966,279 48,796,229
138,500 9 487 276
7,101,368 12,155 854
112 656,891 618,458,554
466,994 71,8905 489

- 78,948 861
23,388,650 177,674,769
14,319,320 28,547 8667
33614 416 33,614 416
37,595,747 100,451,527
2,470,164 18,581 628

- 107,892

5,880,853 11,713,530
11,413,478 11,413 478
18,917,650 19,917 8650
3,321,116 3,321,116
55,932 55832
350,636 350 636
152 904 0556 556,614 601
{40,247, 165) 61,843 953
1,485 6,897
8,135,000 9,135,000
1.411.220 1411,220
9,685,000 0,685,000
140,000 140,000
54,009,321 63,035,845
{17,368, 226) (66,039,845)
57,003,800 17,388,117
16,756,635 78,232,070
92 854 049 218,137,293
100,610,684 3§ 297,369,363




WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Met Change in Fund Balances - Governmeantal Funds

Amaounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
differant because:

Govemmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives,

Expenditures for capital assets 3

Less current year depreciationfamortization

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in govemnmmental funds.

Donated capital assets

Changs in unavailable revenue

Bond proceeds provide curent financial resources to governmental funds, but issulng debt
increases long-term labiities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of bond principle is an
axpenditure in governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement
of Met Position. This is the amount by which bonds issued excesdad repaymeants:

Bonds Issued

Bond principal payments

Some expensas reportad in the Statement of Acfivities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Amaortization of bond premium

Amortization of deferred charge on refunding

Amortization of bond prepaid insurance

Change of prepaid equipment lease

Change in lzase payable

Changa in prepaid building lease

Change in Note Receivable

Change in compensated absences

Change in remediation obligation

Change in pension expanse

Change in OPEE expenssa

Change in accrued interest payable

Change in accreted interest capital apprecistion bonds

Disposifion of capital assets

Intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities
to individual funds. The net revenue (expense} of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities.

Change in net position of internal senvice funds

Intemal charges reporied in business activities

Change In Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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10,538,374
(27,226,781)

30,150
694,311

382,825
47,193
331,259

(48,751)

28,322

13,070,678

7435514

(2,611,808}

132,434

(5,665,922)
20,267 666

93,867

(1417 4564)
(1,764,814}

B,084, 328
[545,588)

& 79,232,070

(16,688,407}

724 461

(18,830,000)
19,917 649

30,391,201

8,438,740

:

103,185,714



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GEMERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
5oz Variance to
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem § 191201430 § 161201430 § 193173513 § 1,972,083
Other taxes 200,000 200,000 623,789 423,789
Licenses and pemmits 9,740,793 9,740,793 10,794,523 1,063,730
Intergovernmental revenues 107,864,064 107 654,064 170,111,827 62,247,763
Charges for services 21,228,680 21,228,680 23,423,125 2,194 445
Fines and forfeitures 4,417,282 4417282 6,754 416 2,337,134
Miscellaneous 4 048,685 4 048 685 2,761,286 (1,287.399)
Total Revenues 338,700,934 338,700,934 407 542 479 68,941,545
Expenditures by Function and Activity
General Government:
Legislative 841.313 805,313 783,280 22,033
Exgcutive 6,580,810 6,520,810 5,498,554 1,022 256
Elections 2449125 2,449 125 2,435,208 13,917
Finance 14 454 044 14,454 043 13,421,988 1,032 045
ther General Government 24,0904 464 23,424 005 24 034 102 {610,007)
Total General Government 48,220,756 47 653,386 46,173,142 1,480,244
Judicial:
District Attorney 24,493 766 24,403,766 22 898 682 1,595,084
District Court 23,841,608 23,841,608 23,495 794 345,814
Public Defense 14 660,053 14,660,053 14,206, 848 453 205
Justice Courts 12,225 481 12,225 481 11,486,344 720137
Incline Constable 203672 203,672 181,855 11,717
Undesignated Judicial (2,730,493) (2,739,4593) (16,770) (2,722,723)
Toial Judicial 72,685,087 72,685,087 72,272 853 412,234
Public Safety:
Sheriff and Detention 126,761,251 127,372,001 124,401,435 2,970,656
Medical Examiner 4 4499 832 4,499 832 4 509,349 (9.817)
County Manager 5,833,961 5,741,529 1,474 346 4,267,183
Juvenile Services 16,958,672 16,858,872 15,279,857 1,679,015
Protective Services 6,169,687 6,169,607 5675978 493 719
Undesignated Public Safety (2,814,223) (3.861,431) (860,616} {3.000,815)
Total Public Safety 157,408,380 158,880,590 150,480,349 6,400 241
Public Works:
Community Services Depariment (C50) 15,497,985 14,929 440 13,234 503 1,584 945
Total Public Works 15,497,985 14,828 449 13,334,503 1,594 946
Welfare:
Human Services 2,035,946 1,887,736 1,753,485 134,241
ol Wiaiare 2,035,846 1,887,736 1,753,495 134,241
Culture and Recreation:
Library 10,264 365 10,264,364 9,385 226 869,138
CSD - Regional Parks and Open Space 6,718,789 6,718,799 6,077 285 641,514
Undesignated-Culture & Recreation (576,944) (576.904) (2,306} (574,688)
Total Culture and Recreation 16,406,220 16,406,169 15,470,205 935,984

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
2 : Variance to
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Community Support 5 219,761 3 218,761 % 107,892 § 111,869
Intergovernmental 4,053,475 4,053,475 4 043577 9,898
Total Expenditures 317,537,620 314,715,653 303,636,016 11,079,637
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower (Under) Expenditures 21,163,314 23,885,281 104,006,463 80,021,182
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Surplus supplies sales - 5,000 - (5,000)
Contingency 750000 . - -
Transfers in 1,083,400 1,142,030 1,084,865 (57,165)
Transfers out {38,960,760) (41.598,760) (46,868,779} {5,270,015)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (37,127,360) (40.452,730) (45, 784.914) {5,332,184)
Met Change in Fund Balances (15,864,046) (16,467 449) 58,221,545 74,688 993
Fund Balances, July 1 64,587 437 67,625,908 94,267 805 26,641 897
Fund Balances, June 30 5 48623391 § 51,158.450 § 152480354 $ 101,330,895

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

26



Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Licenses and Permits:
Day care licenses
Intergovemmental Revenueas:
Federal grants
Slate granis
Charges for Services:
Service fees
Miscellaneous:
Conlributions and donations
Other

Taotal Revenues

Expenditures

Welfare Function:
Salaries and wages
Employee bensfits
Services and supplies
Capltal outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers:

General Fund

Indigent Tax Levy Fund

Taotal Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Met Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA

CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICES FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
; i Variance to
Original Final Actual Budget
§ G,676,888 § 6,676,868 § 6,743,520 § 66,632
22,500 22,500 20,280 {2,210
28,326,513 34,015,540 25,429 951 (8,585 579)
18,046,916 18,851,223 18,170,735 (680,488)
6,017,000 6,017,000 6,162,524 145,524
- 26,199 26,180 -
: 107,500 75,000 (32,500)
59,080,817 65,716,850 56,628,229 (8,088,521)
20,542,285 20,662,065 19,276,581 1,385 475
11,325,442 11,428,713 10,421,840 1,006,873
34,643,752 41,683,247 31,306,617 10,376,630
154,200 154,200 24,060 130,140
66,665,679 73,928,226 51,028,108 12,899,118
{7,675,862) (8.211,3786) (4,400,879) 3,810,497
447,237 447,237 447 237 =
7,498,422 7498 422 7.408,422
7,845 659 7,845 658 7.845,659 &
369,797 {2685,717) 3,544 T8O 3,810,487
6,200,011 6,835,526 6.208,510 72,984
§ 6,569,808 & B,580.802 5 10,453,290 § 3,883 481

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
OTHER RESTRICTED FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Car rental
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal granis
Federal narcotics forfeltures
State grants
Local contributions
Charges for Senvices:
General Government:
Recorder fees
Map fees
ASSES50T COMMISSions
Other
Judicial
Public Safety
Fublic Works
Weliare
Culture and Recreation
Fines and Forfeitures:
Court fines
Forfeitures/bail
Mizcellaneous:
Investment eamings

Met increase (decrease) in the

fair value of investments

Confributions and donations

Other
Total Revenues

Expenditures

General Government Function:

County Manager:
Salaries and wages
Employee banefits
Services and supplies
Capital Quflay

Assessor
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Clerk:
Sarvices and supplies

Reqistrar of Voters:
Salaries and wages
Employee banefits
Services and supplies
Capital oullay

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Variance to
Original Final Actual Budget
5 1668221 § 1,669,221 & 1,685,002 % 16,681
1,558,970 1,558,970 1,313,586 {245,384)
4,660,151 41,758,380 27,486,888 (14,269 482)
110,800 110,800 34,651 (76,249)
5100 1,131,627 1,340,645 208,018
692 963 B72,885 639,611 {233,284)
402 000 402,001 T2T 490 325489
94,000 94,000 66,905 (27,005)
525,000 525,000 807 849 282 949
6,000 5,000 26,855 20,855
1,391,500 1,391,500 1,049,256 (342,244)
1,043 213 1,043,213 1,271,650 228437
110,685 110,695 137,608 26,913
90,000 80,000 89,516 (484)
253.408 253 408 67,072 (186,338)
2,794,545 3.733.473 2,478,525 (1,254 948)
80,100 80,100 114,835 34,735
49 550 45 550 81,318 31,768
= = {B7,815) (B7,915)
320,000 13,769,613 1,137.227 (12,632,386)
55,549 25,000 1,041,471 1,016,471
15,922 765 68,673 446 41,530,955 (27 142,491)
- 45,962 (45,962)
- - 6,132 (6,132)
- 27,303,858 21,123,781 6,180,077
- - 870,109 {870,108)
- 27,303,858 22 045 884 5,257,874
375,000 2118611 588,527 1,520,084
150,000 150,000 - 150,000
525,000 2,268,611 598 527 1,670,084
6,050 67,660 4,873 62,7687
- 277479 277,598 {118)
. - 2 2)
- 1,397,661 1,190,728 197,833
- 441 826 350,119 82,707
- 2,116,968 1,835,447 280,519
(CONTINUED)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
OTHER RESTRICTED FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual V;’f"‘ il
Recorder;
Salarles and wages 3 86711 & 88,711 77,903 8,808
Employes benefits 35,762 35,762 35,630 132
Services and supplies 236,203 3,520,852 576,567 2,544,385
358,676 3,643,425 690,100 2,953,325
Technology Services:
Senvices and supplies 94,000 306.815 89,354 217 461
Community Develapment:
Services and supplies - 37a 78 301
Total General Government Funclion 883,726 35,707 714 25,265,363 10,442,351
Judictal Function:
District Court:
Salaries and wages TAT 274 T47,275 679,210 GB,065
Employes benefits 440,108 440,108 433,145 6,963
Services and supplies 1,731,992 9,104,908 1,017,562 8,087,346
Capital outlay 457 8974 457,974 - 457,974
3,377,348 10,750,265 2,128.997 8,620,348
District Attomey:
Salaries and wages 2,300,011 3,560,337 2,234 619 1,325,718
Employee banefits 1,298,567 1,652,981 1,141,362 511,619
Services and supplies 234 BBO 1,530,543 437 433 1,093,110
3.833,438 6,743,861 3.813,414 2,930,447
Justice Courts:
Reno Justice Court:
Salaries and wages 44 500 54,505 B.47T 48,118
Employes Benefits - - 559 (555)
Services and supplies 252 755 3,072,436 466,830 2,605,606
297,255 3,127,031 473 866 2 653,165
Sparks Justice Court:
Salaries and wages 33,085 22,887 9,463 13,424
Employee Benefits - - 167 (167}
Services and supplies 6535 805 810,628 131,596 679032
873,000 833,515 141,226 692,289
Incline Justice Court:
Senvices and supplies - 114,268 30 495 74,770
Wadsworth Justice Court:
Salaries and wages - 8,000 - 8,000
Services and supplles - 204,144 9,444 194,700
- 212,144 5,444 202,700
Incling Constable:
Services and supplies - 251 - 251
(CONTINUED)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
OTHER RESTRICTED FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Varlance to
Original Final Actual Budget
Neigborhood Justice Center:
Services and supplies $ - % 125,000 & 68,643 § 56,357
Total Judiclal Function 8,361,041 21,906,335 5,676,008 15,230,327
Public Safety Function:
County Manager:
Salaries and wages = 240,830 51,777 198,062
Employee benefits . 86.814 30,286 66,528
Services and supplies - 475,868 176,196 298,672
- 812,521 258,259 554 262
Sheriff.
Salaries and wages 308,753 8,855,093 546,040 8,308,153
Employee benefits 105.088 4,236,035 138,531 4,096,504
Services and supplies 435,488 6,407,443 1,588,414 4,819,020
Capital outlay - 850,075 225,569 633,606
849 329 20,357,646 2,500,454 17,857,192
Medical Examiner:
Salaries and wages - 84 839 62,741 22,098
Employee benefits B 39,720 33,030 6,680
Services and supplies 36,814 227,318 78,882 146,435
36,814 351 877 174,653 177.224
Fire Suppression:
Salaries and wages - 10,529 - 10,529
Services and supplies - 300 770 (470)
- 10,828 770 10,058
Juvenile Services:
Salaries and wages 523,231 523,231 191,867 331,364
Employee benefits 150,839 150,889 76,973 73,916
Services and supplies 400,434 3,345,743 603,564 2,742,178
1,074,554 4,019,863 872,404 3,147,459
Emergency Management:
Salaries and wages 112,215 239,310 81,777 187,533
Employee benefits 57,328 86,814 30,286 56,6528
Sarvices and supplies - 475,568 175,426 300,142
169,543 801,692 257 489 544,203
Total Public Saféty Function 2,130,240 25,541 807 3,808,770 21,736,137
Public Works Function:
CSD - Public Works:
Salaries and wages 66,803 66,804 66,645 158
Employee benefits 35,823 35,823 36,902 (1,079
Services and supplies 696.817 880,865 718,682 161,983
Capital outiay - 74 648 71415 3,233
Total Public Works Function 700,443 1,058,140 803,844 164 206
(CONTINUED)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement.

30



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
OTHER RESTRICTED FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
R Variance to
Original Final Actual Budget
Welfare Function:

Human Services:

Services and supplies E 135,784 § 135,784 3 73177 & 62,607
Total Welfare Function 135,764 135,784 T3ATT 62,607
Culture and Recreation Function:

Library:

Services and supplies - 43,954 43,880 74

CSD - Regional Parks and Open Space:

Salaries and wages 35,182 35,182 35,270 (88)
Employee benefits 18,218 18.218 18,187 a1
Services and supplies 901,549 1,025,110 06,838 028,272

954,949 1,078,510 150,295 028,215

May Center:

Salaries and wages 285,010 285,010 245,513 30,497

Employee benefits 115,599 115,599 111,647 3,952

Senvices and supplies 267,181 346,263 89,824 246,338

667,790 45,872 457,084 289,788

Total Culture and Recreation Function 1,622,739 1,869,336 651,259 1,218,077
Intergovernmental:

Cooparative Extension apportionment 1,668,221 1,669,221 1,680,000 (10,779)
Total Expenditures 15,722,194 87,888,437 39,045,421 48,843,016
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 200,571 (19,214 ,991) 2,485,534 21,700,525
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from asset disposition - - 5412 5412
Transfers:

General Fund {54, 400) {143,030) (159.785) (16,756)

Debt Service Fund {1,558,970) (1,558,970) {1,462.931) 96,034

Capital Improvemeant Fund - {1,568, 266) (158,123) 1,408,143
Tolal Other Financing Sources (Usesz) (1,643,370) (3,270.266) {1.776.428) 1,453,838
Net Change in Fund Balances (1,442 794) (22,485 257) 708,108 23,184 363

Fund Balances, July 1 2,484 978 23,527 436 24,106,929 570,493
Fund Balances, June 30 3 1042178 § 1,042,170 § 24,816,035 § 23,773,856

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets
Current Azzets:
Cash and investments (Mote 3)
Restricted cash and investments (Note 4)
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaids items
Due from other govemments
Inventory
Other asseis

Total Current Assets

Moncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash and investments (Note 4)
Lang-term receivables and other assets (Mote 5)
Capital Assets: (Mote B)
Mondepreciable:
Land
Flant capacity
Construction in prograss
Depreciable:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Equipment
Software
Plant, well capacity
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Moncurrent Assels

Total Aszzets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Daferrad outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred outflows of resources refated to OPEB
Deferrad charge on refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Rezources
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and banefits
Compensated absences (Notes 9.10)
Contracts/retention payable
Interest payable
Due to other governments
Uneamed revenue (Mote 8)
Other llabilities (Note 7)
Motes, bonds, leases payable (Motes 9,10,11)
Deposits
Panding claims {Mote 16)

Tatal Current Liabilities

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Building Nonmajor Activities
Utilities and Safety Golf Course Internal Service
Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
5 128806992 § 7268296 § 3948020 140,124,308 3 57,175,844
1,237,778 . - 1,237,778 -
1,421,361 - 92,316 1,513,677 5,223,348
285,686 15,856 B.B42 310,384 117,625
- - - - 57,718
2,770,009 - - 2,770,009 122,825
- . - - 331,777
64,726 - - 64,726 9,883
134 686,552 T.285,152 4,048,178 146,020,882 63,039,321
i = . 2,274 000
150,557 - - 150,557 2,237 409
7,659,714 - 608,353 8,268,067
- 825,150 825,150 -
25 887,633 - - 25,687,633 2.538,067
2,404,820 - 4 080,561 5,485,381 =
50,470,945 - 1,258,356 80,729,301 24,8990
134,534 095 - - 134,534,095 -
1,147,404 71,366 164,804 1,383,674 31,916,058
822,000 254 630 - 1,076,630 .
2,368,822 - = 2,368 822 -
(72,104,064) (220,689) {4,909,960) (77,234,713) (22,053 360)
162,341,926 105,307 2,027,264 164.474 497 16,937,254
297.028.478 7,300,459 5,076,442 310,495,379 78,876,575
510,439 379,618 25,302 915,359 -
201,728 153,875 - 365,601 -
69,174 69,174 -
781,339 533,493 25,302 1,340,134 -
1,041,458 3,225 6,465 1,051,146 1,081,700
70,548 56,330 752 127 631 86,386
240,410 161,080 - 401,500 283,821
2,365,184 - - 2,365,184 -
129.474 - - 129,474 -
TO7 483 . 684,374 861,637 11,319
131,859 1,709,007 - 1,840, 866 336,168
376,005 - 376,095 -
1,609,827 - - 1,608,827
. 4 000 3.6M T.B11 -
X % L - 11,619,000
6,762.317 1,833,652 75.202 8771171 13,428 392
(CONTINUED)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Moncurrent Liabilities: {(Motes 9,10,11,18)
Compensated absences
Due to other governmenis
MNotes, bonds, leases payable
Other long term liabilities - Pensions
Other long term liabilities - OPEB
Unearned revenue (Mote &)
Pending claims
Pending claims payable from restricled cash

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Tolal Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources refated o pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to OFPEB
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Met Position

MNet investment in capital assets
Restricted for fulure claims
Restricted for debi service
Restricled for unearmed revenue
Unrestricted

Tolal Met Position

Indirect expenses reported In the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position are not reported in
the Statement of Activitizs to enhance comparability
between governments that allocate indirect expenses
and those that do not.

Adjustrment to reflect the consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds,

Met Position of Business-type Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF MNET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Building Nonmajor Activities
Utilities. and Safety Golf Course Internal Service
Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
3 85,350 57,190 § - % 142,540 § 104,310
17,581 - - 17,581 .
16,800,239 : = 16,800,239 =
2,866,676 2,310,106 454,659 5,631,441
1,229,230 536,991 - 1,766,221 -
- 2,122 2122 .
- = -+ - 9,137,000
- - 2,274,000
21,089,076 2,906,400 454,659 24,450,144 11,515,310
27 851,393 4,840,061 528,861 33,221,315 24,943,702
17,627 137,141 40,509 295277
1,326,107 999,365 - 2,325472 -
1,443,734 1,136,506 40.509 2,620,749 -
143,681,302 105,306 2,027.264 145,823,872 12,425,754
> - - = 36,468,048
1.178.865 - - 1,178,865 -
- 1,842 079 - 1,842.072 =
123,644,523 - 3,504,110 127,148,633 6,139,070
$ 268,514,600 1,947,385 § 5,531,374 276,993,449 § 56,032,873
21,142 445
(1,454,037)
§ 205681857
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Operating Revenues
Charges for Services:
Litility fees
Goif course fees
Building permits and fees
Services to other funds
Salf insurance faes
Equipment service billings
Other
Miscetlansous

Taotal Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employea bengfits
Services and supplies
Depreciation/amortization

Total Operating Expanses

Operating Incoma (Loss)
Monoperating Revenues (Expensas)
|mvestment eamings
Met increase (decrease) in the

fair value of investments
Federal grants
Mongovernmental grants
Gain (loss) on asset disposibion
Interest/bond Issuance costs
Connection fee refunds/credits
Other noncperating revenue

Total Monoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income [Loss) Before Capital Contributions,
and Transfers

Capital Contributions

Hookup feas

Contributions

Total Capital Contributions

Transfers
Transfers in

Taotal Transfers
Change in Net Position
Met Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30
Adjustment to refiect the consolidation of internal

sarvica fund activities related o enlerprise funds.

WASHOE COUNTY
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Business-ype Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Building Monmajor Activities
Utilities and Safety  Golf Course Internal Service
Fund Fund Fund Total Funds

§ 18781923 § - - B 18,781,923 § -
- - 327.551 327 551 -

. 4,380,380 - 4,380,380 =

2,353 - - 2,353 -

= = 2 - 61,258,274

. . - - B B43 545

572,688 11,345 40,000 624,033 .

- - - - 3,672 827
19,356,964 4,391,725 367,551 24,116,240 73,774,346
1,870,770 1,415,517 25,8971 3,012,258 2,121,851
666,490 626,879 11,678 1,306,047 1,212,021
5,516,421 B70.918 262,453 6,645 789 64,198,208
3,084,318 20,058 73,455 4,077 831 1,976,893
11,737,589 2,933,368 373,557 15,044 825 £9,500,073
T B18 965 1,458,356 (6,008} 9,071,315 4,265,273
1,280,635 88,187 56,502 1,434 324 653.518
(1,188,726) (88,321) (47, 781) (1,525.808) (505,319)
24 672 - - 24,672 817,267
35,664 - - 35,664 -
(5,521) - - (5,521) 259,917
(234,264) - - (234,284) -
(64,760) - . (64, 760) -

- - 5637 5,637 27,675

(1433009 (134) 13,378 [130,056) 1,352,958
7,475,865 1,458,222 7,372 4,341,259 5,618,231
10,576,468 - 10,576 468 -
1,817 088 B 1,817,088 366,087
12,393,556 B - 12,383,556 366,087
5 G - 3,000,000

- - 3,000,000

19,880,221 1,458 222 7,372 21,334,815 8,984 328
248 645 459 488,163 5,524,002 45,048 545
5 268514690 & 1947385 § 5,531,374 s 55,032 873

—_— e = _—
545 588
E] 21,880,403

Change In Net Position of Business-type Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this statement,



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Building Nonmajor Activities
Utilities and Safety  Golf Course Internal Service
Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers 5 18512226 § 4.B01B39 § 263,926 § 23577991 § 28,830,562
Cash received from other funds 2,353 - - 2,353 42 062,078
Cash received from others 13,830 - 40,000 53,830 3,674,223
Cash payments for personnel costs (2,389,340) {2,137,573) (37, 754) (4,564 676) {3,287 475)
Cash paymenis for services and supplies (4,641 421) (915,218) {570,888) (6,136 525) (65,326,921)
Cash paymenis for refund of hookup fees {64 TB0) - - {54,760) -
Other operating receipts 00,671 - - 600,571 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities 12,033 450 1,749,050 {313,716} 13,468,784 5,852 487
Cash Flows From Mencapital Financing Activities;
Federal grants 929 - = 929 917,267
MNongovernmental grants 30,683 - 30,683 :
Transfers from other funds - - - - 3,000,000
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Moncapital Financing Activities 31,612 - - 31612 3,017,267
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Financing Activities:
Hookup fees 10,968,190 - - 10,968,180 =
Other capital contributions {216) - - (216)
Other nonoperaling receipls 5521 - B 5521 -
Proceeds from asset disposition (5,521) - - (5,521) 32,033
Proceeds from debt issued 13,268,485 - . 13,269,485 =
Principal paid on financing (2,316,983) - - (2,316,983) .
Interest paid on financing (177,290) - . (177,280) B
- *Acquisition of capital assets (20,948,517} - - (20,949.517) (1,402 778)
Met Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities 793 669 - - 793,669 {1,370,740)
Cash Flows From Investing Activilies:
Investment earnings (loss) 188,963 2439 19,148 220,550 76,046
Met Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 13,057,694 1,751,488 (294.568) 14,514 615 8,575,040
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 117,087,076 5,517,807 4,242 588 126,847 471 50,874 804
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 130,144,770 § T,260296 § 3048020 % 141382085 % 50,449 B44
1 —_—— TE— L e —————————
(CONTINUED)

The notes to the financial statemenis are an integral part of this statement.
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Building Nonmajor Activities
Utilities and Safety Golf Course Internal Service
Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) % TE18965 § 14583568 § {6,006) & 9,071,315 § 4 265273
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) fo
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciationamartization 3,084 319 20,058 73,455 4.077.832 1,876,893
Met pension expense 46,899 28,982 1,131 77012 -
Net other post employment benefits expense (233,8675) {177 .841) - (411.,518) -
Net effuent water expense 218,810 - B 218,810 -
Program loan interest 1,350 - - 1250 -
Other nonoperaling revenue - - B B 143,106
Hookup fee refunds (B4,760) - - {64,760) -
Imputed rental expense 6,627 - - 6,627 -
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decreasea in:
Accounts receivable (10,588) - (63,625) (74 ,613) 863,035
Relmbursemenis recelvable {209,409) - B (208 408) -
Due from other govemmeants (8,791) < = (B,791) (122,825)
Motes recaivable 12,480 - - 12,480 -
Inveniory - - - - 20,567
Prepaid lease 3,100 - - 3,100 48,752
Other assels (48,073) - - (49,073) 141,388
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 717,702 {44,301) {(756.008) 585,303 (622.320)
Accrued salaries and benefits 11421 11,601 {1,236) 21,786 12,400
Compensated absences 23,266 42081 - 65,347 33.997
Due to other funds (196,207 - - (188,207) {58.112)
Due to other govemments 182,831 - {242,948) {B0,117) 10,781
Other liabilities 25,883 - 3,611 20,404 13,432
Pending claims - - - - (773,000)
Uneamed revenue {47,300) 410,114 - 362,814 -
Total Adjustments 4,414 485 260,694 (307, 710) 4,397 469 1,687,194
Met Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities g 12033450 3 1,749050 § (313,716} ¢ 13468784 § 5,952 467
*Acquisition of Capital Assets Financed by Cash $ 20848517 § - 5 - § 20848517 § 1,402,778
Capital asset value acquistion correction - - - - 227 878
Capital transferred from other funds 1,817,088 - - 1,817,088 366,007
Increasel(decrease) in liabllities {164,189) . - {164, 189) 164,416

Total Acquisition of Capital Assets 3 22602416 § - 5 - %5 22602416 % 2,161,170

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Assets

Current Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Unrealized gainfloss
Investments
Accounis receivable
Property tax receivable
Interast receivable
Financial assurances
Due from other funds
Other assels

Total Current Assets
Liahilities
Current Liabiliies:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Unclaimed property
Taxes payable
Due to other governmeants
Due to others
Excess trust deed sales
Clearing
Deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources related Lo revenue
Net Position
Restricted for;
FPostemployment benefits other than pensions
Paoal pariicipants
Individuals, organzations, and other governments

Total Met Position

WASHOE COUNTY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2021

Pension {and

Other Post in s
Employee Trust Funds Custodial Funds Total
Benefit) Trust
Funds
5 4468704 5 180,305,362 § 40,901,204 § 225 675,270
118,189 {80,170) - 29,018
351,765,903 - - 351,765,993
- 452,680 - 452 680
- - 3,103,215 3,103,215
8,528 387,087 E 396,615
- - 60,893 80,883
- - 86,022,720 86,022,720
27627 40,860 68,487
356,363,414 161,082 586 130,148,892 667,594,892
= 112,297 21,591 133,858
2117 ¥4.792 - 76,909
£ - 400,852 400,852
~ . 5,763,065 5,763,055
- 358,197 2,042,583 2,400,780
3,875,085 9,330 - 3,884 395
= - 304,850 304,850
= - 731,357 731,357
r - 7,996 7,996
3,877,182 554,616 9,272,284 13,704 082
- - 3,103,215 4,103 215
352 486,232 . . 352 486,232
. 180,527,970 - 180,527 470
- - 117,773,393 117,773,393
-3 352,486,232 § 180,527,970 3 117,773,393 § 650,787,595
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Pansion {and
2::::; ot Investment Custodial Total
Beneli ts}!Tmst Trust Funds Funds
Funds
ADDITIONS
Public transit fax 3 -3 37,660,544 § - & 37,660,544
Taxes - - 370,924 0593 370,924,058
Intergovernmental revenues 17,000,000 138,963,571 66,867,612 222,851,183
Licenses and permits - . 2,568 2,568
Charges for services - 7.851,022 25,757 7,876,779
Fines and forfeitures - - 51,786,488 51,766,488
Miscellaneous
Insurance premiums 3,869 161 - B 3,869 161
Water surcharge - 1,707,861 - 1,707,861
Reimbursements 2,600,405 8.390,240 - 10,980,646
Investment @arnings 12,669,632 2,233,780 460 14,903,872
Met increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments 63,121,307 (2,188,923) - 60,932 384
Building Income - - 62,705 62,705
Refunds . - (232,573) (232,573}
Rental Income - 275,297 - 275,297
Project Income - 361,440 - 361.440
Contributions - 64,426 342 448 406,874
Other - 10.002,262 94,420,558 104,431,820
Total Additions 98,260,506 205,341,520 564,208,121 888,811,147
DEDUCTIONS
Salaries and wages - 7,669,144 - 7,669,144
Employes benefits - 262,971 - 262,971
Services and supplies 23,115,025 165,113,778 531,022 657 719,251,462
Total Deductions 23,115,026 173,045,894 531,022 657 727 183,577
Net increase (decrease) In fiduciary net position 76,145 480 32 295 626 53,186,464 161,827 570
Net Position, July 1 as restated 276,340,752 148,232 344 (21,435,791) 403,137,305
Net Position, June 30 § 352486232 § 1805270670 $ 31,750,673 § 584 764,875
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Washoe County (County) was incorporated in 1851 and is a municipality of the State of Nevada (State) govemed by a five-member
elected Board of County Commissioners (BCC). The major operations of Washoe County include various tax assessments and
collections, judicial functions, law enforcement, certain public health and welfare functions, road maintenance, parks, libraries, and
various administrative activities.

The accompanying financial statements of the County and ils discrefely presented component unit have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and
financial reporting. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental and Financial Reporting Standards
which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units.

A. Reporting Entity

These financial statements present the County and its compeonent unit. Component units are legally separate organizations for
which the County is financially accountable. The County currently has one discretely presented component unit, Truckee
Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD),

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) was formed pursuant to Chapter 474 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
and levies taxes to provide emergency medical services, structural and wildland fire suppression services, and watershed
protection to the unincorporated areas of the County within TMFPD's boundaries.

Prior to July 1, 2012, Truckes Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) was considered a blended component unit of Washoe
County, Although TMFPD is a legally separate organization, Washoe County is financially accountable, as defined in
governmental accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, for Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District Financial accountability was determined primarily by the Board of County Commissioners' participation as the governing
body of TMFPD. As of July 1, 2012, Washoe County has no financial benefit or burden relationship with the TMFPD and, as such,
TMFPD has been reclassified from blended component unit to discretely present component unit

For the discretely presented component unit, the BCC is also the Board of Fire Commissioners and thus could impose their will
on TMFPD. However, the County does not have a financial benefit or burden relationship with TMFPD and support activities
batween the County and TMFPD are reimbursed under the terms of an interlocal agreement,

Separate financial statements for TMFPD are filed at the Washoe County Clerk's Office, 1001 E. 9% Street Room A-150, Reno,
Newvada 88512,

B. Basic Financial Statements — Government-wide Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund financial statements. The reporting focus is on either the
County as a whole or major individual funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate. Both the government-wide and fund financial
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.

The County has one discretely presented component unit which is presented in a separate column in the government-wide
statements,

The governmeni-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) report information on all
nonfiduciary activities of the County and its component unit. The County maintains an overhead cost allocation that is charged to
operating funds based on an indirect cost analysis. This indirect cost allocation is eliminated through a separats column on the
Statement of Activities to provide full-cost information for the various functions. Interfund activities relating to services provided
and used between functions are not eliminated. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the warious functions concerned. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenue, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on user fees
and service charges for support.

In the govemnment-wide Statement of Net Position, both governmental and business-lype activities are presented on a
consolidated basis by column and are reflected on a full accrual, economic resources basis, which recognizes all long-term assets
as well as long-term debt and obligations. The County’s net position is reported in three paris — net investment in capital assets,
restricted net position and unrestricted net position.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the County's functions and business-
type activities. Functions are also supported by general revenues (property and consolidated taxes, certain intergovemmental
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revenues, investment eamings not legally restricted for specific programs, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross
expenses (including depreciation and amortization) by related program revenues. Program revenues include charges to
custormers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided; operating grants, interest and contributions; and capital grants,
interest and contributions, including special assessments and investment earnings legally restrcted to support specific programs.
Program revenue must be directly associated with the function or business-type activity. Operating grants include operafing-
specific and discretionary grants while capital grants reflect capital-specific grants. The net costs (by function or business-type
activity) are normally covered by general revenue.

C. Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the County are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted
for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts, Separate financial statements are provided for govemmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on major funds in either governmental or business-type activity categorias. Nonmajor
funds by category are aggregated into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the
assets, liabilities, revenues or expendituresiexpenses of either fund category or the governmental and business-type categories
combined) for the determination of major funds. County management may electively add funds as major funds, when it is
determined the funds have specific community or management focus. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The County's internal service funds are presented in the proprietary funds financial statements. Because principal users of internal
senvices are the County's governmental activities, the financial statements of the internal service funds are consolidated into the
governmental column when presented in the government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the costs of these
services are reported in the appropriate functional activity.

The County's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary funds financial statements by type. Since, by definition, these assets
are held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the County, these funds are not
incorporated info the government-wide statements.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources except those accounted for in
another fund.

The Child Protective Services Fund accounts for ad valorem taxes, grants and other revenue sources specifically appropriated
to protect against the neglect, abandonment and abuse of children.

The Other Restricted Fund accounts for various specific resources restricted for specified purposes consistent with legal and
operating requirements. Resources include: ad valorem tax apportionments for Cooperative Extension support, car rental tax for
the Reno baseball stadium, court administrative assessments for court projects, and grants and restricted resources for various
County departments.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Building and Safety Fund accounts for the issuance of building permits and other fees directly related to building and
development in the County, including related capital assets and depraciation,

The Utilities Fund accounts for reclaimed water, recharge water, wastewater and flood control utilities.

The County reports the following additional fund types:

Internal Service Funds provide for property and liability claims against the CDUﬂtY, unemployment claims, workers' ﬂDI‘ﬂpEI‘IEBﬂOI‘I
claims for disability, medical and rehabilitation expenses and related costs associated with on-the-job injuries, benefits and
healthcare for active and retired employees, and vehicle purchases and maintenance services provided to County departments.

Investment Trust Fund accounts for commingled pooled assets held in trust for special districts, and agencies, which use the
County treasury as their depository.

Custodial Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The funds account for assets
held by the County as an agent for various local governments, special districts and individuals. Included are funds for apportioned
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property and sales taxes, shared revenues and other financial resources for schools, special districs, boards, and other state and
city agencies; funds held for wards of the Public Guardian; unclaimed assets of decedents; social security, insurance and support
payments for children in the welfare system; bonds posted with the District Court; social security benefits held on behalf of senior
citizens; funds held for inmates housed at the County jail; unapportion taxes for other local governments; contributions from
property owners for payment of no-commitment special assessment debt, water planning fees collected from regional water
customers; and assets held on behalf of special districts, boards and other miscellaneous agencies

Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds accounts for assets held in an irrevocable trust for the dedication of providing retirement
health benefits to eligible retirees,

Interfund Activity

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables
and payables as appropriate and arg subject to elimination for government-wide financial statement consolidation. Services
provided, deemed at or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Indirect cost allocations for
support services/overhead are recorded as revenue and expense in the fund financial statements and are eliminated through a
separate column in the government-wide Statement of Activities. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges
the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as
part of the recanciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

During the course of operafions, the County has activity between the funds for various purposes. Any residual balances
outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds. \While these balances are
reported in fund fnancial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial
statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds)
are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as intermal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly,
balancas between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column. Further, certain activity occurs during the year
invelving transfers of resources between funds. In fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as
transfers infout. While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-
wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-
type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as curent financial resources or economic
resources. Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized and reported in
the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardiess of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied, Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue when eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The focus is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses
and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. When revenues are due but will not be collected within 60 days after year-end, the
receivable is recorded and an offsetting deferred infiow of resources is established. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions
are reported as expenditures in the government funds. |ssuance of long-term debt is reported as other financing sources.

Governmental revenues susceptible to accrual include: ad valorem taxes, interest, grant revenues, contractual service charges
and other revenues collected and disiributed by the State. State distributions include consclidated taxes, government services
taxes, and motor vehicle fuel taxes, Construction taxes, licenses and permits, fines, and other charges for services are recognized
as revenue when they are received.
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Proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting, The focus
is upon determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows, similar to businesses in the
private sector. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from noncperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations, Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The Investment Trust funds are reported using the economic resources meaasurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
The custodial funds have no measuremeant focus but utilize the cash basis of accounting.

E. Financial Statement Amounts

Cash and Investments

The County manages a commingled cash and investment pool for the County, Regional Transporiation Commission, the Washoe
County Mevada OPEB Trust, the Truckee River Flood Management Authority and other local entities. The investment pool
operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and County policy. Each fund's share in the pool is displayed in the
accompanying financial statements as cash and investments. Interest is allocated to the various funds based on each fund's
average cash and investment balance where it is legally required to do so. Investment earnings for all other funds are credited to
the General Fund, as provided by MRS 355.170-175. In addition to the cash and investment pool, cartain cash deposits and
investments are held separately by several County funds and reported accordingly. Investments are reported at fair value in
accordance with GASE 72 and changes in fair value are included in investment income.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows presented for proprietary funds, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly
liguid investments, generally with original maturities of three months or less. Since all cash in proprietary funds is pooled with the
rest of the County's cash and is available upon demand, all cash and investments in those funds are considered cash equivalents.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of cash and investments that are restricted in their use by bond covenants or other external agresments.
They consist of remaining bond proceeds for specific capital projects, debt sarvice obligations, a workers' compensation deposit
required by State Statute and an operating reserve required under the terms of a federal grant.

Inventories

Inventories for proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out basis. For governmental funds, the
County charges consumable supplies as expenditures against appropriations at the time of purchase. Any inventories of such
supplies at June 30 are not material to the individual funds and are not recognized in these financial statements,

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, land use rights, buildings, equipment, software and other intangibles, and infrastructure assets
(e.0., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns
in the government-wide financial statements. Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cest. Donated capital
assets, donated works of arts and similar items, and capital assets received in a service concession arrangement are reported at
acquisition value. The County’s capitalization level for infrastructure and intangible assets, including internally generated software,
is 5100,000 and 510,000 for all other classifications of capital assets. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assels of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Other capital assets are generally depreciated/amortized using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

YEARS
Land Improvemeants 3-40
Building Improvements 5-40
Infrastructure 10-75
Equipment 520
Software and other infangibles 3-75
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However, in the proprietary funds, a per-unit of production method of depreciation may be used where it is deemed a more realistic
reflection of the |oss of economic value for the assets being used.

Intangible assets that are considered to have an indefinite useful life because there are no legal, contractual, regulatory,
technological, or other factors limiting the useful life, are not amortized.

As used in these statements, accumulated depreciation includes amortization of in!ar'-gible assels.
Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement elemeant represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenselexpenditurg) until then, The County has three types of
deferred outflows of resources: 1.) the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide Statement of Mat Position.
A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt, 2.) the County reports an amount
related to pensions on the government-wide financial statements and 3.) the County reports an amount related to other
postemployment benefits on the government-wide financial statements.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net pasition that applies to a future
penod(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has three types of deferred
inflows of resources: 1.) amounts which arise only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this
category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in governmental funds balance sheets. The governmental
funds report unavailable revenues from several sources including: property taxes, special assessments, and grant
reimbursements, 2.) amounts related to pensions on the government wide financial statemant. Thesa amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available and 3.) amounts related to other
postemployment benefits on the government wide financial statement.

Long-term Obligations, Bond Discounts and Issuance Costs

In government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type in the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts and any prepaid bond insurance, if applicable, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount  Prepaid bond insurance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt. Debt issuance costs are expensed during the current period.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period, The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Pramiums recaived on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costis, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public
Employees' Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS) Base Plan (Base Plan) and additions to/deductions from Base
Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Base Plan. For this purpose,
benefits (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordancs with the benefit tarms,
Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Postemployment Benefits

The County provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for eligible employees through the Washoe County Retiree Health
Benefit Program (RHBP), a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan, and participates in the State of Mevada's Public
Employees Benefit Plan, which is treated as a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan for financial reporting purposes. Both
plans are administered through the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (Trust), an irrevocable trust established on May 11,
2010 by the BCC. The Trust is a multiple employer trust and was created to fund and account for the participating employers’
costs of retires healthcare benefits pursuant to NRS 287.017. The County's net OPEB liability is measured as of June 30, 2020,
and the total OPEB liabilities used to calculate the net OPEB liability are determined by actuarial valuations as of July 1, 2020,
with the amounts rolled back to June 30, 2020
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Equity Classifications

In government-wide statements and in proprietary fund statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three
components:

s Met investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets net of unspent financing proceeds.

s Resfricted net position — Consists of equity with constraints placed on the use either by (a) external groups such as
creditors, grantors, contributars, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.

s  Unrestricted net position — All other eguity that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or "net investment in capital
assets.”

In governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound
to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources in the funds as follows:

+ Monspendable fund balances — Consist of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable
form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in spendable form” criterion includes items
that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid amounts. It also includes the long-
term amount of loans and notes receivable, if any.

s Restricted fund balances — Consist of amounts with constraints placed on their use either by (a) external groups such as
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) law through constitutional pravisions
or enabling legisiation.

s  Committed fund balances — Consist of resource balances with constraints imposed by formal action of the BCC through
ordinance, resolution or public meeting item approval that specifically state the revenue source and purpose of the
commitment. The choice of action type taken by the BCC is frequently directed by State Statutes and procedures so that
any of the three types of actions noted above are considered equally binding for the BCC. Commitments can only be
modified or rescinded through the same type of BCC action used to impose the restraint. Commitments can also include
resources to meet major contractual obligations required by their nature andfor size to be approved by the BCC. These
generally include major construction contracts of $100,000 and over as well as other types of large confracts.

= Assigned fund balances — Consist of resource balances intended to be used for specific purposes by authorized County
management that do not meet the criteria to be classified as resincted or committed. For governmental funds, excluding
the General Fund, BCC approved resolutions authorizing the creation of the fund establish the specific purposes for
which fund balances are assigned. In the General Fund, the assigned fund balance includes encumbrances approved
by authorized County management that have been approved by the BCC for re-appropriation in the subssquent year.
Authorized County management includes the County Manager, Assistant County Manager and elected or appointed
department directors in accordance with County Ordinances and State Statutes. The assigned fund balance may also
include amounts necessary to fund budgetary shortfalls in the next fiscal year from unassigned resources as approved
by the BCC as part of the annual budget submitted to the State.

s Unassigned fund balances — Consist of all resource balances in the General Fund not contained in other classifications.
For other governmental funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from specific
purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assignad.

N iti nd Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

When outlays for a particular purpose are funded from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted
resources, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. The County's
Fund Balance Policy states that when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for expenditure, restricted resources
should be spent first unless legal requirements disallow it. When outlays are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any
unrestricted fund balance classification could be used, committed funds are to be spent first, assigned funds second, and
unassigned funds last.
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Budgetary Stabilization

It is the County's policy to maintain a fund balance of $3 million, for the purpose of budgetary stabilization. NRS 354 6115
authorizes the creation of a fund to stabilize operation of local governments and mitigate effects of natural disaster. The intent of
this policy is to include a portion of the General Fund budgeted ending fund balance that will be committed to stabilization pursuant
to NRS 354.6115. Fund balance that is committed to stabilization can be used only after approval by the BCC when unanticipated
declines in the major revenue sources (consolidated and property tax revenues) are sustained for at least six months and dedline
from budget by 2.5% or greater as well as when unbudgeted expenditures are incurred due to a declared emergency or natural
disaster. In the case of a natural disaster, the BCC must declare the emergency and State Statutes further constrain the use of
these stabilization funds to specific types of outlays. In fiscal year 2018, the BCC approved using the stabilization fund balance of
53 miilion to help rebuild infrastructure damages causad by the FEMA declared flooding of January and February 2017, Through
the budget process for FY20, the County had replenished the General Fund stabilization resarve to the $3 million policy, The
COVID-18 pandemic, that hit the county in March 2020, resulted in County management declaring an emergency on March 16,
2020, resulting in the authorization of use of the 53 million Stabilization Fund to pay for unexpected costs associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic. On May 18, 2021, the BCC approved to replenish the General Fund stabilization reserve back to $3 million,

Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1.) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benafit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2.) grants and contributions (including special
assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All County
taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues.

Propa axe

All real property in the County is subject to physical reappraisal every five years. Annual adjustments are made to the assessed
valuation to reflect general changes in property values. The assessed valuation of the property and its improvements is computed
at 35% of "taxable value" as defined by State Statute. Taxable value is defined as full cash value for land, replacement cost less
straight-line depreciation for land improvements, and statutory depreciation for personal property. The maximum depreciation
allowed is 75% of replacement cost.

Tax rates are levied by the BCC immediately after the Nevada Tax Commission has cerfified the combined tax rate and are then
submitted to the County Treasurer for collection. The tax rate levied is for the current fiscal year, July 1 to June 30, and the taxes
are considered a lien against real property attaching on July 1. The tax for fiscal year 2021 was due and payable on the third
Manday in August 2020. Taxes may be paid in four installments on the third Monday in August and the first Mondays in October,
January, and March. No provision for uncollectible amounts has been established since management does not anticipate any
material collection loss in the year assessed, in respect to delinquent balances.

Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and the tax is
computed using percentages of taxable values established by the State of Nevada Department of Taxation and the tax rates. The
maijor classifications of personal property are commercial and maobile homes. In the County, taxes on motor vehicles are collecied
by a state agency and remitted to the County based on statutory formulas.

Compensated Absences

In proprietary funds, compensated absences are recorded when the liabilities are incurred. In governmental funds, the current
portion is recorded as an expenditure. The long-term portion is accounted for in the governmental activities’ column of the
government-wide Statement of Net Position.

The current portion of compensated absences is defined as benefits actually paid or accrued because of employees terminating
employment by June 30. Agreements with various employee associations provide for payment of total acerued compensatory
and vacation time in all cases. Accumulated sick leave benefits are payable to terminated employees who have accumulated a
set number of hours up to a specified maximum, depending on the particular employee association,

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to

make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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Implementation of GASE Statement No, 84, 90 and 88

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic of 2020, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 95 "Posiponement of the Effective
Dates of Certain Authorifative Guidance”, which allow government entities to delay the implementation of any or all
Statements/Pronouncements with an effective date beginning after June 15, 2018, up to 18 months.

As of July 1, 2020, the County adopted GASB Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities”. The implementation of this standard is to
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local
governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity
and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify component units and
postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.

As of July 1, 2020, the County adopted GASB Statement No. 90, "Majority Equity Inferests”. The implementation of this standard
is to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units.  If defines a majority
equity interest and specifies that a majority eguity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment
if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the
definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government
engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent
fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.

As of July 1, 2020, the county early implemented GASB Statement No. 98, "The Annual Comprehensive Financial Repaort”. The
implementation of this standard is to address references in authoritative literature to the term comprehensive annual financial
reporf.  This statement replaces an existing term but does not otherwise establish new accounting and financial reporting
requiraments.

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD)
T ntation of GASB ement No. 88

As of July 1, 2020, the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District early implemented GASB Statement No. 89, Accounfing for
interest Cost lncurred before the End of a Construction Period. The implementation of this standard requires interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund
accounting principles in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and recognized
as an expense in financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. In accordance with this
standard, TMFPD has recorded all interest as an expenditure in the debt service fund and as an expense in the Statement of Net
Position.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistant with GAAP for all funds except trust and agency funds, which do not require
budgets. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The County adheres to the Local Government Budget Act (NRS 354 470-626) incorporated within State Statutes and the
procedures set by the Nevada Department of Taxation (NDT) to establish the budgetary data reflected in these financial
statements. The BCC adopts the budget on or before June 1 and files it with the NDT.

The legal level of budgetary control is at the function level for each of the governmental funds and by the combined operating and
non-operating expenses in propristary funds, Statuiss do not reguire that capital outiay, debt service payments and certain other
non-cash transactions normally reflected in the balance sheet of proprietary funds be limited by the budget.

All budget amounts presented in these financial statements and schedules reflect the budget as amended by legally authorized

revigions during the year. Original budgets are provided for the General Fund and major special revenue funds in compliance
with reporting reguirements. The Comptroller or Budget Manager may approve budget adjustments within a function. Budget
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adjustments between functions or funds may be approved by the Compiroller or Budget Manager with BCC notification.
Adjustments that affect fund balance, increase original budget or affect the contingency account require BCC approval,

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental and proprietary funds. In govermmental funds, encumbrances, which
include purchase orders and contracts awarded for which goods and services have not been received at year-end, are
reappropriated in the subsequent year and are reported as restricted, committed or assigned fund balances, as appropriate. An
augmentation of 335 million for encumbrances and restricted resources that have multiple year budgets was reappropriated in the
new fiscal year.

Augmentations from beginning fund balance or previously unbudgeted resources for governmental funds in the current fiscal year
wera 36 million. There are no augmentations in the current year for enterprise funds.

Compliance

Management believes that the County conformed to all significant statutory and administrative code constraints on its financial
administration during the fiscal year. A negative balance of ($4.4 million) appears on the Truckee River Flood Management
Infrastructure Fund, Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual under the Public
Safety Expenditures. The Capital Facilities Cash Fund shows a negative balance of ($1,146) on the Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and actual under the Intergovernmental function expenditures. The negative
amounts reported abova are allowed under NRS 354.626 section 2 (k) - "The receipt by a local government of increased revenue
that: (1) was not anticipated in the preparation of the final budget of the local government; and (2) is required by staiute to be
remitted to another governmental entity.” A negative variance of ($9.3 million) appears in the Debt Service fund and a negative
variance of (5352 824) appears in the Special Assessment Debt Service Fund, These two negative amounts reported are allowed
under the above listed NRS and NRS 354.626 section 1 "No governing body or member...in excess of the amounts appropriated
for the function, other than bond repayments, medium-term obligation repayments and any other long-term conitract expressly
authorized by law."

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD})

TMFPD's Emergency Fund had a deficit fund balance of $42 675 TMFPD provided fire support to other local governments
during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. These support services are reimbursable under agreements with other fire
agencies. TMFPD augmented its budget for anticipated revenues to be collected from these other agencies. The deficit balance
and over-appropriation occurred due to the timing of reimbursements. TMFPD was unable to collect a significant portion of
reimbursement receivables within the revenue recognition period of 60 days after year end and therefore $1,825,674 were
recognized as unavailable revenue. Therefore, this is an apparent violation of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354 626,

While it appears that the actual expenditures of the Debt Service Fund are over the statutory limit by 5,604, and the actual
expenses, of the Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund are over the statutory limit by $386,146, NRS provides
exceptions. Per NRS 354,626 subsection 1, bond repayments are exempt and NRS 354 626 subsection 2 provides an exception
directly related to a program of insurance.

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS3), the County’s cash is deposited with insured banks and insured credit unions
and those deposits that are not within the limits of insurance must be secured by collateral. At year end, the County's camying
amount of deposits was $57,117,757 and the bank balance was $27 438,559. The differance between the carrying amount and
bank balance results from outstanding checks and deposits not yet reflected in the banks’ records.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

All deposits are subject to custodial credit risk, which is the risk that the County’s deposits may not be refurned to it in the event
of a bank failure. Bank balances were covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation, collateral held by the County’s agent in the County's name or by collatzral held by depositories in the name of the
Nevada Callateral Pool, and were not exposed to custodial credit risk. According to NRS 356.020, all monies deposited by a
County Treasurer that are not within the limits of insurance provided by an instrumentality of the United States must be secured
by collateral composed of the same types of securities allowed for investments which are identified below. The County participates
in the State of Nevada Collateral Pool which requires depositories to maintain as collateral acceptable securities having a fair
market value of at lzast 102 percent of the amount of the uninsured balances of the public money held by the depository. Under
NRS 358.360, the State Treasurer manages and monitors all collateral for all public monies deposited by members of the pool,
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Investments

The County has a formal investment pelicy that, in the opinion of management, is designed to ensure conformity with NRS and
seaks to limit exposure to investment risks.

MRS 355.172 requires tha County Treasurer or her agent to take physical possession of securities purchased as an investment
by the County in the name of the County. If the securities purchased are subject to repurchase by the seller, the County may, in
lieu of the requirement of possession, obtain a fully perfected, first-priority security interest having a fair market value equal to or
greater than the repurchase price of the sacurities.

Investments are recorded at fair value. Eamings and/or losses on investments are allocated to certain funds based on average
daily cash balances.

As of June 30, 2021, the County had the following investments and maturities:

INVESTMENT MATLIRITIES (IN YEARS)

Falr Value Less than 1 1tod 4to b G to 10

Investments:
Money Market Mulual Funds 3 2428220 3 2428220 3 -3 - 5 =
Megotisble Certificates of Deposit 79,305,707 58,831.048 20,474 881 - .
NV Local Government Investment Pool 148,311,387 148,311,387 = 4 =
U.5. Treasury Securities 162,633, 758 20,994 581 T8,623.414 41,854,918 21,160,655
U.5. Agency Bonds/NolesMBSICMO 174,184,861 22,979,540 114,064 177 28,814,935 7,326,209
Supra-Mational Agency Bond/Mote 2,931,556 - 2,931,556 - -
hssel Backed Securties/Collateralized Morigage Obligations 11,180,545 - 7,285 674 3,884 B71 2
Corparate Notes/Commercial Papar 129,421,606 715,399,429 51.624 945 1,397,232 -

Tofal Invesiments 710,397 650 329,844,202 275,004,427 78,961,958 28,487,064

Total Cagh (includes TMFPD) B7.117,757 57,117,757 - - -

Total Cash and Imvesimanis’ H T67.515407 % 387,061,960 3 275,004 427 % 76,861.956 3§ 28,487.084

—

Total cash and investments inciude restricted cash, purchased interest, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the NV Local
Government Investment Pool.

The NV Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is an unrated external pool regulated by MNevada Revised Statute 355,
administered by the State Treasurer with oversight by the State of Nevada Board of Finance. The County deposits monies with
the State Treasurer to be pooled with monies of other local governments for investment in the local government pooled investment
fund. The County's investment in the LGIP is equal to its original investment plus monthly allocation of interest income and
realized/unrealized gains and losses, which is the samea as the value of the pool shares.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. This risk can
be reduced by diversifying the durations of the fixed-income investments that are held at a given time. As a means of limiting its
exposure o fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County's investment policy requires twelve to eighteen months
of projected cash flow to be in investments maturing in one year or less. Investments maturing in less than one year at June 30,
2021 were 43% of the County's total cash and investments, The County's strategic investment plan seeks to cbiain the desired
average maturity of 2 to 4 years. The weighted average maturity at June 30, 2021, was 2 years.
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The County invests in the following types of securities that are, considered to be highly sensitive to interest rate changes:

Investment Fair Market % of Total

.5 Agency Mortnage Backed Securities and Collateralized Mortgage Cbligations

When interest rales fall, morigages are refinanced and paid off early and the
reduced stream of future interest payments diminish fair valee, 5 11,180,545 1.6%

Callable U.S. and Cor te M
On specified dates the issuer can call the security. Because they are subject to
early repayment, the fair value of these securities is more sensitive in a period of

declining Interest rates. 46,939,645 B8.6%
Toial $ 58120180

NRS allows investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, municipal bonds issued by local governments of
the State, corporate bonds rated "A" or better by a naticnally recognized rating service, commercial paper rated "4A-1," "P-1" or
better by a nationally recognized rating service, repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit, money market mutual funds rated
"AAA” by a nationally recognized rating service or other securities in which banking institutions may legally invest

As of June 30, 2021, the County's investments are rated as follows:

Asset Backed
Supra- Corporate Securities! NV Local

MWegotiable National MNotes/ Collateralized Gavermment

54P Money Market  Cenificates of  U.S, Treasury Agancy Commercial Margage Investmant
Rating Mutual Funds Daposil Securities BondsiNoles U5, Agencies Paper Dhbligations Pool Fair Value
ARAM  § 2428220 = 3 - . - = - § 2,428 220
AlA - - - 2,831,556 - 5,008,841 B,068 567 - 16,008 964
Ads - . 162,833 76T 2 161,248,771 7,288,710 12,956,081 - 344.107 339
AR - . - = . 12,234 6897 - - 12,234,687
ARf- - B.ATS 605 - . - 5,248,529 - . 14,124,104
Ax - B,5B5 062 - - - 11,812,569 . - 20,397 631
o - 3,014,094 - - - 10,811,326 - - 13825420
A- - - - - . 8,743,508 - - B, 743 608
A+ - 12,997 059 - - - - 12,997,959
A1 - 45,833,087 - - 60,987 054 - - 106,820,141
BEE+ - - - - . 7,286,302 C - 7,266,302
Unrated = 2 - - - 3.111.978 148,311,387 151 423 365

3 2428220 & 79305707 § 162E33TET & 2931556 % 161248771 § 128421608 3 24116636 $ 148311387 % 710,397 650

Concentration of Credit Risk

The County’s investment policy places no limit on amounts invested in direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and securities backed
by the full faith and credit of the U.5. Government, while placing the following limits per issuer on all other securities: Federal
Agency Securities, 35%; Federal Agency Mortgage Backed Securities, 15%; Bonds and notes guaranteed by the International
Bank for Reconstruction and Development, 15%; Money Market Funds, 45%; Corporate bonds and notes, 5% Certificates of
deposit, 5%, Obligations issued by local governments of the Siate of Nevada, 10% and Local Government Pooled Investment
Fund {LGIP), 25%

At June 30, 2021, the following investments exceeded 5% of the County's total:

Fannie Mae 15.5%
Freddie Mac T7.6%
U.S. Treasury Securilies 22.9%
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External Investment Pool

Pooled invesiments are carried at fair value determined by quoted market prices, net of accrued interest. All pooled investments
are physically collateralized and held by Wells Fargo Bank.

The County administers an extarnal investment pool combining County money with voluntary investments from Truckee Meadows
Fire Protection District, Regional Transportation Commission, Nevada Works, Western Regional Water Commission, Washoe
County, Nevada OPEB Trust, Truckee River Flood Management Authority, the Library Investment Fund, the Deferred
Compensation Fund and Southwest Pointe Arrowcreek Fund. The BCC has overall responsibility for investment of County funds,
including the Investment Trust Fund, in accordance with NRS 355.175. The Washoe County Chief Investment Official is the
Washoe County Treasurer, under authority delegated by the BCC. The Investment Committee, created by Washoe County Code
Section 15.220, has been delegated the investment decision making authority in the County and serves also in an advisory
capacity to the Treasurer and BCC. The external investment pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. PFM
Asset Management, LLC determines the fair value of the County investments monthly. The County has not provided or obtained
any legally binding guarantees during the period to support the value of shares,

The participants’ share and redemption value are calculated using the same method. Each participant's share is equal to their
investment plus or minus the monthly allocation of net income, realized and unrealized gains and losses. The determination of
realized gains and losses is independent of the determination of the net change in the fair value of investments. Gains and losses
of the current period include unrealized amounts from prior pariods.

Investments held in the external investment pool at June 30, 2021 wers;

Principal Amount/

Fair Valug Mo, of Shares Rate Maturity Dates
Investment Type

Megotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 79,302,673 78,960,000 A8-2.04% 07/02/2021-0317/2023
U. S. Treasury Securities 162,508,087 158,890,000 .125-3.125%  10/15/2021-11/115/2030
NV Local Government Investment Paal 148,311 387 148,311,387 MIA 1A
Supra-Mational Agency Bond/Mote 2931556 2.940,000 0.25% 11/24/2023

Fad Agency Bonds/Notas 161,064 438 159,790,000 25-8.75% 01/05/2022-08/05/2030
Fed Agency Mortgage Backed Securities 172,026 171,089 3.00% D&/1/2022

Fed Agency Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 12,936,091 12,647,762  .588-3.56% 09/01/2021-01/01/2028
Asset Backed Securities/Collateralized Mortgage 11,180,545 11,050,258 27-2.79% 07/15/2022-02/17/2026
Corporate Notes/Commercial Paper 120 381 312 126,642,000 0.00-5.250%  O7/12/2021-11/113/2025

Total Investments in Pool £ 707 788.096
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External Investment Pool
Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2021

Assets:

Cash

Investments:
Certificates of Deposit
U.5. Treasury Securities
MY Local Government Investment Pool
Supra-Mational Agency Bond/Rate
U.5, Agency Securities
Collateralized Morfgage Obligations/Asset Backed Securilies
Corporate MNotes

Interest Receivable

Total Assets

Net Position:
Internal participants
Compaonent Units:
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
External participants

Total Net Position Held in Trust for Pool Parficipants (§1.00/par)

FY2021
40,432,736

79,308,707
162,633,767
148,311,387

2,031,556
161,248,771

24,116,636

120,421,606
1,591,373

749,993,539

549,714 496

19,751,073
180,527,970

749,993,539

External Investment Pool

Statement of Changes in Net Position for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Additions:
Investment earnings
Met realized gain (loss) on investments

Met increase (decrease) in fair value of invesiments

Increase in net position resulting from operations

Met capital share transactions
Change in Mel Posltion
Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

FY21
7.487 621
2,190,381

(8,793,.461)

854 541

177,873,740

178,758,281

571.235.258

749,993,629
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EMENTS

Investments are recorded at fair value and the following table shows the Fair Value Measurements used:

Investments Measured at Fair Value

June 30, 2021
Fair Value Measurement Using:
Quoted Prices Signifllcant Significant
In Active Markets for Other Unobsarvable
Identical Assais Observable Inputs Inputs
Total {Laval 1) {Laval 2} (Lawvel 3)
Investments by fair value lavel
Debt zecuriies
Money Market Mutual Funds $ 2,428,220 % 20428,220 % § -
Cartificates of Depasit 79,305,707 79,305,707 -
U.5. Treasury Securities 162,833,764 162,633,788 -
Supra-Naticnal Agency BondMote 2,831,555 2,931,555
U.5. Agency Securities 174,184 881 174,184 861 - -
Callateralized Morlgags Obligations/Asset Backed Securities 11,180,545 - 11,180,545 -
Corparate Notes/Commarcial Paper 129,421,608 - 120,421,608 -
Totzl debt zecuntias 3 562,086,263 5 421,484,112 % 140,602,151 § -
Total investments by fair value level 5 552,086,263 5 421,484,112 § 140,602,151 § -
Investments not required o be measured at fair value;
NV Local Govermment Investmant Poal 148,311,387
Total Investments. 3 710,387,650

Debt and equity securities classified in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those
securities. Investments categorized as Level 2 are valued at fair value based on the observable market prices on the underlying
assets held by the pool or fund less liabilities. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by
market tfransactions invelving identical or comparable assets, liabilities. or a group of assets and liabilities. Information is obtained

from the Washoe County's investment firm, PFM Asset Management, LLC.

NOTE 4 = RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Restricted cash and investments include amounts restricted for future debt service and reserves as required by bond covenants
and ordinances; reserves restricted for projects for the HUD Meighborhood Stabilization Program; and reserves restricted for
workers' compensation claims pursuant to NRS 616B.300. Restricted cash and investments at June 30, 2021, were as follows:

Debt Service
and Reserves  Projects Claims Total
Governmental Funds and Governmental Actlvities
General Fund 1 TED,000 § - § - & 750,000
Other Restricted Fund - 35,060 - 35,060
Total Governmental Funds 760,000 35,060 E 785,060
Internal Service Funds:
Risk Management Fund - - 2,274,000 2,274,000
Total Governmental Activities 760,000 35,060 2,274,000 3,059,060
Proprietary Funds and Business-type Activities
Utilities Fund 1,237,778 . 1,237,778

Total Restricted Cash and Investments 2 1087778 & 35060 § 2274000 § 4206838
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Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD)

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) had restricted cash and investments in the amount of $306,806 in the Capital
Projects Fund from the proceeds of debt issued for the acquisition of properties for fire stations, including fixtures, structures,
stations, other buildings, and sites.

NOTE 5 = LONG-TERM ASSETS

Governmental Activities

Long-term assats in governmental activities total $21,982, 786 which include $14,763,538 in long-term prepaids for eguipment and
building leases/deposits. Also included is $331,259 in prepaid bond insurance and a note receivable of $5,887,990 due from
partner agencies in the Nevada Shared Radio System,

Business-type Activities

Long-term assets in business-type activities include $150,557 in long-term receivables in the Utilities Fund.

MOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capi -G ental vities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and land use nghts $ 150,726,870 & 341916 § -8 151,068,786
Construction in progress 24,707,335 8,119,677 16,586,368 16,240,644
Total capital assets not being depreciated 175,434,205 B 461,593 16,586,368 167,309,430
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 72,453,620 - - 72,453,620
Buildings/fimprovements 332,338,851 1,185,631 - 333,525,682
Infrastructure G0B 377 438 11,545,012 - 616,922 450
Equipment 92,647,528 7,696,936 1,579,851 08,766,613
Software 20,746,101 350,608 - 21,086,710
Total capital assets being depraciated 1,126,563,538 20,781,388 1,579,851 1,145,765,075
Less accumulated deprecialion for:
Land improvements 51,418,743 2,251,513 - 53,671,256
Buildings/improvements 174,746 977 8,539,193 - 183286170
Infrastructure 522,915,262 12,998,220 . 535,913,482
Equipment 74,432 728 4 870,786 1,122,416 78,181,008
Software 16,868,311 548,142 - 19,417,453
Total accumulated depreclation 842,383,021 29,208,854 1,122 416 870 469 459
Net capital azsets being depreciated 284,180,517 (8,427 466) 457 435 275,295 616
Governmental activities capital assets, net 5 4509614722 § 34127 § 17,043,803 & 442 605,048
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs for the governmental activities as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government § 3,163,732
Judicial 2,386,649
Public safety 5,480,408
Public works 14,154 568
Health and sanitation 162,538
Welfare T32.046
Culture and recreation 3,135,337
Community suppor 3,558
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities & 20,206,854
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Dacreases Balances
Capital Assets - Busi -
Capital assels not being depreciated:
Land and and use righls & 7043066 & 325000 % - % 8,268,066
Plant capacity 825,150 - - 825,160
Construction in progress 7,382 445 18 512 321 1,007,133 25,887 634
Total capital assels not being depreciaied 16,150,662 18,837,321 1,007,133 34,980,650
Capital assets being depreciatad:
Land improvemeants 6,485,381 - - 6,485 381
Bulldingsfimprovemenis B0.559,205 170,096 - 60,729,301
Infrastructure 131,546,128 3,027,964 40,000 134,534,093
Equipment 1,028,217 355,357 - 1,383,574
Soflware 1,076,630 - - 1,076,630
Plant, well capacity 2,368,822 - - 2,368,822
Total capital assets being depreciated 203,064,364 3,553 417 40,000 206,577,601
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 4,351,173 165,217 - 4 517,380
Buildings/improvemenis 21,835,838 1,194,620 - 23,030,458
Infrastructure 43,641,216 2,618,251 34,479 46,224,988
Equipment 822 313 19,463 - 841,776
Software 851,264 20,058 - 971,323
Plant, well capacity 1,480,555 59,221 - 1,548,776
Total accumulated depreciation 73,191,359 4.077.831 34,479 77234711
Met capital assets being depreciated 129,873,025 (524.414) 5,521 125,343,080
Business-type aclivities capital assets, net  § 146,023 687 § 19,312,907 § 1012654 5 164,323,940
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs for business activities as follows:
Business-Type Activities:
Utilities § 3,984 318
Building and safety 20,058
Golf courses 73,455
Total Depreciation Expense - Businass-type Activities 3 4,077 831

—————————————————
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Net capital assets at June 30, 2021, for the discretely presented compaonent unit were:

Truckee Meadows

Fire Protection
District
Net Capital Assets
Capital azsets not baing depreciated $ 7,145,013
Capital assets being depreciated 25299 479
Capital assets, nel ;] 32,448,492
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NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Commitments

The County utilizes encumbrance accounting to identify fund commitments. Major commitments, generally contracts in excess of
$100,000, are entered into for construction projects or longer term service arrangements that can span several years.

Construction in progress and major commitments for governmental activities and business-type activities are:
CIP Balance Major
June 30, 2021 Commitments

overnmenes JNas anc
Major Governmental Funds:

General Fund:
Senvice contracts % = § 1,753,529
Child Protective Services
Case management and support services - 117,208
Other Restricted
Service contracts - 598,660
Total Major Governmental Funds $ T s 2,469,387
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:
Service contracts - 2,401,138
Case management and support services - 405,563
Road infrastructure - 1,591,081
Total Special Revenue Funds $ = g 4,397 T2
Internal Service Funds:
Service contracts - 11,381,309
Wehicles and equipment 2,538,068 1,206,300
Total Internal Service Funds $ 2,638,068 ¢ 12 586,618
Capital Projects Funds:
Building infrastruciure projecls 1,737 410 3,121,310
Parks and open space projects 2,018,182 51,871
Public safety communications. tlechnology 1,772,044 -
Community services projecis 7,865,930 -
Technology Improvements 308,000 -
Water quality improvement projects . .
Total Capital Projects Funds s 13,702,576 5 3,173,281

Total Governmental Funds / Governmental Activities 5 16,240,644 § 22 627,078

Business-Type Funds:
Building and Safety
Service contracts 25,887,634 20,229,807
Tolal Business-Type Funds 5 25837634 3 20,229,807

Contingencies

The County is invoived in various lawsuits. The outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable; howewver, management
does not anticipate that they would materially impact the financial position of the County.
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The County is contingently liable on the following Reno-Sparks Convention & Visitors Authority (RSCVA) bonds:

RSCVA Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 5 65,780,000
Total RSCWVA Bonds $ 65,760,000

Although the County is contingently liable for the general obligation bonds of RSCWVA in the event of a default, it is anticipated that
RSCWA resources would be reallocated to retire the bonds. Therefore, management believes that the likelihood of the County
assuming the debt is remote.

Other Liabilities

Governmental Activities

Other liabilities in governmental activities consist of deposits and amounts due to others of $3,563 840 in the General Fund for
deposits and bail related to pending court cases or investigations, $331,418 in other governmental funds for other customer and
security deposits. For refundable deposits for park facilities and developer performance guarantees, there is $17,864 in other
governmental funds. There s $336,166 recorded in the Health Benefits Fund.

Business-type Activities

Other liabilites in business-type activities include $376,095 for cusiomer deposits in the Utilities Fund,

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD)

On June 23, 2020, TMFPD entered into an Interlocal Agreement to provide for financing, development, operation, and
management of the Washoe County Regional Communications P25 Radio Systern. Under the terms of the agreement, TMFPD
has committed to paying for an allocated portion of Washoe County's debt obligation to upgrade the existing radio communication
system to address new technology requirement and aging/availability issues, radio coverage, and mutual aid interconnection.
TMFPD paid Washoe County $65,250 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. TMFPD's remaining payments to Washoe
County for their portion of the debt is $692 678 in principal and $178,688 in interest with average annual payments of $62 664
over the remaining term of 14 years.

NOTE 8 - UNEARNED REVENUE AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Uneamed revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earmed is reported as a liability for
governmental activities,

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period or periods and so will not be

recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue) until that time. Governmental funds reported $11.0 million in deferred inflows of
resources related to unavailable revenua.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, major components of unavailable and unearned revenue reported for governmental funds
were as follows:

Child
Protective Other Monmajor
General Services Restricted Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Liabilities
Unearned revenue:
Grants revenue § - & - 3 47,912,243 § - & 47,912,243
Total Unearned Revenue g -3 ‘8 47 912 243 5 g 47 912 243
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue:
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,196,886 § 42506 % 10,629 5 204,447 & 1,454,468
Grants and other revenue - 236,525 5,793,665 3,400,854 9,521,044
Total Unavailable Revenus $ 1,196,886 § 279,031 § 5804294 § 36056301 § 10.875.512

Unearmed revenue in business-type activities consists of $131,859 for water rights leases and unearned utility revenue in the
Utilities Fund and of $1,709,007 for unearned permit fees and plan checks fes revenue in the Building and Safety fund. The
Building and Safety fund also has a noncurrent unearned revenue of $2,122

Discretely Presented Component Unit

At the end of the current fiscal year, major components of unavailable revenue reported for discretely presented component unit
was as follows:

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

TMFFD
TMFPD General Emergency
Fund Fund Total
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue:
Property taxes § 90,166 § -8 90,186
Reimbursements 51,903 1,825 674 1,877 577
Total Unavailable Revenue § 142,069 § 1825674 § 1,867,743

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Current Refundings

On October 28, 2020, Washoe County issued $9,695000 General Obligation (Limited Tax) Refunding Bonds, (additionally
secured by pledged revenues), Series 2020B. The proceeds were used for a current refunding totaling $10,759,182 of the
outstanding principal for the General Obligation {Limited Tax) 20198 Refunding Bonds (additionally secured by pledged revenues),
the General Obligation {Limited Tax) 20118 Building Refunding Bonds (additionally secured by pledged revenues) and to pay
bond issuance costs. Bond principal will be retired annually through fiscal year 2029, commencing November 1, 2021. Interest
is payable on November 1 and May 1, commencing on May 1, 2021, The Bonds constitute direct and general obligations of the
County, and the full faith and credit of the County is pledged for the payment of principal and interest, subject to Mevada
constitutional and statutory limitations regarding the aggregate amount of ad valorem taxes. The bonds have a fixed interest rate
of 1.35%, '

From the 2020B bond proceeds, $10,688,182 was deposited in an irrevocable trust account contralled by U.S. Bank and used to
call the refunded bonds on October 29, 2020. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next
ten years by $364,158 and resultad in an economic gain (difference between the presant values of the old and new debt service
payments) of $358,145.
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Bond Redemptions

The County called 5370,000 in special assessment bonds for early redemption as funds were made available from the early payoff
of special assessments.

Defeasance/Early Extinguishment of Debt

The County defeased certain general obligation debt by placing funds from unspent bond proceeds, existing resources and the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on certain previously issued bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the Bability for the defeased bonds are not included in the County's financial statemenis.
As of June 30, 2021, the County had no remaining balances for the defeased portion of past bond issues.

Revenue Bonds

The County has pledged specific revenues fo repay bonds in governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental Activities

The County has pledged 15% of the consolidated tax revenue receipts for the repayment of various General Obligation Revenue
bands consisting of the Refunding Bonds Series 20128, issued between fiscal years 2004 and 2012; Medical Examiner Building
Bonds Series 2015A,; Safety Refunding 20168, Nevada Shared Radio System Bonds 2020 and Building and Park Refunding
2020B. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid an the bonds is $61,187,617 payable through fiscal year 2036. For
the current year, principal and interest paid from pledged revenues for the bonds totaled $5,024 595 and pledged revenues totaled
$21,356 429,

The County has pledged future infrastructure sales tax revenues to repay $32.3 million in Flood Control Series 2008 and Sales
Tax Revenue Refunding Series 20168A bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing, for expansion of, and improvements
to, the flood control system. The bonds are infended fo be paid solely from infrastructure tax revenues and are payable through
fiscal year 2036, Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require as much as 18% of the pledged
revenues. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $26 450,431, For the current year, principal and
interest paid for the bonds totaled $2,296,071 and pledged revenues totaled $13 037,228

The County has pledged future car rental fees to repay the direct placements of $18.5 million of Senior Lien Car Rental Revenue
bonds and $10.0 million Subordinate Lien Car Rental Fee Capital Appreciation Revenue Bonds (Minor League Baseball Stadium
Project) Series 2008. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing to acquire, improve, equip, operate and maintain within the
County a minor league baseball stadium project. The direct placement bonds are intended to be paid solely from car rental fee
revenues and are payable through fiscal year 2056. Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require
100% of the car rental fee revenue. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the Senior Lien Car Rental Fee
Revenue Bonds is $12.2 million. For the current year, principal and interest paid for the bonds totaled $1,400,493, and pledged
revenues totaled $1,313,586. Total principal and interest at June 30, 2021 on the Subordinate Lien Car Rental Fee Capital
Appreciation Revenue Bonds is $22.2 million. For the current year, a principal payment of $58,808 was paid on the bonds on
December 1, 2020

Business-Type Activities

The County has pledged future ulility customer revenues and connection fees and investment earnings, net of specified operating
expenses, to repay $17.4 million in direct borrowing utility system revenue bonds issued in fiscal year 2015, Proceads from the
bonds provided financing for expansion of, and improvements to, the utility system. The direct borrowing bonds are intended to
be paid solely from utility customer nat revenues and are payable through fiscal year 2027.

On December 31, 2014, in connection with the divestment of the water operations, the County amended the bond ordinances
authorizing the outstanding general obligation (limited tax) sewer bonds to pledge the net revenues of the Utilities Fund excluding
water reserves.

The County has authonzed up to $50 million of bonds through the State of Nevada Revolving Fund Program (SRF). On May 27,
2020, the County has issued $27 million of maximum principal bonds and made draws during FY20 of $195,188 and FY21 of
$13,268,485. The County reserves the privilege of issuing the bonds or other securities at any time legal requirements are satisfied.

Principal and interest on the Sewer Bonds are payable from the pledged revenuas of the Utilites Fund. There is no impact on the

ad valorem tax rate so long as net pledged revenues are sufficient to pay debt service. Annual principal and interest payments
on the sewer bonds are expected to require as much as 13% of the utility's net revenues. The total principal and interest remaining
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to be paid on the sewer bonds is $38,656,366. For the current year, principal and interest paid for the sewer and water bonds
totaled 32,494 276. Net pledged revenues totaled $15,870,573.

Special Assessment Debt

Special assessment bonds are issued to finance improvements that benefit taxpayers in the defined area. Bonds are repaid from
assessments levied against these taxpayers and are secured by their real property. In case of deficiencies, the County's General
Fund and taxing power further secure all bonds (NRS 271.495). There were no delinguent special assessments outstanding as
of June 30, 2021.

The County has pledged future assessment revenues levied on special assessment districts throughout the County to repay $10.3
million in various local improvement bonds issued between fiscal years 2007 and 2011. Proceeds from the bonds provided
financing for improvements in roads, water and sewer infrastructure in the various districts. The bonds are intended to be paid
solely from assessment revenues and are payable through fiscal year 2032, Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds
are expected to require as much as 75% of the assessment revenues. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the
bonds is $3,569,952. For the current year, principal and interest paid for the bonds totaled §766, 725 and pledged revenues totaled
$1,015,772.

Legal Debt Margin

The statutory Washoe County debt limit is 10% of the assessed value of all taxable property in Washoe County, as set forth in
Chapter 2444 059 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Legal Debt Margin is
%1.9 billion.

Conduit Debt Obligations

The County has issued several series of revenus bonds for public and private sector activity in the public interest. The public
sector revenua bonds are far the cost of constructing and maintaining certain streets and highways in the County. The revenue
bonds are paid solely from certain taxes on motor vehicle fuel collected in the County. Private sector revenue bonds have been
used for water and gas facilities and hospital facilities. The revenus bonds are paid solely from the revenue derived from the
projects for which they were issued. The public and private revenue bonds do not become liabilities of the County under any
condition and are therefore excluded from the County's financial statements except for the Reno-Sparks Convention & Authority
{RSCWVA) debt. (See note 7)

61



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021
(CONTINUED)
Outstanding balances at June 30, 2021 follow:;
Date QOriginal Principal
of Issue Issue Outstanding
Public Sector
Reno-Sparks Convention & Visitors Authority (RSCVA)
RECWA Refunding bonds, Series 2021 4/8/2021 § 85,760,000 % 65,760,000
Regional Transportation Commission:
Highway Revenue Bonds Series 2010E 12M6/2010 8 58,775,000 5 58,775,000
Highway Revenue Bonds Seres 2010F 12M16/2010 & 5385000 % 5,385,000
Sales Tax Improvement Bonds Serles 2010H 1216/2010 20,000,000 20,000,000
Highway Revenue Bonds Series 2018 122042018 183,235,000 173,600,000
Highway Revenue Bonds Series 2019 12/113/2019 56,235,000 54,455,000
Subtotal Public Sector $ 389,390,000 $ 377,975,000
Sierra Pacific Power Company d/bfa NV Energy:
Gas and Water Faciliies Refunding Revenue Bonds
Public Sector:
Series 20168 5f24/2016 & 60,230,000 5 60,230,000
Series 2016C, 20160, 2016E and 2016F & 20166 21672020 § 30,000,000 5 30,000,000
Series 20160, 2016E and 2016F & 20160 4/9/2019 145,000,000 145,000,000
Privately Held:
Nevada Gas Facilities Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 20164 4/15/2020 58,700,000 58,700,000
Subtotal Private Sector s 283,930,000 $ 293 930,000
Total Conduit Debt $ 683,320,000 § 671,905,000

Operating Leases

The County leases office space, land and equipment under various operating lease agreements. Total lease payments in fiscal
year 2021 were $3,125,002. Future minimum paymenis for these leases are:

Year Ending Office Space,

June 30, Land Equipment Total
2022 $ 1.445209 § 1,332,378 § 2,777,588
2023 1,262,107 593,351 1,855,458
2024 724,834 267,875 902,709
2025 619,378 72,885 B92,363
2026+ 10,892,207 - 10,802 207

Totals -1 14,943,735 3 2,266,500 § 17,210,325

The County began a long-term lease on January 1, 2013 for the Sparks Justice Court which expires in fiscal year 2023, The terms
of the lease allow uneven and artificially low payments throughout the life of the lease. For fiscal year 2021, an adjustment of
$28,322 (cumulative total of $42,483) is raquired to reconcile the amount of expenditures in the General Fund to the straight line
expense recognized in the government-wide statements.

Compensated Absences
The liability for compensated absences is included in noncurrent liabilities on the government-wide Statement of Net Position.
The liakility will be liquidated primanly by the General Fund for governmental activities and by the Utilities Fund for business-type

activities. In fiscal year 2021, 85% of compensated absences for governmental activities were paid by the General Fund, and in
business-type activities, 52% were paid by the Utilities Fund.
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Outstanding balances at June 30, 2021 is as follows:
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Washoe County:
Wacation 3 15,990,286 S 269,206 5 16,259,592
Sick Leave 10,327,919 166,818 10,484,737
Compensatory Leave 6,658,055 110,240 6,769,185
Benefils 475,219 7,776 482,945

Total Compensated Absences § 33452478 § 544040 % 33,906,519

Net Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation

Prior to May 11, 2010, when the County established the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (Note 15), the County financed
their net other postemployment benefits obligation on the pay-as-you-go basis with the funds accumulated in the Pre-Funded
Retiree Health Benefits Fund. Currently, the OPEB Trust is funded from the General fund.

Due to other Governments — Business Type Activities
The Utilities fund has a liability to an outside government agency in the amount of 17,581 which is not due within 12 months.
Pollution Remediation Obligation

The pollution remediation activities of the Central Truckee Meadows Remediation District (CTMRD) are paid for through an annual
charge billad directly to residents and businesses within its boundaries. Accordingly, the CTMRD's pollution remediation obligation
is limited to the net position accumulated by the fund for payment of future remediation related expenditures. All of the assets of
CTMRLD are held for remediation and are offset by a long-term liability for remediation. As of June 30, 2021, the remediation
liability for net pesition held in CTMRD was 54,770,578,

Claims and Judgments

The claims and judgments liability of $23,030,000 consists of pending property and liability claims, workers' compensation claims,
and unprocessed health benefits claims. These claims will be liquidated through the Risk Management and Health Benefits
Internal Service Funds (Mote 16). The Risk Management and Health Benefits Funds finance the payment of claims by charging
other funds based on management's assessment of the relative insurance risk that should be assumed by individual funds or, as
needed, through transfers from the General Fund.

Property Tax Refunds

The County was the defendant in various lawsuits with property owners disputing the County Assessor's valuation methods used
for property within the Lake Tahoe Basin, The County vigeorously defends the Assessor's valuations: howsver, in August 2020 the
Board of County Commissicners approved a settlement agreement that would dismiss the case resulting in a roll back of property
values and subsequent refunds in the amount of $23,800,000. These property owner's claims will be paid starting July 1, 2021 by
charging other funds based on management's azsessment of the original property taxes paid that should be assumed by individual
funds or, as neaded, through transfers from the General Fund.

Discretely Presented Component Unit:
General obligation bonds

Truckee Meadow Fire Protection District {TMFPD) issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities and equipment. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith
and credit of TMFPD and are additional secured by a pledge of 15% of certain procseds of liquor taxes, tobacco taxes, real
property transfer taxes, basic governmental services tax and basic and supplemental sales taxes. During the fiscal year 2021,
principal and interest paid on the bonds totaled $156 635 and pledged revenues totaled 51,559 487.

TMFPD issued general obligation capital improvement bonds in the year ended June 30, 2021 to provide funds for fire station

projects. These bonds will be repaid from all lzgally available funds of TMFPD, including its capital projects fund and its general
fund. The bonds have a stated rate of interest of 1.53% and are payable in equal installments over the next 15 years.
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General obligation bonds outstanding on June 30, 2021, are as follows:

Principal
Date of Maturity Interest Original Outstanding
Issue Date Rate Note / Issue June 30, 2021
Direct Placement: General Obligations:
Medium Term Equipment Bonds Series 2020 0372020 0372030 1.50% 35 4415000 % 4,006,000
Capital Improvement Bonds Seres 2020 1072020 06/3035 1.53% 2,100,000 1,963,000
Total General Obligation Bonds $ 6515000 $ 5,969,000
e T o

TMFPD outstanding medium-term eguipment bonds related to governmental activities of $4,008,000 contain a provision that in
an sevent of default, the band owner may institute legal proceadings against TMFPD and the interest rate may be increased to
1.92% annually.

TMFPD liability of $6,923 158 for compensated sbsences is included in their noncurrent liabiliies on the government-wide
Statement of Net Position. TMFPD compensated absences are generally liquidated from the TMFPD General Fund,

Prior to July 1, 2010, when TMFPD joined the Washoe County, Nevada OPEEB Trust (Mote 15), they financed their net other
postemployment benefits on the pay-as-you-go basis with the funds accumulated in the TMFPD Pre-Funded Retiree Health
Benefits Fund.

TMFPD claims and judgments liability of $1,920,088 mainly consisted of workers' compensation claims. These claims will be
liguidated through TMFPD Workers Compensation Fund (Mote 16). The TMFPD Workers' Compensation Fund finances the
payment of claims through transfers from the TMFPD General Fund.

Interest expense of 586,056 was recorded by TMFPD for FY21,

At June 30, 2017, the net other postemployment benefit liability for Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) was merged into the
TMFPD's OPEB Trust SFPD provides other postemployment benefits through the Sierra Fire Protection District Retiree Group
Medical Plan, a single—amployar defined benefit plan, which was administered ﬂ‘ll‘Ongh the Washoe CDLII'Ity, Nevada OPEB Trust
(Trust), an irrevocable trust (Note 15). Contributions to the Trust are now made from TMFPD General Fund and are established
each year through the annual budget process by the District's Board of Fire Commissioners.
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NOTE 10 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACTIVITY Date of Maturity Interest Original
Issue Date Rate Note / Issue
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General Obligation Bonds
Ad Valorem:
Various Purpose Refunding Sernes 2012A oarzoiz 03/2030 30-40 B3 18,090,000
Notes from direct borrowings and direct placements:
Parks and Library Refunding Series 20104 052019 052026 282 8,350,000
Taotal Ad Valorem Bonds
Revenue: (Mota 9)
Flood Control Seres 2006 * 052006 12/2035 Variable 21,000,000
Refunding Bonds Series 20128 oarzoiz 03/2027 1.0-3.0 27,580,000
Medical Examiner Bldg 2015 0azo18 032035 20-50 12,000,000
Public Safety Refunding Series 20168 03/2016 032036 20-50 9 800,000
MNotes from direct bormowings and direct placements:
Building and Parks Bonds Refunding Series 20128 08/2019 052030 2.30 10,684,000
Building and Parks Bonds Refunding Series 20208 1002020 11/2029 1.35 9,695,000
NSRS Senes 2020 082020 08/2035 20-50 9,135,000
Total General Obligation Revenue Bonds
Total General Obligation Bonds
Revenue Bonds (Note 9)
Notes from direct borrowings and direct placemenis:
Senior Lien Car Rental Fee Senes 2008 ** 02/2008 12/2027 Yariable 18,500,000
Subordinate Lien Car Rental Fee Series 2008 02/2008 1212057 7.0 9,609 845
Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Series 20164 03/20186 12/2028 3.0-50 11,305,000

Total Revenue Bonds

Special Assessment Bonds (with governmental commitment) (Note 3)

SAD 37: Spanish Spring Sewer Phase 1a 05/2007 05/2027 4.35 728,813
SAD 3% Lightning W Water System 082008 052029 7.18 899 268
5AD 32 Spanish Springs Valley Ranches Roads 122011 11/2031 3.48 B,592,787

Total Special Assessment Debt

Unamaortized Bond Pramium A MFA (1% MIA,
Total Unamorized Bond Premium and Discounts

Total Bonds Payable
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Principal Reduction/ Principal

Outstanding Additions/ Principal Outstanding Principal Due

June 30, 2020 Issued Matured [ Called June 30, 2021 in 2021-2022
12,850,000 - 1,090,000 11,760,000 § 1,140,000
8,286,000 - 1,289 D00 5,957,000 1,327,000
21,136,000 2,378,000 18,757,000 2,467,000
14,752 332 = 46,870 14,105,362 676,372
17,345,000 - 2,725,000 14,620,000 2,780,000
10,020,000 - 520,000 8,500,000 535,000
9,395,000 - 445 000 8,950,000 465,000
10,568,000 . 10,568,000 - -
- 9,685,000 - 9,695,000 734,000
- 9,135,000 - 8,135,000 435,000
52,080,332 18,830,000 14,804 970 56,005,362 5,625,372
83,216,332 18,830,000 17,283,970 84,762,362 8,092,372
11,683,600 - 1,002,400 10.681,200 1,132,300
£.086,169 - 58,807 89,027,362 57,659
10,325,000 - 935,000 9.380,000 980,000
31,084,769 - 1,896,207 29 098,562 2,168,959
148,103 - 46,102 102,001 17,820
201,282 - 80,784 110,488 8,507
3,246,738 500,576 2,746,162 219813
3,596,123 - 637 472 2,958,651 247 210
2,945 671 1,411,218 302,925 3,083,965 -
2,945,671 1,411,219 392 925 3,863,965 -
& 120,852,895 20,241,219 § 20310574 § 120,783.540 5 10,508 541
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MOTE 10 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACTIVITY (CONTINUED) Date of Maturity Interest Original
Issue Date Rate Note / Issue
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (Confinued)
Other Liabllities - (Note 8)
Compensated Absences MNAA MiA MIA, & I
Remediation Obligation NAA N/A MNIA, )
Claims and Judgmenls A MIA NIA, A
Property tax refunds A M/A M/A A
Accreted Interest MiA WA WA MiA
Total Other Liabilities
Total Governmental Aclivities
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES ***
General Obligation Bonds
Revenue: (Mote 9)
Utllities Fund:
Notes from direci borrowings:
Sewer Refunding 2015REF 08/2015 072026 2.34 17,386,176
SRF Loan 2020 05/2020 10/2049 1.68 27,000,000
Total General Obfigation Bonds
Other Liabilities (Note 9)
Compensated Absences NFA, MIA NTT A

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Washoe County Obligations

Interest on the variable-rate flood control bonds is equal to the sum of BMA (Bond Market Association) Swap Rate plus 0.70%.
The interest rate on the outstanding amount was reset on May 1, 2021 to :B141% for the next year. The next interest rate
reset will be May 1, 2022,
Interest on the variable-rate senior lien car rental bonds is equal to the greater of: (1) the minimurm rate of 3% per annum and (2} the
sum of (8) 7T0% of the swap rate plus (b) 2.22% for each of the reset periods. The rate maximum is 6.5% for December 1, 2012 -
MNovember 30, 2017, 7.5% December 1, 2017 - November 30, 2022 and 8% for December 1, 2022- November 30, 2027, The currant
interest rate iz 3.56% with a reset date of December 1, 2022.

=** Business-type debt is expectad o be retired primarily through operations.

= On December 31, 2014, in connection with the divestment of the water operations, the County amended the bond ordinances authorizing

the outstanding general obligation (limited tax) sewer bonds to pledge the net revenues of the Water Resources Fund excluding water reserves

=+ Interest is compounded thereon on June 1 and December 1 of each year commencing on December 1, 2012 at 7% uniil the final compounded
amount is paid or payment has been provided therefor,

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT:

Truckee Moadows Fire Protection District (Note 9)
General Obligation Bonds
Revenue: (Mote 5}
TMFFD Fund:
Notes from direct borrowings:

TMFPD Medium GO Bond 0372020 032030 1.50 4,415,000
Total General Obligation Bonds

Other Liabilities - (Note 9)
Compensated Absences A MAA A& MIA
Claims and Judgments A I MSA R

Total Other Liabilities

Total Tnuckes Meadows Fire Protection District Activities
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Principal Reduction/ Principal
Outstanding Additions/! Principal Qutstanding Principal Due
June 30, 2020 Issued Matured / Called June 30, 2021 in 2021-2022
30,940,673 3 21,707,288 § 19,195 482 5 33452479 § 24,687,930
4,903,012 1,269,341 1,401,775 4. 770,578 -
23,803,000 - 773,000 23,030,000 11,619,000
23,800,000 - - 23,800,000 23,800,000
- 12,365,307 - 12,365,307 -
83,446 685 35,341,936 21,370,267 97 418,364 60,106,830
204,299,580 55,583,155 41,680,831 218,201,904 70,616,471
7,352,376 - 2,316,984 5,025,392 1,608,825
195,188 13,268,485 - 13,464 673 -
7.547 554 13,260,485 2,316,984 18,500,065 1,600,825
478,693 276,180 210,833 544 D40 401,501
8,026,257 13,545,665 2.527.817 19,044,105 2,011,326
212,325,837 § 69,128.820 § 44208648 § 237,246,009 § 72,627,797
4,415,000 § 2,100,000 & 546,000 % 5,060,000 § 543,000
4,415,000 2,100,000 546,000 5,969,000 543,000
5,599,978 § 2845599 § 2152419 § 6,293,158 § 2,502 882
1,411,418 652,110 143,439 1,920,089 £8,204
7,011,396 3,497,708 2,295,858 8,213,247 2,572,086
11,426,396 5 5,597,709 § 2,841,858 § 14,182,247 § 3,115,088
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NOTE 11 — DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

The annual requirements to amortize outstanding debt are as follows:

Governmental Activities - Primary Governmant

Notes from Direct Borrowings
General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds and Direct Placements™** Special Assessment Debt
Yeéar Ended
June 30, Principal Interest™ Principal® Interest Principal® Interest™" Principal* Interest
2022 5 5506372 % 1522192 % 980,000 $ 445000 § 30685950 % 1,087,771 § 247208 § 105812
2023 5782111 1,355 211 1,030,000 304,750 4,164,174 1,014,557 247,796 85,771
2024 5,804 248 1,187,373 1,085,000 341,875 4,361,553 B37 B7S 264,271 EY 498
2025 8,222 Bd45 1,001,868 1,140,000 286,250 4,503 478 778,521 276,680 77,554
2026 5,257 572 B25 334 1,195,000 227,875 4,847 224 658,289 280,087 &7, 2344
2027-2031 17,685 273 2480 651 3,980,000 303,500 13,148,056 8,089,871 1,488,795 173 644
2032-20385 12,385 540 740,528 - - 5,758,638 8,733,418 153,833 2877
2037-2041 - - - - 1,748,601 11,884,270 -
2042-2048 - - = L 1,452,273 14,462 263 - -
2047-2051 - - - - 1,201,293 17,368,280 - -
2052-2056 - - - - 572272 7,844 228 - -
Total % 58935362 % 9,113,158 % 9,390,000 18992650 § 45535562 $ 71808243 § 2958851 5 611,302

Business-type Activities - Primary Government =

Motes from Direct Borrowings

Year Ended
June 30, Principal® Interest
2022 £ 1,609,825 § 323,799
2023 1,722,850 495775
2024 2610734 500,857
2025 2,452 0683 4587 616
2028 2,498 339 437,352
2027-2030 7,606,254 1,540,580
Total ] 18,500,064 % 3.765.990

*Principal amounts shown exclude discounts and premiums.
**Interest on the variable—rate fioed control bonds is calculated at the current rate of 1.597%.
***Interest on the variable-rate senior lien car rental bonds is calculated at the current rate of 3.56%.
**** Includes the following bond issues:

Parks and Library Refunding Series 2018-A (58.3M)

Building and Parks Bonds Refunding Series 2020-B (39.7M)

Senior Lien Rental Fee Series 2008 (318.5M)

Subordinate Lien Car Rental Fee Series ($2.9M)

NSRS Series 2020-0 ($9.135M)

oo Sewer Bonds (SRF Loan) was authorized for $27 million however only a draw of $195,188 was issuad in FY20 and 4 draws
of $13,269 485 were issued in FY21.
A loan note will be issued by State of Nevada once the $27 million has been issued.
A loan amortization schedule will be finalized ance the full $27 million has besn Issued.
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Governmental Activities-Component Unit {TMFPD)

Notes from Direct Borrowings
Year Ended

Jung 30, Principal* Interest
2022 § 543,000 90,124
2023 552,000 81,941
2024 561,000 73622
2025 570,000 65,168
2026 579.000 56,578
2027-2031 2,561,000 143,995
2032-2035 503,000 23,241
Total - 5,982,000 % 539 662

NOTE 12 - INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Interfund transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requiras to expend them or, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to
the Debt Service Fund as debt service payments become due or, (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
finance various programs accountad for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021

Transfers from: Transfers to: Amount
General Fund MNonmajor Governmental Funds 3 21,256,149
Indigent Tax Levy Fund 22,166,393
Child Protective Services 447 237
Other Restricted Funds <
Internal Service Fund 3.000,000
Subtotal 46,669,779
Other Restricted Funds General Fund 159,788
Other Restricted Funds MNonmajor Governmental Funds 1,622,053
Subtotal 1,781,842

MNonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund

a2s8,077

Monmajor Governmeantal Funds Child Protective Services 7,498,422
Monmajor Governmental Funds Monmajor Governmental Funds 8 064.726
Subtotal 17,388,225

Total Transfers In/Out § 66,039,845
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Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Transfers from: Transfers to: Amount

General Fund Capital Projects Fund ] 500,000

Capital Projects Fund Debt Service Fund 630,204
Total Transfers InfOut 3 1,130,204

The fransfer from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund was used to move unrestricted
one-time savings to fund one-time capital outlay expenditures.

NOTE 13 = FUND BALANCES | NET POSITION
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide Statement of Net Position utilizes a proprietary presentation. Net position is categorized as net investment
in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

Restricted resources have externally imposed (statutory, bond covenant, contract or grantor) limitations on their use. Restricted
resources are classified either by function, debt service, capital projects, or claims. Resources restricted by function relate to net
resources of governmental and enterprise funds whose use is legally limited by outside parties for a specific purpose. The
restriction for debt service represents resources legally restricted by State Statute or bond covenants for future debt service
requirements of both principal and interest. The amount restricted for capital projects consists of unspent grants, donations, and
debt proceeds with third party restrictions for use on specific projects or programs. Net position restricted for claims reprasents
the amount legally required to be held for payment of future claims in the self-insurance funds. The government-wide Statement
of Net Position reports $184,688,877 of restricted net resources for Governmental Activities, all of which is externally imposed.

Unrestricted net position represents available financial resources of the County.
Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based primarily
on the extent to which the County is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources of the funds.
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Fund balances classification by County function and purpose consist of the following:

Major Governmantal Funds

Child Other Nonmajor
General Protective Restricted Governmental
Fund Balances Fund Services Fund Fund Funds Total
MNonspendable:
Prepaid tems 5 150,132 § 3 5474 § -8 155,606
Restricted for:
Assessors, Clerk and Recorder technology 8 - 5 - § 5288339 § - & 5,288,339
Administrative programs c 585,830 - 585,830
Court programs and expansion - 11,365,489 - 11,365,489
Regional flood control project - - - 2,546,836 2,546,836
Regional public safety communications and fraining - - - 12,774,754 12,774,754
Other public safety programs - B 5,681,109 218,222 5,899,311
Public works programs - - 137,406 - 137,406
Regional health services and programs - - 16,276,681 15,276,681
Groundwater remediation - . - 2,604,004 2,804,004
Parks and recreation programs - . 120,426 8,226,713 8,347,129
Library expansion - . - 3,201,016 3,201,018
Programs for seniors - - - 78777 TRITT
Adull, indigent and children support services - 160,679 124,723 4,119,330 4404 732
Technology upgrades - - - 964,600 954,509
County facility improvement projects - - 26,201,310 26,201,310
Parks and open space projects - - 4,168,871 4,168,671
Incline Village property tax settiement 23,800,000 - - 23,800,000
Intergovernmental 3,000,000 - 36,054 - 3,036,064
Debt service 750,000 1,118,973 7,951,837 8,621,810
Total Restricted 27,550,000 160,679 24 459 340 B8 532,850 140,702,978
Committed to:
Regicnal fiood control project 134,849 B - - 134,849
Administrative programs 172,961 - - - 172,961
Technoloagy upgrades 136,959 - - - 136,959
Animal control and services - - - 6,474,931 6,474,931
Roadways - - - 1,291,053 1,281,063
Groundwater remediation - - - 1,863,569 1,963,560
Park maintenance and Improvement - - 045 300 - 945,300
Library expansion - - - T44 379 T44 379
Marijuana Establishments - - 434 805 434, 805
Adult, indigent and children support services - 10,292,611 - 10,292 611
Programs for seniors - = 1,691,780 1,681,780
Total Committed 444,769 10,292,611 945 300 12,600 517 24,283,197
Assigned to:
Roadways - - BATT 217 8477217
General Fund encumbrances reappropriated
for various functional departments 2,257 487 = - 2,267 487
Total Assigned 2,257,487 - - BATT.217 10,734,704
Unassigned 122,086,966 - (294, 088) - 121,492 878
Total Fund Balances § 152489354 5 10453290 5 24816035 % 109,610,684 § 297,369,363
-} — 3 ]
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Proprietary Funds

The net position of business-type funds and internal service funds are categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted
and unrestricted as described for the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

MNet position held in trust for pool participants in the Statement of Fiduciary Met Position represent cash and investments held in
trust for other agencies parficipating in the County’s investment pool,

NOTE 14 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PROGRAM
Plan Description

The County end one discretely presented component unit, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD), contribute to the
Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit public
employees’ retirement system which includes both Regular and Police/Fire members. PERS was established by the Nevada
Legislatura in 1947, effective July 1, 1848. PERS is administered to provide a reasonable base income to gualified employees
who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed or substantially impaired by
age or disability

Benefits Provided

Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of years of accredited
service at time of retirement and the member's highest average compensation in any 38 consecutive months with special
provisions for members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010 and July 1, 2015. Benefit payments to which participants or
their beneficiaries may be entitted under the plan include pension benefits, disability benefits, and survivor benefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.50% of average compensation for each accredited year of service
prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001 to December 31, 2008, this factor is 2.67% of average
compensation. For members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010 to June 30, 2015, the factor is 2.50%. For members
entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015, the factor is 2. 25%. PERS offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement
allowance which, in general, allow the retired employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during
his or her lifetime and various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after the retiree's death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 2B6.575 - 579.
WVesting

Regular members entering PERS prior to January 1, 2010 are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age
B0 with ten years of sarvice, or at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering PERS on or after January 1,
2010 through June 30, 2015, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 62 with ten years of service, or
at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015 are eligible for retirement at age
65 with five years of service, at age 52 with ten years of service, at age 55 with 30 years of service, or at any age with 33 1/3 years
of service.

Police/Fire members entering PERS prior to January 1, 2010 are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age
55 with ten years of service, at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years of service. Police/Fire
members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015, are eligible for retirement at 65 with five years of
service, at age 80 with ten years of service, at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Only
service performed in a position as a police officer or firefighter may be counted towards eligibility for retirement as Polica/Fire
accredited service. Police/Fire members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015 are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years
of service, at age 60 with ten years of service, at age 50 with twenty years of service, at age 55 with thirty years of service, or at
any age with 33 1/3 years of service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a member who has an

effective date of membership before July 1, 1985 is entitled to a benefit of up to 80% of average compensation. Both Regular and
Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon completion of five years of service.
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Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution rates is set by statute.
Mew hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 1, 1983, have the option of
selecting one of two contribution plans. Confributions are shared equally by employer and employes. Employees can take a
reduced salary and have contributions made by the employer (EPC) or can make contributions by a payroll deduction matched by
the employer.

PERS' basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary throughout an
employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due,

PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to fund PERS on an actuarial
reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the required rates established by the Nevada Legislature,
These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286 421 and 286 450. These contribution rates are applied to
PERS-eligible compensation components and charged to the same Funds or programs where the compensation is incurred.

The actuanal funding method used is the Entry Age Mormal Cost Method. 1t is intended to meet the funding objective and result
in a relatively level long-term contribution requirement as a percentage of salary.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the statutory employerfemployee matching rate was 15.25% for Regular Members and
22.00% for Police/Fire. The Employer-pay contribution (EPC) rate was 29.25% for Regular Members and 42.50% for Police/Fire,

The County's total pension contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 were $65 467,885, Under Nevada Revised
Statutes, one-half of the total employer-paid contributions are deemed to be from employers and one-half is deemed to be from
employees (through salary schedule reductions).

PERS Investment Policy

PERS' policies which determine the Investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS Board. The asset
allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future nsk and return needs of PERS.

The following was the PERS Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Geometric Expected Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 42% 5 50%
Intarnational Equity 18% 5.50%
Domestic Fixed Income 28% 0.75%
Private Markets 12% 6.65%

As of June 30, 2020, PERS’ long-term inflation assumption was 2.75%.

Net Pension Liability

The net pensian liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuanal valuation as of that date. The County’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
County's share of employer contributions to PERS relative to the total employer contributions of all participating PERS employers
and members for the period ended June 30, 2020, The County's proportion was 3.05590%, which was an increase of 0.02418
from its proportion measured at June 30, 2019,

Pension Liability Discount Rate Sensitivity
The following presents the net pension liability of the County as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50%, as

well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower
(8.50%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current discount rate;

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(6.50%) {7.50%:) (8.50%)
MNet Pension Liability § 663828647 $  425636,598 $ 227597613
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the PERS’ Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report, available on the PERS website — www.nvpers.org.

Actuarial Assumptions
The County's net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net

pension liability was determined by PERS' actuarial valuation as of that date. The total pension liability was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, as reporied by PERS, applied to all periods included in the measurement;

Inflation Rate 2.75%
Productivity Pay Increases 0.50%
Investment Rate of Retumn 7.50%
Projected Salary Increases Regular: 4.25% to 8.15%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 4.55% to 13.80%, depending on service
Rates include inflation and productivity increases

Mortality:
Healthy Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table
{ages 50 and over), Headcount-Weighted RP-2014
Employee Mortality Tables (ages less than 50), both
projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2018, set forward one
year for spouses and beneficiaries.
Disabled Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table,
set forward four years.
Pre-Retirement Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Employee Table,
projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016.
Other Assumptions Same as those used in PERS' June 30, 2020 funding

actuarial valuation,

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were basad on the results of the experience study for the period July
1, 2012 through June 30, 2016.

The discount rate used to measure the total pensicn liability was 7.50% as of June 30, 2020. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rate specified in statute. Based
on that assumption, the pension plan’'s fiduciary net position at June 30, 2020 was projected to be available to make all projected
future benafit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied o all pericds of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30,
2020.
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Pension Expense, Deferred QOutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County recognized pension expensze of $38,343 434 excluding employer-paid deemed
member contributions. At June 30, 2021, the County reported defarred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Defarred Inflows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 5 13,224 234 kS 5,496 002
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 11,955,669
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments - 16,078,752
Changes in the employer's proportion and differances

between the employer's contributions and the

employer's proporticnate contributions 7,174,297 4,775 270
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 32733843 -

o § 65,088,143 § 26,350,024

$32,733,943 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from employer contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through PERS (active and
inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2019 {the beginning of the measurement period ended June 30, 2020) is 6.13 years.

Other estimated amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defemed inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30,

2022 (5,760,980)
2023 3,975,064
2024 3,907 258
2025 2,851,565
2026 928,693
Thereafter 102,560

Total 5 8,004,181

The following is the reconciliation of the June 30, 2021 net pension liability:

Beginning Net Pension Liability 8 413,343,289
Pension Expanse 38,343,434
Employer Contributions {31,846 358)
New Net Deferred Inflows/Outflows 7,755,758
Recognition of Prior Deferred {Inflows )/Outflows (1,859,525)
Ending Net Pension Liability & 425,636 598

Additional Information

The PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is available on the PERS website at www.nvpers.org under Quick
Links — Publications.
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Discretely Presented Component Units

On March 27, 2012 the Board of Fire Commissioners approved an interocal agreement transferring operations of the Sierra Fire
Protection District (SFPD) to TMFPD. As of June 30, 2012, all SFPD employees were transferred to TMFPD and, therefore, SFPD
no longer contributes to PERS. The employees remained participants of PERS and their accounts were transferred to TMFPD.

On July 1, 2012 all TMFPD employees were covered under the employer pay contribution plan method. Prior to July 1, 2012, the
benefits for TMFPD plan members are funded under one of two methods. Under the employer pay contribution plan, TMFPD is
required to contribute all amounts dug under the plan. The second funding mechanism for providing benefits is the
employer/employee paid contribution plan. Under this method, employees are required to contribute a percentage of their
compensation to the plan, while TMFPD is required to match that contribution. The caonfribution requirements of plan members
and the TMFPD are established by Chapter 286 of NRS and may only be amended through legislation.

TMFPD's contributions to PERS were $2 861,304 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

At June 30, 2021, TMFPD reported a liability for its proportionate share of PERS' net pension liability. The net pension liability
was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. TMFPD's proportion of the net pension liability was based on TMFPD’s share of contributions
to PERS' pension plan relative to the total contributions of all participating PERS employers and members for the period ended
June 30, 2020. TMFPD's proportion was 0.25331%, which is an increase of 0.01242 from its proportion measured at June 30,
2019

The following presents the net pension liability of TMFPD as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50%, as
well as what TMFPD's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower
(6.50%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.50%:) than the current discount rate:

1% Decreasain 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)
Met Pension Liability & 55,025,266 g 35,281,344 & 18,865,741

For the year ended June 30, 2021, TMFPD recognized pension expense of $3,862,478. At June 30, 2021, TMFPD reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience £ 1,086,167 5 455,568
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 991,015 =
Met difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments - 1,332,780
Changes in the employer's proportion and differences

between the employer's contributions and the

employer's proportionate contributions 3,631,252 337,186
District's contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,961,304 -

e & 8,675,738 $ 2,125,534

$2,961,304 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from employer contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of TMFPD's net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through PERS (active and
inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2018 (the beginning of the measurement period ended June 30, 2020 is 6.13 years.
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Other estimated amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense by TMFPD as follows:

Year Ended June 30,

2022 $ 313,845

2023 1.023,985

2024 1,161,869

2025 725286

2026 329,734
Thereafter 38,181
Total 3 3,582,800

NOTE 15 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Plan Descriptions and Eligibility

The County provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for eligible employees through the Retiree Health Benefit Program
(RHBEP), a single-employer defined benefit OPEE plan, and participates in the State of Nevada's Public Employees Benefit Plan,
which is treated as a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan for financial reporting purpeses. Both plans are administered
through the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (Trust), an irrevocable trust established on May 11, 2010 by the BCC. The
Trust is a multiple employer trust and was created to fund and account for the participating employers” costs of retiree healthcare
benefits pursuant to NRS 287.017. Complete financial statements of the Trust may be obtained by writing to: OPEB Trust, clo
Washoe County Comptroller's Office, 1001 E. Ninth Strest, Bidg, D-200, Reno, Nevada, 89512, The measurement focus of these
plans is their net CPEB liabilities.

The County contributes to its OPEB plans annually, generally based on the actuarially determined contribution amount for each
plan. The contributions are ratably allocated to all County Funds and programs that have salary expense.

Additionally, Truckes Meadow Fire Protection District (TMFPD), a discretely presented component unit, provides OPEB for eligible
employees through the Truckes Meadows Fire Protection District Retiree Group Medical Plan (RGMP), a single-employer defined
benefit plan. As of July 1, 2018, the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) Retiree Group Medical Plan was consolidated into the
TMFPD RGMP, and SFPD's retirees are provided OPEB through the TMFPD RGMP. Since July 1, 2010 beth of these plans
have been administered through the Trust. The measurement facus of this plan is its net OPEB liability.

Washoe County Retires Health Benefit Program (RHEP)

In accordance with NRS 287.010, the BCC adopted the RHBP to provide postemployment benefits to eligible employees upon
retirement.  Retirees are offered medical, prescription, vision, life, and dental insurance for themselves and their dependents
Retirees can choose between two self-funded group health plans (PPO and HOHP), and an HMO Plan.

All employees hired before July 1, 2010 who retire from County employment and receive monthly payments under PERS are
eligible to participate in the RHBP. In addition, employees hired before this date who have terminated employment prior to
retirament may enroll in the RHBP upon commencing retirement if the County is that individual's last public employer.

As of June 30, 2020, the measurement date of the RHBP’s last actuarial valuation, the following persons were covered by the
terms of the plan;

Active employees 2,461
Retirees and surviving spouses 1,762
Total Participants 4,223

Far eligible retirees, the County pays a portion of the retiree's premium based on years of County service. Benefits are provided
under two contribution “tiers”; Tier 1 includes employees hired prior to various exclusion dates between 1897 and 1989, as
stipulated in employee association contracts, and Tier 2 includes all employses hired after the Tier 1 exclusion dates, but befare
July 1, 2010, Retired plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits are required to contribute specified amounts
monthly toward the cost of health insurance premiums depending on their respective tier. Retirees pay 100% of the premium for
dependent coverage. Retires premiums reflect an implicit subsidy as a result of NRS 287.023, which requires commingling of the
claims experience of both active and retired employee and covered dependents in determining the premiums.
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For Tier 1 refirees, the retiree’s contribution is determined as follows, except for the cost of dental benefits which is 100% paid for
by the retiree, regardless of years of County service:

Tier 1 Retiree
Years of Service Contribution
Less than 10 10056
10 but less than 15 50%
18 but less than 20 25%
20 or mora 0%

For Tier 2 retirees, the retiree’s contribution is the maonthly premium amount less a County-paid premium subsidy stipulated in
employee association contracts. For retirees of any age not enrolled in Medicare, the County’s monthly subsidy during fiscal year
2021 depends on years of full-time service and ranged from a minimum of $120 for five years to a maximum of $6891 for 20 or
more years. For retirees age 65 and over and enrolled in Medicare, the County's monthly subsidy ranged from $66 to $281 based
on years of service.

The County is required by employee association agreements to contribute, at a minimum, the amount necessary to fund current
retiree health plan premium costs plus the actuarially determined “normal cost”. These agreements can only be amended through
a negotiation process between the County and the employee associations. The BCC approves the ratiree health benefit
contribution amount annually, which is based on the actuarially determined contribution amount for the year. In fiscal year 2021,
the County budgeted and contributed $16,898,159.

State of Nevada' li o ' Benefits Plan (PEBP

NRS 257.023 allowed County retirees to join the State’s PEBP through September 1, 2008, at the County's expense. |t is closed
to existing County employees. Eligibility and subsidy requirements are governed by statutes of the State and can only be amended
through legislation. PEBP is administered by a nine-member governing board and provides medical, dental, prescription, vision,
life, and accident insurance for retirees.

Contribution reguirements in the form of a premium subsidy are assessed by the PEBP Board annually. The County is required
to provide a subsidy for their eligible retirees that have elected to join PEBP. The subsidy for this plan is based on years of service
with the County as a proportionate share of the retiree's total years of PERS service, and in fiscal year 2021 ranged from a
minimum of $1 monthly to a maximum of $720 manthly.

Additionally, the BCC approves an annual contribution amount based on the actuarially determined contribution amount for the
year. In fiscal year 2021, the County budgeted and contributed $101,841.

As of June 30, 2020, the measurement date of the PEBP Plan's last actuarial valuation, there were 288 former County employees
enrolled in the PEBP.

TMFFPD Retiree Group Medical Plan (TMFPD RGMP)

Prior to July 1, 2000, TMFPD provided heaith insurance benefits to retired employees through a single-employer defined benefit
plan, AtJune 30, 2000, ten retirees were participating in the TMFFPD RGMP. On July 1, 2000, pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement
for Fire Services and Consalidation, TMFPD operations were transferred to the City of Reno (City) and the City accepted liability
for the ten retirees under this plan. In accordance with the Interlocal Agreement, for those employees who transferred employment
to the City and retired prior to June 30, 2012 or during the term of the Interlocal Agreement, TMFPD pays a proportionate share
of employees’ retiree health benefit costs based on service earned prior to July 1, 2000, Health benefits under the City's plan
include medical, prescription, vision, dental and life insurance.

The Interlocal Agreement was terminated on June 30, 2012, and TMFPD assumed responsibility for its own fire district operations
as of July 1, 2012. As of June 30, 2012, in preparation of standing up the new fire operations, 11 former Reno firefighters
transferred to TMFPD with the provision that TMFPD would provide retiree health benefits for those 11 employees. Any former
TMFPD employees remaining employed by the City as of July 1, 2012 retained retiree health benefits with the City and the City
retained the liability for those employees. Employess hired by TMFPD prior to July 1, 2014 are eligible for retires health banefits
through the TMFPD RGMP. Benefits under the new TMFPD RGMP, a single-employer defined benefit plan, include health, dental,
vision and prescription coverage. Eligible retirees who retire from TMFPD will be required to pay for 50% of the retirees’ health
insurance premium and 100% of the cost of coverage for their families. Eligibility reguirements, benefit levels, employee
contributions, and employer contributions may be amended by the mutual agreement of the TMFPD and the TMFPD Fire Fighters'
Association.

As of July 1, 2010, TMFPD became a participating employer in the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust, and the TMFPD RGMP
is administered through that Trust.
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As of June 20, 2020, the measurement date of the plan's last actuarial valuation, participation in the TMFPD RGMP was as follows:

Active employees 144

Retirees and surviving spouses 55

Total Participants 182
)

The TMFPD RGMP also includes former employees of the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD). TMFPD and SFPD consolidated
as of July 1, 2016; prior to that date, health insurance benefits for SFPD retirees were provided through the TMFPD RGMP, but
the liability for the payment of SFPD's retiree health benefits was retained by SFPD. As a result of the consolidation, TMFPD
assumed this liability,

In fiscal year 2021, TMFPD budgeted and contributed $750,000.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Each plan's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liabilities used to calculate their respective
nat OPEB liability were determined by actuarial valuations for each plan as of July 1, 2020.

Actuarial valuations include projections of the sharing of benefit-related costs that are based on labor association agreements and
an established pattern of practice. The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuation for each plan was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

RHBP PEBP Plan TMFFD RGMP
Inflation 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Salary increases 7.5% first 4 years, 2 5% thereafier nia First two years after valuation:
8.0% for each of firsl 4 years,
3.0% thereafter
Years 3+ after valuation:
7.5% for each of first 4 years,
2 5% thereafler
Investment rate of return 5.75% 5.75% 5.75%
Heallhcare cost trend rates:
Pre-65 retiress §.2% initial, 4.0% ulfimate 6.3% initlal, 4.0% ultimate 8.2% initial, 4.0% ultimate
Post-65 relirees 5.9% inifial, 4.0% ultimate 5.6% initial, 4.0% ultimate 8.2% initial, 4.0% ulimate
Medicare subsidy nia Medicare subsidy level (once nfa

eligible) Is approximately 40%
of non-Medicare subsidy level

Mortaiity rates for the RHEP, the PEBP Plan, and the RGMP were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Male and Female Healthy
Annuitant mortality tables adjusted to reflect Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2013 (for the RHBP and RGMP) or MP-2018 (for
the PEBF Flan) from the 2006 base year, and projected forward using projection scale MP-2019 on a generational basis.

For the RHBP and the PEBP Plan, the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuations used the Nevada Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS) demographic assumptions from PERS' 2017 expenence study. For the TMFPD RGMP, the fiscal year 2019 PERS
demographic assumptions, based on the results of the experience review issued October 16, 2017, were used.

Investment rate of retum. The investment rate of return of 5.75%, net of investment expenses, was selected by the plans. Thisis
based on the investment policy of the State of Nevada's Retiree Benefits Investment Fund (RBIF), where the plans invest their
asséets to fund their OPEE liabiliies. This rate is derived from RBIF's investment policy (shown in the table below), and includes
a 2.50% long-term inflation assumption.

Asset Class Asset Allocation
U. 5. Equity 50.5%
International Equity 21.5%
U. 5. Bands 28.0%

Discount rate. The discount rate should be the single rate that reflects the long-term rate of return on OPEB plan investments that
are expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits, to the extent that plan assets are projected to cover the benefit
payments. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.75% for all plans.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate for the RHBP and the PEBP Plan assumed that County
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates, which has been the County's pattern of
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contributions over the past several years, Based on those assumptions, the RHBP's and the PEBP Plan's Fiduciary Net Positions
are projected to be sufficient to cover all projected future benefit payments of current plan members and administrative expenseas

of the plans.

For the TMFPD RGMP, the projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate reflects the District's decision in fiscal
year 2019 to implement a funding policy intended to fund the RGMP Total OPEB Liability at an 80% ratio. The RGMP's actuary
determined that the detailed depletion date projections outlined in GASB 74 and 75 will show that the Fiduciary Met Position of the

JUNE 30, 2021
(CONTINUED)

RGMP are projected to be sufficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses.

Changes in OPEB Liabilities

Balances at June 30, 2020
Measurement date of June 30, 2019
Changes for the year;
Ganvice cost
Interest on the total OPER liability
Differences betweean actual and expected experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Contributions - employer
Contributions - other
Met investment income
Administrative expense
Other changes

Met Changes

Balances at June 30, 2021
Measurement date of June 30, 2020

Balances at June 30, 2020
Measurement date of June 30, 2019
Changes for the year:
Interest on the total OFEB liability
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Contributions - employer
MNet investment income
Administrative expense

Net Changes

Ealanges at June 30, 2021
Measuramant date of June 30, 2020

RHBP
Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary z
Total OPEB Liahility Net Position Net OPEB Liability
(a) (b) {a) - (b)
§ 487 453,752 $ 252,268,786 Y 235,184,966
5,646,136 - 5,646,136
20.103,076 - 20,103,076
(B5E,458) . (BOG6 459)
(123,584.517) - (123,584 517)
(16,335,205) (16,335,205) -
- 20,188,000 (20,188,000)
- 458,977 (458,977)
i 17,131,267 (17,131,267)
- (54.574) 54 574
(106,066,968) 21,388 465 (127 455,434)
$ 381,386,783 § 273857251 3 107,729,532

PEBP Plan

Increase (Decrease)

y Plan Fiduciary
Total OPEB Liahility Nk raltias Net OPEE Liability
(a) () (a) - (b)
304821 5 2,721,903 £ 1,226,328
228,043 £ 228,043
123,541 = 123,541
(468,540} - (468,540)
(299,400} (298,400) >
- 102,150 (102,159)
+ 180,349 (180,349)
(21,510 21,510
(416,356) (38,402) (377,954)
3,531,875 § 2683501 8 848,374
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TMFPD RGMP
Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary
Total OPEB Liability Nist Pasition Met OPEB Liability
(@ (b} (a) - (b)
Balances at June 30, 2020
: 10,737,148 6,185,499 4 551,649
Measurement date of June 30, 2019 ’ el : e $ FEEE
Changes for the year:
Service cost 538 625 - 538 625
Interest on the total OPEE liability 671,333 - 671,333
Differences between actual and expected experience 817675 = 817 675
Changes of assumplions BG1.77Y - BB1.TTT
Benefit payments (176,377) (178,377 -
Confributions - employer - 651,000 {651,000}
Met investment income B 418,050 (418,050)
Administrative expense B (39,115) 38,115
Met Changes 2,713,033 853,558 1,850,475
BRIIeS atJlna 2L, cte) § 13450181 & 7,039,057 § 6,411,124

Measurement date of June 30, 2020

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect changes in the discount rate used by all plans from the previous actuarial
valuations to the June 30, 2020 measurement date from 6.00% to 5.75%. Additionally, the RHBP's health care costs were lower
than expected in the previous valuation, and the medical costs trend assumption also decreased, in part due to the elimination of
the ACA excise tax. PEBP Plan assumption changes included premium amounts, medical cost trends, mortality, and paricipant
census. TFPD RGMP assumption changes included participant election, off set by medical costs trends

Sensitivity of the OFPEB liabilities to changes in the discount rafe. The following presents the net OPEB liabilities of the plans, as
well as what each plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(4.75 percent) or 1-percentage-paint higher (8.75 parcent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
in Discount Rate Discount Rate in Discount Rate
4.75% 5.75% 6.75%
Washoe County
RHEP - Net OPEB Liability § 163,280,392 3 107,729,532 $ 62,633,583
PEBP - Net OPEB Liability $ 1,222,531 b 848,374 3 532,250
TMFPD
RGMP - Net OPEB Liability $ 7,939,575 b 6,411,124 5 5,082,057

Sensitivity of the OFEB liabilities to changes in the healthcare cost trend rafes. The following presents the net OPEB liabilities of
the plans, as well as what each plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
1-perceniags-point lower or 1-percentage-point highar than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

RHBP
1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
in Healthcare Costs Healthcare Costs in Healthcare Costs
Trend Rate Trend Rate Trend Rate
{5.20% initial, 3.00% ultimate) (6.20% initial, 4.00% ultimate)  (7.20% initial, 5.0% ultimate)
Met OPEB Liability 5 52,519,627 % 107,729,532 $ 163,282,300
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PEBP Plan
1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
in Healthcare Costs Healthcare Costs in Healthcare Costs
Trend Rate Trend Rate Trend Rate
{5.30% initial, 3.00% ultimate)  (6.30% initial, 4.00% ultimate)  (7.30% initial, 5.00% ultimate)
Met OPEB Liability 5 543,230 3 848,374 3 1,202,506
TMFFPD RGMP
1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
in Healthcare Costs Healthcare Costs in Healthcare Costs
Trend Rate Trend Rate Trend Rate
{7.20% initial, 3.00% ultimate)  (8.20% initial, 4.00% ultimate)  (9.20% initial, 5.00% uliimate)
MNet OPEB Liability 5 4 852 045 5 6,411,124 g 8,256,232

OFEB plans fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position s available in the separately
issued Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust financial report.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County recognized OPEB expense of $(3,380,302) for the RHEP and ${288,300) for the

PEEP Plan. TMFPD recognized OFEB expense of $1,300,594. At June 30, 2021, the County and TMFPD reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

RHBP
Deferred Qutfiows Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 3 8B40 647 3 766,637
Changes of assumptions - 109,395,451
Met difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments - 7,280,282
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 16,898,159 -
Total g 17,738,806 3 117,442 270
PEBP Plan
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources
Met difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments 5 - 5 82 476
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 101,841 -
Total i 101.841 $ 82,476

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources
Totals - Washos County OPEB plans 5 17,840,647 5 1 1?,32;4,?_@ ]
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TMFPD RGMP
Deferred Outfiows Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 3 730,781 5 14,722
Changes of assumptions 1,999 864 i
Met difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments - 174,031
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 750,000 -
Total - TMFPD OPEBE plan 5 3,480,645 5 188,753

For Washoe County, $17,000,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to both its OPEB plans resulting from
employer cantributions to the plans subsequent to the plans’ measurement dates will be recognized as a reduction of the County's
net OPER liability in the year ended June 30, 2022

For TMFPD, $750,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to its OPEB plan resulting from employer contributions
subsequent to the measuremeant date of its plan will be recognized as a reduction of TMFPD's net OPER liability in the year ended
June 30, 2022

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense as follows;

Year ended June 30: RHBP PEBP Plan TMFPD RGMP
2022 $ (22477197) % (46,087) 8 435 528
2023 (20,6855,197) (20,738) 485,961
2024 (20,098,398) (10,949) 500,133
2025 (19,093 .465) (4,702) 333,193
2026 (18.040,722) - 178,475
Theraafter (16,236,644) - 608,602

Total §  (116,601,623) ] (B2.476) $ 2541892

Defined Contribution Plan (TMFPD):
Plan Description and Eligibility

During the year ended June 30, 2020, Truckee Meadow Fire Protection District (TMFPD) agreed fo participate in a Post-
Employment Health Plan (PEHP) a defined contribution plan for collectively bargained public employees. Under the agreement
with International Association of Fire Fighters Local 2487 (Local 2487), Local 2487 determines the plan administrator for the PEHP
and TMFPD agrees to contribute to the PEHP on behalf of the employees. The plan administrator for the PEHP is Nationwide
Insurance Company (the Administrator).

Employess who are members of Local 2487 hired with TMFPD on or before July 1, 2014, will have a one-time contribution of
$1,000 made by TMFPD to the employee's PEHF account for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 for the non-supervisory group
and for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 for the supervisory group; thereafter an annual contribution of $120 will be made by
TMFPD to the employee’s PEHP account. Employeas who are members of Local 2487 group hired with TMFPD after July 1, 2014
will have an annual contribution of $2 880 made by TMFPD to the employee's PEHP account. The employee will pay all associated
account administrative fees for the PEHP to keep the account in good standing. Contribution rates are established within the CBA
and may be amended with by mutual agreement of TMFPD and Local 2487,

Vesting and Forfeitures (TMFPD)

The plan does not have a vesting period. Each employee shall become an eligible employees as determined by the collective
bargaining agreement (CBA) and shall be entitled to receive a contribution to the PEHP as set forth in the participation agreement
and CBA on the entry date coincident with or next following the later of the date on which the participant becomes an eligible
employee, or the effective date of the PEHP.
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If an eligible employee or participant has no dependents on the date notice of death is provided to the Administrator and no
dependent is identified and no request to pay qualifying medical care expenses directly to a service provider, on behalf of a
deceased eligible employee or participant, is received within 180 days of the date on which the Administrator was notified of an
eligible employee or participant’s death, the balance in the participant’s account will be forfeited.

Any amount forfeited shall be allocated as soon as administratively practicable following, the date on which the Administrator
determines that a forfeiture has occurred to the accounts of all other eligible employess and participants who are {or were)
employed by TMFPD and have an account balance on the valuation date. Forfeitures shall be allocated among the eligible
employee and participants in accordance with procedures established by the Administrator.

Truckes Meadows Fire Protection District recognized an OPEB expense related to the defined contribution plan in the amount of
$173,582 as of June 30, 2021

NOTE 16 - RISK MANAGEMENT

In 1981, the County started salf-funding its workers' compensation obligations. Since then, the County has increased the number
of programs where the self-funding is practiced and the proportion of the loss exposure which it self-funds. Currently, the County
self-funds portions of its fiscal responsibility related to exposures of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors or omissions, and health insurance claims.

Twa internal service funds have been established to account for these programs:
The Risk Management Fund accounts for costs related to general liability, auto liability, workers' compensation, property coverage

and unemployment compensation. Excapt for unemployment compensation, these costs are covered through a combination of
self-funding and insurance purchased from oulside carriers.

The Health Benefits Fund accounts for life, medical, prescription, dental and wvision insurance programs. The plans contained
within the Health Benefits Fund are handled through contracts with an external claims administrator, a preferred provider
organization for medical services and through the purchase of various insurance plans, including a fully-insured medical and
prescription plan.

At any time, there are & number of lawsuits and unresolved disputes involving the County, which are administered by the Risk
Management Division. These items are reviewed by the Risk Management Division with input from the District Attorney’s Office
and the appropriate third party administrator, They set the values to the extent a value is determinable. Claims liabilities are
reevaluated periodically to take into consideration recently settled claims, including the effects of specific incremental claim
adjustment expenses, salvage and subrogation. Allocated claim adjustment expenses are included. Annually, an aggregate value
is placed on all claims through the performance of an actuarial study.

The values set by the actuary for both short and long-term liabilities are as follows:

Current Long-Term Total
Pending Claims:
Property and liability claims § 1,181,000 % 3,032,000 § 4,213,000
Workers' compensation claims 5,512,000 8,379.000 12,881,000
Unprocessed Health Benefits Fund claims 4,926,000 - 4,826,000
Total Pending Claims $ 11819000 § 11,411,000 & 23,030,000

The level of insurance coverage purchased by the County for property-related claims ranges from $500,000 to a policy limit of
$500 million, depending on the incident  Deductibles generally range from $2,500 to $50,000. Liability and workers' compensation
claims are self-insured up to $1.5 million each; insurance policies are in place for losses greater than this amount. Thers were no
settled claims in excess of insurance coverage in the current fiscal year or the three prior fiscal years.

Wany items invalving the Risk Management Fund do not specifically fall within the criteria used by the actuary for evaluation. Such
iterns include contract disputes and noninsurance items. Currently, there is a net position of $21,476,319 in the Risk Management
Fund for claims that fall inte areas not recognized in the actuarial studies and possible catastrophic losses that exceed parameters
of the actuarial studies, in addition to the claims that are evaluated by the actuary. The net pesition amount is restricted for the
payment of claims per NRS 354.6215.
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The County's exposure for the self-funded portion of health insurance claims is limited to $250,000 per claim each year. Stop-
loss insurance is in place for claims above this amount. Currently, there is a net position of $14,991,730 in the Health Benefits
Fund for claims in excess of amounts projected by the actuary. The net position amaunt is restricted for the payment of claims
par NRS 354 6215.

Claims liability and activity for the Risk Management and the Health Benefits Funds for the fiscal years ending June 30 were as
follows:

Risk Management Health Benefits

Fund Fund
Claims Liability/Activity:

Claims Liability, June 30,2018 & 20404000 S 3,599,000
Claims and changes in estimates 3,763,074 40,825 226
Claim payments (5,384,074) (39 404 226)

Claims Liability, June 30, 2020 18,783,000 5.020,000
Claims and changes in estimates 2702004 38,461,336
Claim payments (3,381,004) (38,555, 336)

Claims Liability, June 30, 2021 s 18,104,000 3 4,926,000

The non-discounted amount of unpaid claims in the Risk Management Fund at June 30 is $18,255,000. The interest rate used
for discounting was 2.5%.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD), discretely presented component unit, does not participate in the Washoe
County Risk Management or Health Benefits Funds.

The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) is exposed, as are all entities, to various risks of loss related to torts; theft
of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
Disfrict is fully insured for property and auto loss and liability with a $1,000 to $2,500 deductible; This Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District is covered up to a policy limit per occurrence of $10,000,000 and $20,000,000 annual aggregate in excess
liability coverage. The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District's policy contains various sub-limits established for earthquake,
flood, equipment breakdown, errors and omissions and other items.

As of April 1, 2012, TMFPD and SPFD entered an Interlocal Agreement to consolidate fire department administration and
operations. Under that Interlocal Agresment, all SFPD employees became TMFPD employees. Health insurance and workers'
compensation benefits are paid by the TMFPD through their consclidated budget.

In fiscal year 2012-13, TMFPD seif-funded its health benefits until June 1, 2013, The TMFPD Health Benefits Fund was
established to account for life insurance, medical, prescription, dental and vision programs. The self-funded plans contained within
the TMFPD Health Benefits Fund were handled through contracts with an external claims administrator and through the purchase
of various insurance plans. As of June 1, 2013, the TMFPD purchased a guaranteed health benefit plan and is no longer self-
funded. The SFPD health plan ceased with the transition of SFPD employees to TMFPD during the fiscal year endad June 30,
2012,

During the term of the Reno/Truckes Meadows Fire Protection Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Interlocal Agreement,
workers' compensation was fully insured with the City of Reno’s self-funded warkers’ compensation plan. Due to the termination
of the Agreement, as of July 1, 2012, the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District is no longer self-funded with the City of Reno
but has purchased a guaranteed workers compensation insurance plan. However, the Truckes Meadows Fire Protection District
is still required to pay workers' compensation claims costs to the City of Reno for those years the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District was self-funded through the City of Reno's workers' compensation plan.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the City of Reno instituted a "pay
as you go” system for workers' compensation claims. The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District shared the combined losses
with the Reno Fire Depariment (RFD). The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District established the Warkers' Compensation
Fund to account for this program. The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District brought out all workers' compensation liability for
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all claims incurred prior to July 1, 2012, Claims incurred prior to fiscal year 2012 remain the liability of the City of Reno under the
buyout agreement. TMFPD will remain responsible for future Heart and Lung related workers’ compensation claims on a “pay as
you go” system.

Claims liability and activity for the past two years ending June 30 were as follows:

TMFPD Workers’
Compensation
Fund
Claims Liability/Activity:

Claims Liability, July 1, 2019 B 1,390,969

Claims and changes in estimates 40,857
Claims payments (20,208)
Claims Liability, June 30, 2020 1,411,418
Claims and changes in estimates 652,110
Claims payments (143,438}

Claims Liability, June 30, 2021 § 1,820,089

NOTE 17 — JOINT VENTURES
Truckee Meadows Water Authority

The Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) is a joint powers authority formed in November 2000, pursuant to a Cooperative
Agreement among the Cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County (Membars). TMWA was formed in order to purchase water
assets and undertake water utility operations of Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation, and to develop, manage
and maintain supplies of water for the ongoing benefit of the Truckee Meadows community. TMWA has issued bonds that do not
constitute an obligation of the Cities of Reno or Sparks, the County, or the State.

Under the terms of the Cocperative Agreement, TMWA's Board of Directors has the power to perindically assess the Members
directly for budgets and for the satisfaction of any liabilities imposed against TMWA. Since TMWA's formation no such
assessments have been made. The arrangement is considerad a joint venture with no equity interest recorded in the County's
financial statements because no explicit and measurable equity interest is deemed to exist. The County appoints two directors of
a seven-member governing body.

Separate audited financial statements and information for the joint venture are available by contacting the Authority's Chisef
Financial Officer at P,O, Box 30013, Reno, NV 88520-3013.

Truckee River Flood Management Authority

The Truckee River Flood Management Authority (TRFMA) is a joint powers authority formed in March 2011, pursuant to a
Cooperative Agreement among the Cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County (Members). The govemning body of each
Member appoints two directors who must be elected officials of the Member's governing body. The TRFMA was formed in order
to regulate and control waters of the Truckee River that flow through their territories to reduce or mitigate flooding for the ongaing
benefit of the Truckee Meadows community.

The primary source of revenue for the TRFMA consists of the net revenues of the Infrastructure Tax pledaed by the County to
support the TRFMA. The Infrastructure Tax is collected by the State of Mevada Department of Taxation and remitted to the County
pursuant to procedures established in NRS Chapter 377 B that restricts spending of these proceeds to projects for the management
of floodplains, the prevention of floods or facilities relating to public safety. Net revenues consist of the balance remaining after
paying or reserving for County obligations for existing flood project related debt.

Under the terms of the Cooperative Agreement, the TRFMA Board of Directors has the power to periodically impose, assess, levy,
collect and enforce fees, rates, and charges in an amount sufficient for services or facilities, or both services and facilities and to
discharge any debt instruments or financing agreements.  No such assessments have been made since the TRFMA's farmation.
The arrangement is considerad a joint venture with no equity interest recarded in the County's financial statements because no
explicit and measurable equity interest is deemed to exist.
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MOTE 18 = TAX ABATEMENTS

State of Mevada Tax Abatements

Far the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, Washoe County fax revenues were reduced by a total amount of $12, 617,032 under
agreements entered info by the State of Nevada.

Aviation Tex Abatement (NRS 360.753) — Partial abatements from Personal Property and Sales & Use Taxes are
available to companies that locate or expand their business in Nevada. The personal property tax abatement can be up
to 50% for 20 years on the taxes due on tangible personal property, and the sales & use tax abatement reduces the
applicable tax rate to 2% for a similar 20 year period, a near 75% reduction. For fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the
total amount abated for Washoe County was $242 015.

Data Centers Abatement (NRS 360.754) — Partial abatements from personal property and sales & use taxes are available
to companies that establish or expand data centers. The personal property tax abatement can be up to 20 years. For
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the total amount abated for Washoa County was $255,389,

Renewable Eneray (NRS 701A.370) — Partial abatements from property and local sales and use taxes imposed on
renewable energy facilites. For fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the fotal amount abated for Washoe County was
52,486,479,

Standard Abatement (NRS 360.750)

o Local Sales and Use Tax Abatement ~ A partial abatement of sales and use taxes is available to qualified
companies that locate or expand their business in Nevada. The tax abatement is on the gross receipts from the
sale, and the storage, use of other consumption, of eligible capital equipment. The abatement reduces the sales
and use tax rate to 2%. The approved business is eligible for tax abatements for a two-year period beginning
the date the abatement becomes effective.

o Modified Business Tax Abatement — A partial abatement of the Modified Business Tax is available to qualified
companies that locate or expand their business in Nevada. The current tax imposed on each employer is at the
rate of 1.475% on taxable wages over $50,000 in a quarter. A business may qualify for a partial abatement of
up to 50% of the amount of the business tax due during the first four years of operations,

o Personal Property Tax Abatement — A partial abatement from personal property tax is available to qualified
companies that locate or expand their business in Nevada, This tax abaterment can be up to 50% of the tax due
for 10 years beginning from when the abatement becomes effective. The applicant must apply for abatement
not more than one year before the business begins to develop for expansion of operations in Nevada,

o Real Property Tax Abatement for Recycling — A partial abatement of real property (land and buildings) tax is
available for businesses and facilities using recycled material that have as a primary purpose the conservation
of energy or the substitution of fossil sources for other sources of energy. To qualify, the business must be in
the primary trade of recycling at least 50% of raw material or an intermediate product onsite; or converting the
energy derived from recycled material inta electricity. Qualifying businesses can receive a partial abatement of
up to 50% of the tax due on real property for not more 10 years beginning from when the abatement becomes
effective.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the total standard abatement amount abated for Washoe County was $9,633,149.

Truckee Meadow Fire Protection District's tax revenues were reduced by $381,065 under agreements entered into by the State
Nevada. The state agreements include a partial abatement of one or more of personal property and local sales and use taxes
imposed on aircraft, components of aircraft and other personal property used for certain purposes related to aircraft, a partjal
abatement of one or more of property and local sales and use taxes imposed on a naw or expanded data center and on renewable
energy facilities, and use taxes imposed on eligible machinery or equipment used by certain new or expanded businesses.



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 19 — ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Correction of an Error

During fiscal year 2021, Washoe County received multiple Telecommunications invoices from the City of Reno and City of Sparks
that were paid in FY20 and also accrued at year end to fiscal year 2020 in error. [t was determined that a portion of these expenses
related to prior fiscal years should not have been accrued as identified below.

Governmental
Activities
Met position as previously reportad, June 30, 2020 $ (90,817 ,668)
Prior period adjustment:
Due to multiple payments to City of Reno and
City of Sparks for Telecommunications accrual error 801,112
Met position (deficit) at June 30, 2020, as restated $ (80,016,556)

The beginning net position of the Enhanced 911 fund, 2 governmental fund, has been restated to correctly present service and
supplies expenses attributed to the City of Reno and the City of Sparks for Telecommunications bills for the prior year that were

paid and were also accrued at year end in error.

Enhanced 911

Fund Balance as previously reported, June 30, 2020 5 5,065,104
Prior period adjustment:

Due to multiple payments to City of Reno and
City of Sparks for Telecommunications accrual error 801,112

Fund Balance at June 30, 2020, as restated 3 5,866,216

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In August 2021 Washoe County and the Cities of Reno and Sparks approved a new arrangement transitioning primary
responsibility for northern Nevada homelessness to Washoe County resulting in the creation of a cost sharing agreement divided

in accordance with tax projection percentages among the three local governments.

On July 28, 2021, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) issued $7,000,000 of general obligation capital improvement
bonds to finance the acquisition of proparties for stations and administration with the expectation of executing the right of purchase
of the Administration Building located at 3663 Barron way. On September 14, 2021, TMFPD closed escrow on the purchase of

the property for the price of $6,290,0000.
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY’S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF
NEVADA (PERS) - LAST TEN PLAN YEARS*

2020 2019 2018 2017 2018 2015 044

County's porfion of the net pansion Bsbility 3.055904% 3031 72% 3.04017% 3.08086% 3.00375% 3.04481% 2.59104%
County’s propartionate share of tha nat pension Bahility, $ 425638603 § 413341284 5 414611133 § 409723184 § 404218415 § ME917733 5 311725934
County's coverad payrall § 169,036,361 % 187431424 4§ 180876924 5§ 171171726 § 170600917 § 150308921 § 154067907
County's proparfionate share of the net pension Ezhbility

as a percentage of its coverad payrall 225.16% 220.53% 229,200 230.36% 236.50% 219.02% 202.33%
Plan fiduciary nat position as a parcantage of tha

tatal met pension Eabilty T7.04% 76.46% 75.24% T4 42% T72:20% 75.10% T6.30%

*GASB Statement Mo. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until 10 years of data is
compiled, the County will present information anly for those years for which information is available.

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S CONTRIBUTIONS - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF NEVADA (PERS) —
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS”

2021 2020 2018 2018 2017 2018 2018
Statutorily required contribution § 32733843 5§ MG79801 § 29179819 § 28195821 § 2EBIGHTT § 20630494 §  467B1626
Contnbutions in relalion to the statutorlly required confrbufior 3 32733843 § 31979801 § 29970819 § 28129821 § 2GB16677 § 25638434 §  467B1626
Contribedion {deficiency) excass § S | o - 3 - ¥ - - 8
County's covered payroll 521250710 5 188036361 § 187433424 § 10076924 3171171726 S 170689417 § 159,308,021
Confribufions as a percentage of covered payrol 168.27% 16.52% 1557% 15.50% 1567% 15.02% 28.37%

*GASE Statement No. 68 reguires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until 10 years of data is
compiled, the County will present information only for those years for which information is available.



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
REQUIRED SUFPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN THE OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS*®
Washoe County Retirees Health Benefits Plan:

2020 2012 2018 2017
Total OPEE liability
Service cost & 5646136 § 5455204 § 6,700,000 % 6,473,000
Interest 28,103,076 28,019,823 31,567,000 30,059,000
Changes of benefit terms - - - =
Differences between expected and actual experience {898, 459) - 1,484,000 .
Changes of agsumptions (123,584 517T) - 16,570,000 -
Benefit payments {16,335,205) (14,912 577) (16,825,000} (13.,601,068)
Oher changes - . (172.517) -
Net Change In total OPEB liability {106,066,969) 18,562,550 16,183,483 22.930,934
Total OPEE liability - beginning 487 453,752 468,891,202 452,707,719 429,776,785
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) § 381386783 § 487453752 § 468891202 §  452707,718
Plan fiduciary net position
Employer contributions & 20,188,000 § 22,586,281 3 22888364 3 25,306 208
Other contributions 458 977 1,704,664 3,144 797 1,877,007
Met investment income 17,131,267 18,504,570 16,871 288 21,244 206
Benefit payments (16,335,205) (16,303,362) (16,825,000) {13,601,086)
Administrative expenses (54,574) (79,845) {15,690) {27 416)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 21,388,465 26,782,308 26,163 758 34,798,837
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 252 268,786 225,486 478 189,322,718 164,523,782
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) & 273657251 § 252268786 5 225486478 5  190,322.719
RHBP net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b} 107,729,532 235,184,966 243,404,724 253,385,000
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability T1.75% 51.75% 43.08% 44 03%
Covered-employee payroll % 195212842 § 196656571 §  180.BB6G.7E6 § 161,731,903
RHBP's net OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 54.90% 119.58% 128.32% 138.43%
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
REQUIRED SUFPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

PEBP Plan:

2020 2019 2018 2017
Total OPEB liability
Service cost 5 - 5§ = & - & .
Interest 228,043 231,538 255,702 256,638
Differences between expected and actual experience 123,541 - {9,158) 2
Changes of assumptions (468, 540) - 240,944 -
Benefit payments £299,.400) (280,454) {281,687) 264.731)
Net Change in total OPEB liability (416, 356) (48,816) 205,800 (7.893)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 3,848,231 3,997 147 3,791,347 3,799,240
Total OPEB liability - ending 5 3,631,875 § 3,948,231 § 3,997 147 & 3,791,347
Plan fiduciary net position
Employer confributions E 102,159 & 94719 § 99,636 § 43,000
Met investment income 180,248 188,515 231,540 303.279
Bensfit payments (240 400) (280, 454) (281,687) {264,731)
Administrative expenses {21,510} (22 122) {14,221) (14,702)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position (38.402) (18,342} 35,268 66,846
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 2,721,903 2,740,245 2,704,977 263811
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 3 2{383‘,51]1 3 2,721,903 & 2,740,245 % 2,704 977
PEBP net OPEB liabllity - ending (a) - (b) 848,374 1,226,328 1,256,902 1,086,370
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability 75.98% 68.94% 68.56% 71.35%

Note: The PEBP Plan is closed to existing County employees. Only retirees who meet certain critaria may participate. There is
no payroll associated with the participants, so covered-employee payroll disclosures are not applicable.

*GASE Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in these tables. However, until tan years of data is
compiled, the County will present information cnly for those years for which information is available.

g2



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB*

Washoe County Retirees Health Bengfits Plan:

2021 2020 2018 2018
Actuarially determined contribution & 10,952,080 § 20,378,275 § 20,188,000 § 23,298,000
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determinad contribution 16,808,159 20,188,000 22 958 281 22,988,364
Other contributions 2,600 406 1,760,602 1,704,719 3,144 7087
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (8,546,505) § {1,5703271) & (4,473,000} § {2,835,161)
Covered-smployees payroll $ 209,749623 § 196,212,842 § 195,656,571 § 189,686,766
Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 9.30% 11.19% 12.54% 13.78%
Notes to Schedule
Waluation date July 1, 2020

Methods and assumptions used to determing contribution amount:
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period 21 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Inflation 2.5%

Healthcare costs trend rate

Salary increases

Investment rate of return

Mortality

Level percentage of payroll, closed

Pre-65 retirees 6.2% initial, 4.0% ulitmate
Post-E5 retirees 5.9% initial, 4.0% ulitmate

7.5% each of first 4 years, and 2.5% thereafter
5.75%, net of OPEB plan investment expense

RP-2014 Mortality Males and Females Healthy Annuitant

mortality tables adjusted to reflact Mortality Improvement
Scale MP-2019 from the 2006 base year, and projected
forward using projection scale MP-2019 on a generational

hasis.
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

PEEP Plan:
2021 2020 2019 2018

Actuarially determined contribution 5 70606 § 101,841 % 102,158 % 94,718
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution 101,841 102,159 94,719 95,636
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 (31,235) § (318) 8 7440 % {4,917)
MNotes to Schedule
‘aluation date July 1, 2020
Methods and assumptlions used to determine contribution amount:
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization methed Level dollar amount, closed
Femaining amortization period 21 years
Asset valuation mathod Market value
Inflation 2.5%
Healthcars costs trend rate Pre-age 65: 6.3% initial, 4.0% ulitmate

Post-age 84: 5.6% initial, 4.0% ulitmate
Salary increases n'a
Investrnent rate of return 5.75% of OPEB plan investment expense
Mortality RP-2014 Mortality, Males and Females Healthy Annuitant

mortality tables adjusted to reflect Mortality Improvement
Scale MP-2018 from the 2006 base year, and projected
forward using projection scale MP-2019 on a generational
basis.

*EASE Statement Mo, 75 requires ten years of information to be presentad in this schedule. However, until 10 years of data is
compiled, the County will present information only for those years for which information Is available.

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE 1 - COUNTY CONTRIBUTIONS TO PERS

In fiscal year 2018, the Nevada Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 82, Pension Issues — an amendment of GASE Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. As a result of this
implementation, and under Mevada Revised Statutes, one-half of the total employer-paid contributions are deemed to be from
employers and one-half is deemed to be from employees (through salary schedule reductions). Accordingly, beginning with fiscal
yaar 2016, the amount of the statutorily required contribution presented reflects only the emplayer portion of the employer-paid
cantributions, and excludes employer-paid member contributions

NOTE 2 - TMFPD COVERED PAYROLL AND NET OPEB LIABILITY

The covered payroll for active plan members for the TMFPD RGMP OPEB plan reported on the next page reflects changes in the
current labor agreement to make all District employees hired batween April 1, 2012 and July 1, 2014 eligible for retiree health
benefits, and to reguire all retirees to enroll in Medicare at age 65. The total OPEB liability shown for TMFPD also includes the
District's proportionate share of the liability, based on service eamed prior o July 1, 2000 for the remaining 38 employees who
fransferred employment to the City and retired during the term of the Interlocal Agreement. All amounis include amounts previously
presented separately for the Sierra Fire Protection District, which was consclidated into TMFPD as of July 1, 2018,



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

Discretely Presented Component Unit

SCHEDULE OF TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT'S NET PENSION LIABILITY — PUBLIC
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF NEVADA (PERS) - LAST TEN PLAN YEARS"

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
TMF F[¥s portion of the net persion liabéity 0.25331% 0.24085% 0.23631% 0.21270% 0.21696% 0.22129% 0. 20583%
TMFPD's propodionate share of the net pension liabilly $ 35281344 $ 32847974 § 32000988 & 23288166 § 29197200 § 25358762 § 214510M
THFPD's covered payrafl § 12085484 % 11750724 5 11003348 § 9712107 5 9271513 § 84355853 § 7783067
TMFPL's proponionate share of the net panshen fiability
88 & percentage of its covered payroll 2T1.70% 279.33% 291.65% 291.27% 314.91% 300.62% 275.50%
Pian fiduciary met position as a percentags of the
total net pansion labikty 77.04% TE 46% 75.24% T4 A2% 72.23% 7513% TE3%

SCHEDULE OF TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES'
RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF NEVADA (PERS) - LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

=0 2020 i i =018 2017 206 2015
Statutarily required contributian & 2831304 3 283,768 § 2IBISTE % 21560534 § 1696920 3 1835776 8§ 1,707 EGa
Contributions in ralation to the stabotorly reguired contbution 5 ZB61304 § 2639755 § 2253573 5 $I56 034 % 1886820 5 1B357TME S 1, 707.B68
Canlribution {defitency) exsass & - ] . 5 . 5 - 3 = 3 - 5 -
TMFPL's covared payroll 5 14126597 § 1Z23E54B4 B 117HGT24 5 11006348 & 72107 § 8271513 5 8,435,583
Carfribusions &5 & percantage of covarsd payrall 0.27% 20.23% 19,50% 19,59% 18.53% 19.80% 2025%

*GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until 10 years of data is
compiled, the County will present information only for those years for which information is available.

SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN THE OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS®
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Retirees Group Medical Plan:

2020 2019 2018 2017
Total OPER liability
Service cost § 538,625 § 520411 § 417,213 § 405,061
Interest 671,333 613,936 501,045 455,572
Differences between expacted and actual axperience 817,675 - (27 487) -
Changes of assumplions B&1,7TT - 2,295,853 -
Benefit payments (176,377) (214,8991) (215,174} {230,891)
Net Change in total OPEB liability 2713033 919,356 2,971,450 628,742
Total OPEB liability - beginning 10,737,148 9,817,782 §,845 342 6,216,600
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 13,450,181 & 10,737,148 § 9,817,792 § f,846, 342
Plan fiduciary net position
Employer contributions 5 651,000 § 463,000 § - 3 +
Net investment income 418,050 450 938 435 (094 591,731
Benafit payments {176.37T7) (214,881) {215,174) (230,891)
Administrative expenses (39,115) (34,449) (15,683) (16, 744)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 853,558 564,498 204 227 244 096
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 6,165,499 5,521,001 5316774 4,972,678
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b} 3 7,039,057 § 6,185,499 § 5521001 % 5,316,774
TMFPD RGMP net OPEE liability - ending (a]} - (b} 6,411,124 4,551,649 4,296,791 1,529,568
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability 52.33% 5761% 56.23% 77.66%
Covered-employee payroll 3 16,408,769 $ 16,004,200 § 15,660,842 $ 13,199,783
TMFPD RGMP's net OPEE liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 30.07% 2B.44% 27 44% 11.58%
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

SCHEDULE OF TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS — OPEB*

2021 2020 2019 2018
Actuarially determined contribution % 1,441,459 § 1,113,649 § 1.037.001 § 650,895
Confributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution 750,000 651,000 463,000 -
Contribution deficiency (excess) 691,459 462,849 574,001 650,895
Coverad-employee payroll 5 19758972 § 16,408,769 § 16,004,299 5 15,660,842
Contributions as a percentage of
coverad-employes payroll 3.80% 3.97% 2.89% 0.00%
Notes to Schedule
Valuation date July 1, 2020
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution amount;
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method Level dollar amount, closed
Remaining amortization period 11 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Inftation 2.5%
Healthcare costs trend rate B.2% initial, 4.0% ulitmate
Salary increases First two years after valuation:
8.0% each of first 4 years, and 3.0% thereafter
Years 3+ after valuation:
7.5% each of first 4 years, and 2.50% thereafter
Investment rate of return 5.75%, net of OPEB plan investment expense
Mortality RP-2014 Mortality, Males & Females Healthy Annuitant

mortality tables adjusted to reflect Mortality Improvement
Scale MP-2018 from the 2006 base year, and projected
forward using projection scale MP-2018 on a generational
basis,

*GASE Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in these schedules. However, until 10 years of data
is compiled, the County will present information only for those years for which information is available.
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Assets

Cash and invesiments
Accounis receivable
Property taxes receivable
Other taxes receivable
Interest receivable

Due from other funds

Due from other govermments
Deposiis and prepaid items

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits
Contractsfretention payable
Due to other funds

Due to other governmeants
Deposits

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - grants and other revenue
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2021
Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Fund Funds Total
5 55,660,667 $ 7,959,305 § 39692939 % 103212811
804,588 = - B84, 888
155,284 23,810 64,250 243 344
1,890,800 3,383,539 - 5,274,339
107,071 4 359 87,318 168,746
799 - - 7ag
1017600 . 356,603 10,474,403
5,791 - - 5,791
% 68,732,800 5 11,371,013 § 40,201,308 3 120,305,221
% 2031226 § 641 § 920,259 § 2,961,128
1104,727 - - 1,101,727
11,672 - 148,501 161,180
962 - - 962
2,223,594 - 228,162 2452 756
304,421 . - 304 421
1,938 15,125 - 17,064
5,675,548 15,766 1,307,922 6,899,236
107,314 3,383,540 - 3,490,854
131.439 18,870 53,138 204 447
238,753 3,403,410 53138 3,695,301
41,740 B65 7,851,837 38,840,248 88,532,950
12,600,517 - - 12,600 517
8,477,217 - - 8,477,217
62,618,599 7,851,837 38,840,248 108,610,684
£ 68,732800 3 11371013 5 40,201,308 § 120308221
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total
Revenuas
Taxes:
Ad valorem § 20,353,678 § 2,040,020 § 8420407 % 31,723.204
Residential construction tax - - 642,204 642,204
County Option MVFT 1.0 Cent 805,330 - - 805,330
Special assessments - 758,360 - 758,360
Licenses and permits 5,398,370 - . 5,396,370
Intergovernmental revenues 50,397,249 - 725,027 51,122,276
Charges for senvices 14,965,278 - - 14,066,279
Fines and forfeitures 139,500 - - 139,500
Miscellaneous 6,360,459 261,508 479,401 7,101,368
Total Revenues 98,420,865 3,959,897 10,276,129 112,656,601
Expenditures
Current;
General government 466,904 - - 466,904
Public safety 23,388,650 - - 23,388,650
Public works 14,319,320 - - 14,319,320
Health and =anitation 33,614,416 - - 33,614 416
Welfare 37,595,747 - - 37,585,747
Culture and recreation 2,470,164 - - Z2470,164
Intergovernmental - - 5,989,953 5,989,853
Capifal outlay - - 11,413,478 11,413,478
Deht Service:
Principal = 18,917,650 - 19,917,650
Interest - 3321116 - 3,321,116
Bond issuance cost - 70,085 280,551 350,636
Debt service fees and other fiscal charges - 55,832 - 58,832
Total Expenditures 111,855,291 23,364,783 17,683,832 152,904,058
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (13,434 426) 119,404 886) (7,407 B53) (40,247 165}
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from azsel disposition - - 1,485 1485
Bonds issued - = 9,135,000 9,135,000
Refunding bond lssued . 9,695,000 - 9,685,000
Refunding payment to escrow agent - 140,000 - 140,000
Bond premium . - 1411220 1,411,220
Transfers in 36,166,203 10,168,523 7,654,595 54,009,321
Transfers out (15,438, 226) - (1,950,000) (17.388,226)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 20,747,977 20,003,523 16,252,300 57.003,800
Net Change in Fund Balances 7,313,551 588,637 8,844 447 16,756,635
Fund Balances, July 1 (as restated) Note 19 55,505,048 7,353,200 29,995.801 92 B54,04%
Fund Balances, June 30 ] 62818599 § 7.951,837 § 38840248 § 100,610,684
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAMCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem:
Ganaral
Datention facility
Ingigent insurance program
China Spring support
Family Court
AB 104
MRS 354.55813 makeup revenue
Foom tax

Total Taxes

Licenses and Permits:
Business:

General business licenses

Electrichelecom business icenses

Liguor licenses

Short-term rentaks

Saniation franchise fees

Gas franchise fees

Cable telsvision franchise fees

County gaming licenses

Gaming licenses - AB 104
Nonbusiness:

Marriage affidavits

Moblle home permils

Other

Total Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental Revenues:
Federal granis
Federal payments in lieu of taxes
Federal incarceration chargss
State Sharsd Revenues:
State gaming licenses
Real property transfer tax - AB 104
SCCRT / GST - AB 104 Makeup
Conzolidated taxes
State extraditions
Lecal contributions

Total Intergovernmental Revenues

Charges for Services:
General Govarnment:
Clark foas
Recorder fees
Map fees
ABSBSSOr commissions
Overhead recovery
Other

Subtotal Genesal Governmeant

2021 2020

Budget Actual Variance Actual
§ 168,391,167 § 170,067,037 § 1675870 % 158,406,740
12,819,780 13,048,715 128,935 12,205,795
2,503,837 2,528,834 24,987 2,365,465
1,185,149 1,197,326 12177 1,167,038
3,204,908 3,238,881 41,883 3,027,788
2,996,539 3,084, 708 98,118 2,893,831
= 2 2 3
200,000 623,789 423,789 458,570
191,401,430 183,797,302 2,385 872 180,524,330
1,015,283 865,634 {48,658) Bdd 87D
4 800,000 5,130,083 230,083 5,184,522
260,000 330,831 70,831 317.628
- 47 442 47 442 .
650,000 1,163,054 513,054 BI7.655
245,000 186,843 (55,057) 278,685
1,100,000 1,167,724 67,724 868,261
845,000 897,118 {147,B82) 584,344
675,000 B50,557 275,557 615,401
150,000 166,168 5,168 118,209
200 83 {107) 138
300 875 575 G50
8,740,793 10,784,523 1,053,730 8,771,369
140,000 2 44T 489 2,307 489 1,182,720
3,627,832 3,831,737 203,205 3,860,231
3,020,000 2,825,280 (194,720} 3,002,181
130,000 112,BED (17,120) 130,626
B10,405 1,104,214 293,308 1,435 280
5,086 076 17268476 7.273.400 14,163,074
89,054 685 142,376,192 52,411,507 121,145,864
48,000 21,867 (26,143) 37,260
127,066 122,702 (4,364) 144,308
107,864,084 170,111,827 62,247 763 145,116,564
100,000 109,570 9,570 98,204
2,300,000 4,087,453 1,797 453 3,254,592
1,600 12,380 10,780 3,308
4,700,000 2,421,838 721,836 2 064,852
6,831,281 8,033.979 2,608 6,254 912
472,706 582,590 B9, 684 542,120
11,505,587 14,137,808 26322 12,217,786
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

Judicial:
Clerk court fees
Othir

Subtotal Judicial

Fublic Safety;
Police:
Sheriff fees
Medical Examiner fees
Other
Corrections
Protective services

Subtotal Public Safety
Public Works
Welfare
Culture and Recrestion

Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures:
Fines:

Library

Court
Penalties
Forfeitures/bail

Total Fines and Forfeits

Miscellansous:

Investment earnings

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments
Rents and royalties

Other

Total Miscellaneous

Tolal Revenues

Expenditures by Function and Activity
Current:
General Government Funetion:
Legisiative / County Commissionears:
Salaries and wages
Employee benaflits
Services and supplies

2021 2020

Budget Actual Variance Actual
350,000 % 317,956 (32,044) 5 313269
788,400 806,241 16,841 769,128
1,138,400 1,124,187 (15,203) 1,082,388
410,000 248 006 {160,894) 308,175
1,102,103 1,184,773 82,670 1,012,167
5,422 547 4,855 456 [528,051) 4,852,017
9,000 2,901 (8,009} B,151
380,000 388,212 {11,788) 272,825
7,323,650 6,701,388 {622,282} 6,454,335
464 489 746,203 281714 488, 580
2.500 - (2,500) .
793,054 713,529 (79,528) 810,484
21,228 620 23423125 2,194,448 21,062,563
70,000 4,047 {65,953) 44 166
2,698,750 2,054,908 (543,841) 1,246,747
1,500 2,889,318 2,887 816 3,137,384
1,647 032 1,806,144 159,112 1,682 571
4,417 282 6,754,416 2,337,134 5,110,858
1,622,030 2522 848 800,818 2,820,890
- {2,071,022) (2,071,022 3,496,850
34,375 32,639 (1.738) 28,606
2,352 280 2,276,823 (115.457) 2. 337.790
4,048 B85 2 761,286 (1,287, 34949) B, 784,236
338,700,334 407 B42 479 58,941,545 371,368,930
378,455 374, 263 5192 378,138
213,381 204,860 8429 209,701

212,477 204,057 8,420

505,313 T8I, 260 22,033 700,226
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Executive / County Manager.
Salaries and wages 5 2675236 § 2604514 § 70722 % 2,541.174
Employes bensfits 1,386,005 1,275,610 110,485 1,340,761
Services and supplies 2450 569 1.618,530 B41,039 2,045 482
Capital outlay - = - 12,413
&520,810 5,408 564 1,022,256 5,840,830
Elections / Registrar of Voters;
Salaries and wages 741,538 803,108 (61,860) 571,290
Employee benelits 254,080 265,645 26,435 265,663
Services and supplies 1,368,507 1,366,365 2142 1,221,249
Capital outlay 45,000 - 45,000 250
2440125 2.435 208 13,917 2,058 552
Finance:
Comptroliers Depariment
Salaries and wages 1,568,020 1,901 852 66,065 1,858,673
Employee henafits 1,078,803 1,008,609 68,194 1,018,763
Senvices and supplies 328,656 284,031 44,625 238,042
3375479 3,194,592 178,887 3115478
Treasurer:
Salaries and wages 1426384 1,362,608 63,778 1,304,452
Employae benefits 827 257 768,766 58,491 T4B 458
Services and supplies 391,065 535 353 {144, 208) 431,648
2,644,696 2,688,727 (22,031) 2,482,756
Assessor:
Salaries and wages 4 651,427 4,485 871 155,568 4,417,610
Employee benefits 2.516,2489 2,473,984 142,255 2,505,097
Services and supplies 1,168,192 590,814 577,378 B0E,235
8,435,868 7,580,878 BY5 182 7,528,842
Subtotal Finance 14,454,043 13,421,958 1,032,045 13,127.176
Other:
Human Resources:
Salaries and wages 1,314,588 1,262,508 52,081 1,202,135
Emploves banefits 630,826 616,818 23,008 618,151
Services and supplies 487 380 348,083 119,287 427 242
2,421,785 2,227,409 184, 366 2,247,528
Clerk:
Salaries and wages 1,008,838 853,327 53,511 862,435
Employes bensfits 552,518 522693 29,826 527079
Services and supplies 283 187 B5, 187 188,010 80,585
1,842 554 1.561.207 281,347 1,580,009
Recorder:
Salanes and wages 1.441 7e0 1.313.289 128,381 1,357,153
Empioyes benafits B12,262 741,158 71.107 TB32T3
Sanvices and supplies 184,651 293,366 91,285 101,731
2438 693 2,147,820 290,773 2242157
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Bucdget Actual Variance Actual
Technology Services:
Salaries and wages 5 B,101,912 § 5944 280 § 157623 § 6,258 868
Employee benefits 3612105 3,191 448 420,659 3,461,584
Services and supplies 5,534,330 5,207 823 326,707 4 251 B42
Capital outiay 366,535 82,921 283 614 148 626
15,614,682 14 428 279 1,188,603 14,120,920
Accrued Benefits:
Salaries and wages 2,700,000 2.801.278 (101, 278) 2515078
Employes benefits 50,000 52,652 {2,652) 44, 805
2,750,000 2,853,930 (103,830) 2,559,883
Other General Govermment:
Salaries and wages-unbudgeted savings (B56,435) - [956.435) -
Employes benefils-unbudgeted savings (580,267) - (690,287) -
Services and supplies-unbudgeted savings (87 127) 817,357 (914 484) 2,178,782
{1,643,829) B17,357 {2.451,186) 2178792
Subtotal Other 23,424 085 24,034 102 (B10,007) 24,8929 378
Total General Government Function 4T 653,336 48 173,142 1,480,244 45,848,163
Judicial Function:
District Court:
Salaries and wages 11,615,310 12,398,235 {TB2,925) 11,953,546
Employee benefits 6,950 648 6,487 786 4B2 BE2 6,648,709
Services and supplies 5,275,650 4629773 B45,877 4,062,836
23 B41 B0B 23,495,704 245814 22 665,001
District Attorney:
Salaries and wages 14,837,194 14,274 Bad 562,350 13,823,691
Employee benefits 7,985,303 7433854 521,539 7,446,365
Services and supplies 1,701,179 1,185,864 511,185 1,588,845
24,493 766 232 B9B 682 1,595,084 22,859,021
Public Defense:
Fublic Defender:
Salaries and wages 6,214 792 6,327,037 {112,245) 6,155,128
Employee benefits 3,385 485 3,163,371 203114 3,218,215
Services and supplies B71,488 815,303 56,186 B84 335
10,452 765 10,305,711 147,055 10,241,678
Alternate Public Defender;
Salanes and wages 1,883,105 1,880 2681 {27,156) 1,770,935
Employee benefits 055 985 924,438 31,548 922 990
Sarvices and supplies 178,361 126,629 52732 140,311
2,998 451 2,841,328 57,125 2,834,236
Conflict Counsel:
Services and supplies 1,208,838 858,811 248,025 1,132,625
Subtotal Public Defense 14,880,053 14,206 848 453,205 14,208,538
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

{WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

Justice Courts:
Salanes and wages
Employea banefits
Senvices and supplies

Incline Constable:
Salaries and wages
Employes banafits
Services and supplies

Other Judicial.
Salarles and wages-Budgeted savings
Employes benefits-Budgeted savings
Services and supplies-Budgeted savings

Subtotal Other

Total Judicial Function

Public Safety Function:
Sheriff and Detention:
Salarnes and wages
Employes benafits
Services and supplies
Capital Outlay

Medical Examiner:
Salaries and wages
Employee banefits
Services and supples
Capital Outlay

County Manager;
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Zervices and supplies
Capital Dutlay

Juvenile Services:
Salanes and wagas
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital Outiay

Fire Suppression;
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supples

2021 2020

Budgat Actual Variance Actual
7411547 & 7.065708 § 345,839 3 6,977,383
3972932 3,700,500 272,432 3,783,145
841,002 730,136 110,866 774,218
12,225 481 11.486 344 728,137 11,634,747
117,859 117,230 629 115,515
63,328 62,229 1,107 83,000
22477 12,498 5,861 15,574
203,672 181,958 nmr 184,088
(1.578.878) - (1,678,875) =
(1,160,818 - (1,160,618} -
- {16,770) 16,770 -
(2,738,493} (16,770) (2.722.723) :
72,685,087 72,272,853 412,234 71,467 487
85,861,522 66,936 467 (1,074,845} 64,867,694
42,007 841 39.942 605 2,085,236 30,851,421
18,6502 728 17.428.251 2074 477 17,870,261
- 84,112 (84,112} 101,688
127,372,091 124,401,435 Z,970,655 122,861,085
2,558,434 2,526,348 (67,815) 2,386,062
1,118,558 1,058,142 50,417 1,054,518
822,839 823,858 {1,018) 730,276
2 : - 28,348
4,498 832 4,508 348 (8,517) 4,198,202
59,039 219,761 [130,722) 82,500
47,321 g7,283 [48,962) 44 838
4,169,982 (163,256) 4,353,238 8,635 280
150,000 56,603 93,387 79,286
4,478,342 210,381 4,265,951 8,842 204
9,418,407 8,608,064 B08,343 8,521,872
5,867 232 5337479 520,753 5,456,080
1675233 1,334 314 240,819 1,603, 264
- - - 57,797
16,958,872 16,279,857 1,676,015 15,538,013
150,175 158,236 {9,081) 167,187
893,478 87,206 6,182 89,345
737848 GEB, 158 49,692 715,634
981,501 834,688 48,813 872,170
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GEMNERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

Emergency Management:
Salanes and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Protective Services:
Alternative Sentencing:
Salanes and wages
Employes benefits
Services and supplies

Capital outiay

Public Administrator:
Salanes and wages
Employee benefiis
Services and supplias

Public Guardian:
Salaries and wagss
Employes benefits
Senvices and supplies

Subtotal Protective Services

Other Public Safaty:
Satanies and wages-budgeted savings
Employee benefils-budgeted savings
Services and supplies-unbudgeted savings

Subtotal Other Public Safety
Total Public Safety Function

Public Works Function:
CS0 - Public Works:
Salaries and wages
Empioyee benefits
Services and supplies.
Capital cutlay

Other Public Works
Salaries and wages-budgeted savings
Employee benefitz-budgeied savings
Services and Supplies-budgeted savings

Subtotal Other Public Works
Total Public Works Function

Welfare Function:

Human Services Department:
Salaries and wagas
Employes benefils
Services and supplies

Cther \Welfare:
Salaries and wages-budgeted savings
Employee benefits-budgeted savings
Services and supplies-budgeled savings

Subtotal Other Welfare
Total Welfare Function

2021 2020

Budget Actual Variance Actual
161,200 5 205454 % (4B,254) & 185,962
82 559 93 847 {11,088) 102,278
39,027 26,166 13,781 35790
283,686 329287 {45 ,581) 324 028
1,437,805 1,287,550 160,215 1,185,907
553,102 506,422 48,680 478,574
842,717 584,701 58,016 470435
27,702 29,001 (1,299} 13,355
2,661,324 2,407 714 253,612 2148272
833,266 803 366 28,900 810,448
490,671 461,404 29,2687 472147
75211 57,605 17,406 53 639
1,398 148 1,322 575 76,673 1,336,234
1,258,004 1,200,589 87 415 1,191,742
722935 669,522 53,413 GB0.901
BE 28B4 75,578 12,708 72,683
2,108 223 1,945 689 163,534 1,945,326
6,160 697 5,676,978 483,719 5429 832
(1,978,158) = {1,978, 158) -
(1.941,902) - {1.941,5902) -
58,630 {BE0,616) 919,246 -
[3,861,431) (BE0,B1E) (3.000,815) -
155,880, 520 150,480,349 6,400,241 158,187,514
6,453,372 5,534,348 519,024 5,670,600
3,582,344 3,067,311 515,033 3217773
5,001,721 4 B89 573 222,148 5,361,936
370,548 20,889 340,659 5,400
15,497 985 13,492,121 2,005, 864 14,255,709
(402412 - (402,412) -
(166,124) - (166, 124) -
. (157,618) 157,618 =

(568,536} [157,618) [410,918)

14,829 449 13,334 503 1,594,046 14,255,709
1,071,855 881,830 89,925 1,089,274
609,014 520,026 79,988 555,299
355,077 350,657 4,420 468,401
2,035,946 1,861,613 174,333 2,112,974
{122,18E) - {122 188) -
(28,0:22) - (26,022) .
= (108,118) 108,118 -
{148,210} {108,118) (40,092} -
1,887,736 1,753,485 134 241 2112974
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Culture and Recreation Function:
Library Department
Salaries and wages 5,112,716 5,633,264 479,452 5,756,689
Employee benefits 3,229,651 2,929,107 300,744 3,085,028
Services and supplies 921,787 832,855 58,942 849,582
10,264,364 9,395,226 BED, 138 9,692,208
CS8D - Regional Parke and Open Space;
Salaries and wages 3 2,804,346 5 2,585 592 § 208,754 % 2668477
Employee benefils 1,489,299 1,347,535 141,764 1,409,851
Services and supplies 2,315,154 2,080,184 224 870 2,250,837
Capital cutlay 110,000 43,974 56,026 111.352
6,718,799 6,077 285 B41.514 6,471,617
Other Culture and Recreation:
Salaries and wages-budgeted savings (361.928) - (3B1,528) -
Employee benefits-unbudgeted savings (215 068) - {215,068) -
Services and supplies-budpeted savings - (2,308) 2308 -
Subtotal Other Culture and Recreation 57 R008 tHA0e) (74,580 -
Tetal Culture and Recreation Function 16,406,168 15,470,205 935,964 16,163 826
Community Support Function:
Services and supplies 219,761 107,892 111,869 186 642
Total Community Support Function 219,761 107,882 111,869 185,642
Intergovernmental Expenditures:
Indigent Insurance Program 2,503,837 2,516,736 (12,899} 2,320,240
China Springs Youth Facility 1,257,969 1,253,935 4034 1,261,788
Ethics Commigsion Azsessment 25,000 24 742 258 23,023
Truckes Meadows Regional Planning 266,658 248 184 18,505 2685 6BS
Total Intergovernmental Expenditures 4053475 4,043,577 9,898 3,871,720
Total Expenditures 314,715,653 303,636,016 11,079,637 313,105,035
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 23,885,281 104,006,453 50,021,182 5B, 263 895
Other Financing Scurces (Uses)
Proceeds from asset disposition 5,000 - (5,000} 42 707
Transfers:
Special Revenue Funds-Transfers in 1,142,030 1,084,885 {57,165) 1,311,818
Internal Service Funds-{Transfers out) - (3,000,000) (3,000,000} 3,000,000
Special Revenue Funds-(Transfers out) (34,610,888 (34,5810,888) - (31,818,785)
Debt Senvice Funds+{Transfers ouf) (6,314,872} 16,248,801) 65,8941 (6,018,031)
Capital Projects Funds-{Transfers ouf) {670,000) (3,010,000) {2,340,000) (4,334,008)
Intrafund transfers (4,000) - 4,000 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {40,452 730} {45,784,914) (5,332,184} [37,817,388)
Net Change in Fund Balances {18,487 440} 58,221,548 74,858 908 20,446 507
Fund Balances, July 1 67,625,908 54 257,805 26,641,897 73,821,258
Fund Balances, June 30 ] 51,158,459 § 152480354 %__ 101330885 5 94 267 805
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular

pUnposes.

Major Special Revenue Fund:

Child Protective Services Fund: To account for ad valorem taxes, grants and other revenus sources specifically

appropriated to protect against the neglect, abandonment and abuse of children e

Other Restricted Fund: To account for various specific resources restricted for specified purposes consistent with
legal and operating requirements. Resources include: ad valorem tax apportionments for Cooperative Extensicn

support, car rental tax for the Reno baseball stadium, court adminisirative assessments for court pmjects and gfants

and restricted resources for various General Fund deparlmer':fs

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:

Health Fund: To account for grants, user fees and other revenue sources specifically dedicated to an-going health

PROIEITEINS: IO SOTVIDEE, ¢ e s i oo o o8 G R LD 2 i B s L S o TN T R T S it

Senior Services Fund: To account for grants, charges for services and ad valorem taxes specifically appropriated fo

provide Services for SBNION CIlIZEMS. ... ... e et ese e e e b e m et e er e sttt

Enhanced 911 Fund: To account for Enhanced 911 fees specifically appropﬂated for the enhancement of the
communication system for reporting emergencies ...

Library Expansion Fund: To account for ad valorem taxes and investment earnings s-pEErﬁcally appmpnated to fund
expansion of the library system. .. R T R

Animal Services Fund: To account for ad valorem taxes and related investment earnings SFIEGIﬁCElI'f appmpnatad to

operate a regional animal services shelter and to provide regional field enforcement operations ..

Regional Public Safety Training Center Fund: To account for the operations and management of a public safety

training center for the benefit of local pUbliC SafEly BGBNCIBS ..o ssssssssaessaakias o ssa s ssseeansarasaeins

Truckee River Flood Management Infrastructure Fund: To account for resources derived from the 0.125%
infrastructure sales tax and related investment earnings specifically appropriated to fund the Truckee River Flood

Management Project and related debl SEIVICR ... e et AR

Regional Communication System Fund: To account for the development, operations and management of the

regional communications system for the benefit of participating public safety and non-public safety agencies.......................

Regional Permits System Fund: To account for the development, operations and management of the regional
permit system for the benefit of participating cities and counties agencies .. R

Central Truckee Meadows Remediation District Fund: To account for resources derived from remediation fees
and related investment earnings speuﬁﬁarly appmpnat&ci for the remediation of the quahty of water in the Central
Truckee Meadows Remediation District... e et e e

Roads Fund: To account for specific revenue sources that are restricted to the construction, purchase of equipment

for that construction, maintenance and repair Of COUMY MOBES. ..o i e ettt ee e

Marijuana Establishment Fund: To account for specific revenue sources that are committed to regulabary Zoning,

business licensing and public safety associated with the legalization of marijuana..

Indigent Tax Levy Fund: To account for ad valorem tax revenues and investment earnings specifically appropriated

to provide assistance 10 the INAIGENL. ... ..ottt et e e ere s
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Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Licenses and Permits:
Day care licenses
Intergovernmantal Revenues:
Federal grants
State grants
Charges for Services:
Servica fees
Miscellansous:
Contributions and donations
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Welfare Function:
Salaries and wages
Employee banefils
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers:
General Fund
Indigent Tax Lewy Fund
Capital Improvements Fund

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Met Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA

CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020

Budget Actual Variance Actual
§ 6,676,888 5 6,743,520 § 66,632 § 6,307.912
22,500 20,290 (2,210 21,330
34,015,540 25,429,981 (8,585.579) 23,166,200
18,851,223 18,170,735 (BB0,488) 18,043,145
6,017,000 6,162,524 145,524 5,873 576
26,199 26,199 = 53,800
107,500 75,000 (32,500) 456,250
65,716,850 556,628,229 (9.088.621) 53,924,213
20,662,066 19,276,581 1,385,475 18,469,077
11,428,713 10,421,840 1,006,873 10,405,226
41,683,247 31,306,617 10,376,630 31,508,866
154,200 24,060 130,140 a7, 750
73,928,226 61,029,108 12,899,118 60,481,919
{8,211,376) (4.400,879) 3,810,487 (6,557, 708)
447 237 447 237 - 447 237
7,498,422 7,498 422 - 1,428,665
7,945,659 7,945,659 - 1,876,902
(266,717) 3,544,780 3,810,487 (4,680, 804}
6,835,526 5,908,510 72,984 11,589 314
5 6,569,809 § 10,453,280 § 3883481 § 6,908,510
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA

OTHER RESTRICTED FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Car rental
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal grants
Federal narcotics forfeitures
State grants
Local contributions
Charges for Services:
General Government:
Recorder fees
Map fees
ASsess0r commissions
Other
Judicial
Public Safety
FPublic Works
Welfare
Culure and Recreation
Fines and Forfeitures:
Courl fines
Forfeitures/bail
Miscellansous:
Investment earnings
Met increase (decrease) In the
fair value of invesiments
Contributions and donations
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government Function:
County Manager;
Salaries and wages
Employee benafils
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Assessor
Services and supplies
Capital gutlay

Clerk:
Services and supplies

Reqgistrar of Volers:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outiay

2021 2020

Budget Actual Variance Actual
§ 1,669,221 5% 1,685,902 § 16,681 § 1,576,995
1,558,970 1,313,586 {245,384) 1,442 301
41,756,380 27 486,898 (14.269,482) 6,729,403
110,800 34,551 (76,249) 165,734
1,131,827 1,340,645 209,018 1,788,229
B72,B95 639,611 (233,284) 628,739
402,001 727,490 325 489 568,055
94,000 66,905 (27,085) 75,120
525,000 BO7,949 282,049 688,705
6.000 26,855 20,855 23,650
1,391,500 1,049,256 (342 244) 983,544
1,043,213 1,271,650 228,437 968,640
110,695 137,608 26,813 24,087
90,000 89.516 (484) 71,220
253,408 67.072 (1B6,336) 103,774
3733473 2,478,525 (1,254,948} 2,686,572
80,100 114,835 34,735 53.401
49,550 81,318 31,768 93,883
- (67,9185) {67.815) 153,446
13,762,613 1,137,227 {12,632,386) 549,400
25,000 1,041,471 1,016,471 27,423
GB.673,446 41,530,955 (27,142,491} 19,482,411
- 45,862 - -
- B,132 -
27,303,858 21,123,781 3 :
- 870,109 {870,109) 44,047
27,303,858 22,045,984 (B70,109) 44,047
2,118,611 508,527 1,520,084 503,064
150,000 - 150,000 77.27T0
2,268,611 598 527 1,670,084 580,334
67,660 4,873 62,7687 §.848
277,479 277,508 {119) .
x 2 (2) =
1,397.661 1,199,728 197,933 303476
441,826 359,119 82,707 72,670
2 116,966 1,836,447 280,519 376,148
(CONTINUED)
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
OTHER RESTRICTED FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
{WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Recorder:
Salaries and wages 5 86,711 & 77803 $ 8,808 3 73,832
Employes benafits 35,762 35,630 132 34,333
Sernvices and suppiies 3,520,952 LTLR T 2,944,385 325,798
Capital outlay - - - 24 559
3,643,425 580,100 2,953,325 458,522
Technology Services:
Senvices and supplies 306,815 89,354 217461 52,833
Community Developmeant:
Services and supplies 379 78 301 G086
Total General Government Function 35,707,714 25,265,363 4,314,368 1,528,338
Judicial Function;
District Court:
Salaries and wages T47 275 679,210 66,065 816,183
Employee benefits 440,108 433,145 6,963 328 688
Services and supplies 9,104,908 1,017,562 8,087,345 1,466,138
Capital outlay 457 974 - 457 974 246 003
10,750,265 2129917 8,620,348 2,857 012
District Altorney:
Salaries and wages 3,560,337 2234 618 1,325,718 2,182 551
Employee benefits 1,652,881 1,141,362 511,619 1,208 284
Services and supplies 1,530,543 437,433 1,093,110 462 161
Capital outlay - - - 39,038
6,743,861 3,813,414 2,930,447 3,882,035
Justice Courts:
Reno Justice Court:
Salaries and wages 54,505 6,477 48,118 52,79
Employes Benefils - 550 (559) 3,708
Services and supplies 3,072,436 466,830 2,605,606 683,368
3,127,031 473 BBE6 2 653,165 749 863
Sparks Justice Court:
Salaries and wages 22,887 9,463 13,424 7.2581
Employee Benefits - 167 {167) 133
Services and supplies 810,628 131,596 679032 123,879
Capital Outlay - = - 2,251
833,515 141,228 692,289 133,514
Incline Justice Court:
Services and supplies 114,268 39 498 74,770 24,065
Wadsworth Justice Court:
Salaries and wages 8,000 . - -
Services and supplies 204, 144 o444 194,700 8,227
212,144 9,444 184,700 8227
Incling Constable:
Services and supplies 251 = 251 -

[CONTINUED)
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
OTHER RESTRICTED FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Mekgborhood Justice Center:
Services and supplies 5 125000 5 68643 3 56,357 3 81,820
Total Judicial Function 21,006,335 6,676,008 15,222 327 7,746,542
Public Safety Function:
County Manager:
Salaries and wages 249 B39 51,777 - -
Employes benefits 86,614 30,286 . -
Services and supplies 475,868 176,186 = 5
812 521 258,250 - =
Sheriff:
Salaries and wages B .B55.093 546,940 8,308,153 435911
Employee benefits 4 236,035 139,631 4 096,504 130,962
Services and supplies 6,407 443 1,588,414 4,819,029 1,429 577
Capital outlay 858,075 225 569 633,506 356,284
20,357 646 2,500 454 17,857,192 2,352 744
Medical Examiner:
Salarles and wages 84,839 62,741 22,088 50,354
Employee benefits 39,720 33,030 6,680 28 9098
Services and supplies 227.318 78682 148,436 63,240
351,877 174,653 177,224 153,292
Fira Suppression:
Salaries and wages 10,529 - 10,529 10,656
Employes bensfits - - - 188
Senices and supplies 300 770 {470) 2,855
10,829 770 10,059 13,699
Juvenile Services:
Salaries and wages 52327 191,867 331,364 347 143
Employee benefils 150,889 76,973 73918 122 156
Senvices and supplies 3,345 743 603, 564 2742179 591 136
Capital outiay - - - 11,617
4,019 863 672,404 3,147 458 1,072,062
Emergency Managemenl:
Salarles and wages 239,310 51,777 187,533 32,265
Employee benefits 86,814 30,286 56,528 13,257
Services and supplies 475,568 175,426 300,142 491,378
801,692 257 489 544,203 536,900
Total Public Safety Function 25,541 907 3,805,770 21,736,137 4 128 687
Public Works Function:
CSD - Public Works:
Salaries and wages 66,804 66,645 158 60,553
Employee benefits 35,823 36,902 (1,079) 33182
Senices and supplies 880,865 718,882 161,083 725,961
Capital outiay 74 648 71,415 3,233 =
Total Public Waorks Function 1,058,140 893,844 164,206 819 696
(CONTINUED)
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
OTHER RESTRICTED FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Welfare Function:
Human Services
Services and supplles § 135,784 § 7377 8 62,607 § 890,255
Total Welfare Function 135,784 73177 62,607 90,265
Culture and Recreation Function:

Library:

Services and supplies 43,954 43,880 74 24,465

CSD - Reglonal Parks and Open Space:

Salaries and wages 35182 35,270 (B8) 32,595
Employes benafits 18218 18,187 3 15,527
Services and supplies 1,025 110 86,838 928,272 69,151

1,078,510 160,285 928,215 117,273

May Center:

Salaries and wages 285,010 245513 39,497 269,009

Employee benefils 115,599 111,847 3,852 114,237

Sarvices and supplies 346,263 89,924 245 339 251,350

T46.872 457 084 280,788 634 596

Total Culture and Recreation Function 1,869, 336 651,259 1,218,077 776,334
Intergovernmental.

Cooperative Extension apportionment 1,668,221 1,680,000 {10,779) 1,540,126
Total Expenditures 87 888437 39,045,424 48,843,016 16,639,978
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures {19,214,991) 2,485,534 21,700,525 2,842,433
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from asset disposition - 5412 5,412 B
Transfers:

General Fund (143,030) (169, 786) (16.756) (74,576)

Debt Service Fund (1,558,970) (1,462 931) 96,039 {1,707, 405)

Capital Improvement Fund {1,568,266) (159,123} 1,408,143 (121,388)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3.270,266) (1,776,428) 1,488,426 (1,903,369)
et Change in Fund Balances {22,485.257) TOO,106 23,184 363 538,064

Fund Balances, July 1 23,527 438 24 105,929 570,493 23,167 865
Fund Balances, June 30 5 1042179 & 24 816,036 § 23773,856 3 24.108.929
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2021

Senior Library Animal
Health Services Enhanced 911 Expansion Services
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and investments s 11,423,256 % 616,519 § 6,514,988 % 4058707 § 6,527,645
Accounts recelvable 20,718 B 508,280 - 280,268
Property taxes receivable - 12,851 - 25,704 39,603
Other taxes receivable - - . - B
Interest receivabie - - 16,379 9,543 16,616
Due from other funds - - - - -
Due from other govemments 5,663,834 1,417,363 2583 - 2 460
Deposits and prepaid items - . - - .
Total Assets k3 17,107,808 % 2046733 3 7,039,930 5 4083954 § 6,866,792
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 585517 § 142,230 § 104,920 § 85214 § 16,269
Accrued salaries and benefits 479,110 64 488 4,720 32,086 98 604
Contracls/relention payable - - - - .
Due to other funds - = = - .
Due to other governments 750,215 13,507 323,53 - -
Deposits - - - - -
Other llabilities - 1,788 - - 151
Total Liabilities 1,814,842 222,013 433,171 127,300 115,024
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - grants and other revenue 16,285 43534 - - 25 7B6
Unavailable revenus - property taxes - 10,629 - 21,259 32,849
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 16,285 54,163 - 21,259 58615
Fund Balances
Restricted 15.276, 681 78777 6,606,759 3,201,018 218,222
Commitied - 1,691,780 - 744 379 6,474,931
Asslgned . . = : =
Total Fund Balances 15,276,681 1,770,557 6,608,759 3,945,395 6,683,153

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of

Riaoaress. and Eind Balsnces & 17,107,808 35 20468733 % 7,039,930 § 4,093,654 § B,866, 792

{CONTINUED)
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Assets

Cash and invesiments

Accounis receivable

Property laxes recelvable
Other laxes receivable

Interest receivable
Due from other funds

Due from other govemments
Deposits and prepaid items

Total Assets

Liabllities
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits
Contractsiretention payable

Due to other funds

Due to other governments

Deposits
Other liabilifies

Tatal Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - grants and other revenue
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabiliies, Deferrad Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2021

Truckee River

Regional Flood Regional Regional
Public Safety Management Communications Permits
Training Center Infrastructure System Sysfem
Fund Fund Fund Fund
1,531,129 § 130,526 3 4,605,776 719,643
5,350 - - -
3,622 210 10,264 1.512
2,006 2,441,508 69,822 -
- - 5,791 -
1542107 § 2,572,244 4,691,653 721,155
4861 § G0 23124 -
8917 25,348 16,458 -
522 .
14,300 25,408 39,582 -
1,100 - 10,783 -
1,100 = 10,783 -
1,526,707 2,546 836 4.641.288 721.155
1,526,707 2,546,838 4 541,288 721,155
1542107 § 2572244 3§ 4,681,653 721.155
(CONTINUED)
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Central

Truckea
Meadows
Remediation Marijuana Indigient Tax
District Roads Establishment Lewvy
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
5 5,022,733 § 5,387,232 % 432 157 56090,156 3 55,660,667
5,282 74,990 - - B94 BBR
- = 4 77,126 155,284
- 1,880,800 - . 1,690,800
13,029 18,078 2,648 15,160 107,071
- 799 - - 799
2,937 - - 517,387 10,117 800
- - - 5,791
E 5043981 5 10,371,900 % 434 805 6199838 S 68,732,900
§ 14,809 § 132,485 § - 911647 § 2,031,226
15,356 154 964 - 201,676 1,101,727
- 11,679 - - 11,679
962 - - . 962
242 186 &1 - 893,552 2,223,504
- 304,421 - . 304 421
- - - - 1.939
273,403 603,630 - 2,006,875 5,675,548
- - - G846 107,314
2,915 e - 63,787 131,439
2915 - 73,633 238,753
2,804,004 - - 4,118,330 41,740,665
1,963,569 1,201,053 434,805 - 12,600,517
- 8,477,217 - - 8,477,217
4,767,663 9,768,270 434 805 4119330 62,818,698
$ 5043981 § 10,371,800 & 434 805 6,193 838 3% 68,732,000
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Senior Library
Health Services Enhanced 911 Expansion
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem 5 - 5 1,685,803 & - % 3,371,773
County Oplion MVFT 1.0 Cent - E - -
Licenzes and permits 3,706,628 - - .
Intergovernmental revenues 21,479,132 2,139,435 - -
Charges for services 4,313,169 703,474 5,818,494 -
Fines and forfeils 138,500 . - -
Miscellaneous 251,215 56,906 16,205 4,491
Total Revenues 29,979 644 4 585,808 5834 699 3,376,264
Expenditures
Current:
General government > = x =
Public safety = - 4,344,156 =
Public works - - = -
Health and sanitation 32,209,360 - - -
Welfare - 5524 247 - -
Cuiture and recreation - - - 2.470,164
Tolal Expenditures 32,208,360 5,524 247 4,344 156 2,470,164
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenuas
Ower (Under) Expenditures {2,229,716) (938,439) 1,490 543 Q06,100
Other Financing Soures (Uses)
Transfers in 8,516,856 1,406,782 - -
Transfers out (72,552) . (750,000) .
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) G 444 304 1,406,782 (750,000} -
Met Change in Fund Balances 7.214 588 468,343 740,543 806,100
Fund Balances, July 1, (as restated) Note 18 8,062,083 1,302,214 5.866,216 3,039,255
Fund Balances, June 30 3 15276681 § 1,770,557 & 6,606,759 3 3,945,305
(CONTINUED)
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3

Regional Truckee River Central
Public Safety Flood Regional Regional Truckee Meadows
Animal Training Management Communications Permits Remediation

Services Center Infrastructure System System District

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
5180685 % - & -3 - % -8 =
331,280 - - - - -
- - 13,037 229 2,367,187 294106 -
177,088 931,320 - - 248,402 1,250,486
204,472 77,226 1,073,773 23,573 (1,250) 22,672
5,893,525 1,008,546 14,111,002 2,380,760 542 258 1,273,158
- - - . 466 569 -
5745714 641,168 11,305,497 1. 312,115 B -
- - = = . 1,405,056
5,745,714 681,168 11,305,497 1,312,115 466,569 1,405 056
147 B11 327.378 2,805,505 1,078,845 75,688 (131.898)
- - - - 72,552 -
(451,238) - {2,325,838) (930.863) - -

(451,238) - (2,325,830) (930,863) 72 552

(303,427) 327,378 478,666 147,782 148 241 {131,808)
6,996,580 1,198,329 2,067,170 4,493,508 572,914 4,899,561
6,683,153 § 1,528,707 $ 2546836 § 4641288 % 721,185 § 4 767,663
{CONTINUED)
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Marijuana Indigent
Roads Establishment Tax Levy
Fund Fund Fund TOTAL
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem 5 - 5 -5 10,115,317 & 20,353 678
County Gption MVFT 1.0 Cent 805,330 . . 805,330
Licenses and permits - 1,270,462 = 5,398,370
Intergovernmental revenues 9,449 536 . 1,630,624 50,397,249
Charges for services 586,485 - 026,361 14,966,279
Fines and forfeils - . - 139,500
Miscallaneous 151,257 (5,015) 4,454,844 6,360,453
Total Revenues 11,002,608 1,265 447 17,157,148 98,420,885
Expenditures
Current:
General government . 425 - 466,994
Public safety - - - 23,388,650
Public works 14,319,320 - - 14,319,320
Health and sanitation - - - 33614416
Welfare . - 32,071,500 37,595,747
Culture and recreation - - - 2,470,164
Total Expenditures 14,319,320 425 32,071,500 111,855,281
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower {Under) Expendituras (3,316,712) 1,265,022 (14,914,354) (13,434 426)
Other Financing Soures (Uses)
Transfers in 3,023.620 - 22,166,393 36,186,203
Transfers out {625,077) (9,962 65T) (15.438,226)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,023,620 (825,077) 12,183,736 20,747,977
Net Change in Fund Balances (2593,092) 339,945 (2,730.618) 7,313,551
Fund Balances, July 1, (as restated) Note 19 10,061,362 04,860 6,840 943 55,505, 048
Fund Balances, June 30 kS 9,768,270 § 434805 5 4,119,330 % 62,818,550
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Revenues
Licenses and permils
Intergovemmental Revenues:
Federal grants
State grants
Other
Charges for Serviges:
Health
Fine and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous:
Contributions and donations
Cther

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Fealth and Sanitafion Function:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefils
Services and supplies
Capital ouliay

Toial Expenditures

Excess {(Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers oul

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Met Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA

HEALTH FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
{WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

5

2024 2020

Budget Actual Variance Actual
3,626,311 §% 3,796,628 & 170,317 § 3340170
39,135,209 19,858,153 (18,277.056) 5477611
714,525 669,882 (44,643 374,752
1,153,105 851,097 (202,008) 1,157,406
3,319,806 4,313,168 993,363 3,350,408
- 139,500 138,500 .
14,950 8437 (6.513) 10,015
188,075 242,778 43,703 193,345
48,162,981 29,979,644 (18,183,337) 13,803,795
18,760,604 13,118,880 5,641,715 12,010,723
8,493,671 6,210,971 2,282 700 6,040,423
31,789,225 12,003 186 19,606,039 4,923,668
B56,051 7BB 314 69,737 161,920
50,889,551 32,208,380 27,690,191 23,145,734
(11,736.,570) {2,229,716) 9,506,854 19.241,939)
9,516,856 9,516,856 - 9.516,856
(69.489) (72.552) 13.063) (54,360)
9,447 367 9,444 304 {3,063) 9 452 496
(2,289,203) 7,214,588 9,503,791 220,557
8,332,680 8,062,003 (270,587) 7,841,536
6,043,477 § 15276681 & 9,233,204 § 8,062,093
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
SENIOR SERVICES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Budgaet Actual Variance Actual
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem & 1669221 § 1685803 % 16,682 § 1,576,995
Intergovemmental Revenues:
Federal grants 2105777 1,616,137 {489,640) 1,611,460
State and local grants £98,304 523,298 (375.008) 868,507
Charges for Services:
Senior law project fees 75,000 46,610 (28.381) 43,848
Program incoms 178,857 116,536 (62.321) 107,194
Other 870,050 540,318 (329.731) 389,595
Miscellaneous:
Contributions and donations 21,652 6,065 (15,587) 7.763
Reimbursements 25450 3,016 (22,434) 31,23
Other 54,350 47915 {16,435) 77.844
Total Revenues 5,908,661 4,585 808 (1,322,853) 4,714,537
Expenditures
Welfare Funciion:
Salarles and wages 1,645,454 1,670,673 (25,.218) 1,845,772
Employea benefits 899,828 915,720 {15.882) 1,006,958
Senvices and supplies 4,610,061 2,589,319 2,020,742 2,974 145
Capltal outlay 328,249 348,535 (20,288) 97,035
Total Expanditures 7,483,592 5,524,247 1,950,345 5,823,910
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower (Under) Expenditures {1,574,931) (938 439) 636,452 (1,209,373)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers:
General Fund 1,406,782 1,406,782 - 1,406,782
MNet Change in Fund Balances (168,149) 468,343 636,492 187,400
Fund Balances, July 1 868,564 1,302,214 433,650 1,104,805
Fund Balances, June 30 t] 700415 § 1,770,557 % 1,070,142 § 1,302,214
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
ENHANCED 911 FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Revenues
Charges for Services
Enhanced 911 fees $ 5,614,468 § 5618,4594 § 204,025 § 5,704 894
Miscellaneous:
Imvestment earnings 7600 76,493 68,893 79,885
MNet increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments £ (60,288) (B0,288) 150,898
Total Revenues 5,622,069 5,834,689 212 B30 5935677
Expenditures
Public Safety Function:
Salaries and wages 125612 127.855 (2,243) 121,418
Employee benefits 64,255 62,145 2110 53,345
Services and supplies 3,460,384 4,164,156 {693,772) 3,728,780
Capital outlay 2,071,765 - 2,071,765 134,421
Total Expenditures 5,722,016 4,344 156 1,377 860 4,037,965
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower (Under) Expenditures (99,947) 1,480,543 1,590,450 1,897,712
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Cut (750,000) (750,000) -
Met Change in Fund Balances (89,947) T40,543 840 4890 1,897,712
Fund Balances, July 1, as restated (Note 19) 5,160,014 5,866,216 706,202 3,167,302
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 5,060,067 & 6,606,759 § 1,546,692 § 5,065,104
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
LIBRARY EXPANSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Miscellaneous:
Investment earnings
Met increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Culture and Recreation Function:
Salaries and wages
Employes benefits
Services and supplies

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers:
Public Works Construction

Met Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

2021 2020

Budget Actual Variance Actual
& 3,338,443 § 3,371,773 § 33330 % 3,153,963
15,000 42 878 27,878 54,332
- (38,387) (38,387) 83,062
3,353,443 3,376,264 22,821 3,201,377
1,000,572 900,565 100,007 896,936
477,195 398126 79,060 440,535
1,482,506 1,171,473 311,123 1,330,326
2,950,363 2,470,164 480,199 2,667 708
353,080 906,100 513.020 623,579
(358,000) . (358.000) .
35,080 908,100 871,020 G623 679
2 742 549 3,039,295 296,746 2415716
$ 2777629 § 3,945,385 % 1,167,766 5 3,038,295

121



WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
ANIMAL SERVICES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

2021 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Revenues
Taxas:

Ad valorem 5 5,007,667 % 5,180,685 & 173,018 § 4,827,382
Licenzes and Permits:

Animal licenses 307,000 331.280 24 280 322 858
Intergovernmental - - - 17,792
Chargas for Services:

Animal services 203,000 177,088 (26,812) 176,386
Fines and Forfeits:

Administrative enforcement penalties - - - 350
Miscellaneous:

Investment eamings 100,000 105,539 5.539 123,975

MNet increase (decrease) in the

fair value of investments (B85, 846) (B5,848) 178,610
Contributions and donations. 108,137 53,645 (54, 4892) 58,734
Other 55,000 131,134 76,134 92,195

Total Revenues 5,780,604 3,893,525 112,721 5,802,292
Expenditures
Public Safety Function

Salaries and wages 2,737,368 2,677,181 60,208 2,513,195

Employee benefits 1,505,002 1,455,966 49,036 1,444 931

Services and supplies 2049 383 1,556,757 482 626 1,444 704

Capital outlay 339,600 55,800 283,800 -

Total Expenditures 6,631,384 5,745,714 885,670 5,402,830
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower (Under) Expenditures (850,580) 147 811 998,391 389 462
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer to Public Works Construction {553,170) (451,238) 101,932 (8.570)
Net Change in Fund Balances (1,403,750) {303,427) 1,100,323 360,892
Fund Balances, July 1 5,991,538 6,996,580 1,005,041 6.605,685
Fund Balances, June 30 5 4,587 788 § 6,683,153 & 2105364 § 5,996,580
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY TRAINING CENTER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

20241 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Revenues
Charges for Services:
Training fees - partner agencies k3 a74.738 % 028820 § (45,918) 3 989,784
Training fees - workshops 15,000 2,500 (12,500) 3,725
Mizeellaneous;
Investment eamings 5,000 22,815 17,815 24,239
Met increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments - {18,783} (18,783) 33,296
Rental income 30,000 73,194 43,184 128,422
Other 12,000 - (12,000 7,613
Total Revenues 1,036.728 1,008, 546 {28,192) 1,197.079
Expenditures
Public Safety Function:
Salarles and wages 230,187 262,162 (31,975) 367,870
Employes banefits 180,778 126105 55,673 180,702
Services and supplies 447 554 203,801 153,653 251,678
Capital outlay 145,000 - 145,000 81,368
Total Expenditures 1,003,519 681,168 322,351 881,619
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower (Under) Expenditures 33,219 327 378 284,158 315,460
Fund Balances, July 1 836,128 1,198,329 363,201 883,869
Fund Balances, June 30 8 869,347 S 1,526,707 § 657,360 5 1,199,324
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WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA

TRUCKEE RIVER FLOOD MANAGEMENT INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020)

Revenues
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Infrastructure sales tax - NRS 3778100
Mizcellaneous:
Investment earnings
Net increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments
Reimbursements

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Public Safety Function:
Salaries and wages
Employesa benefils
Services and supplies

Total Public Safety Function

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
COver (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Usas)
Transfers:
Debt Service Fund

Met Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

2021 2020
Budget Actual Variance Actual

5 8111940 5 13,037,229 § 4925280 § 11,078,020
1,000 1,100 109 1,857

= (BBT) (G87) 2,362

1,147,088 1,073 351 (73,748} 1,150,040
£,260,038 14,111,002 4,850,983 12,232,279
714,545 Ga0 324 54,221 708,570

356,976 330,373 26,603 365,225
5,856,962 10,314,800 (4,457 838) 8,708,767
6,528,483 11,306,497 (4,377,014) 8,782,562
6,928,483 11,305,497 (4,377.014) 8,782,562
2,331,556 2,805,505 473,949 2440717
{2.331,556) (2,325,839) 5717 (2,324 ,169)

- 479 666 479,666 125,548

1,941,622 2,067,170 125,548 1.941,622

3 1,941,622 § 2546836 § 605214 5 2,067,170
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